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International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

| am pleased to take this opportunity to present the annual report of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The principal activities of the Group are hotel operations, leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment and live poker events
operations.

The Group's revenue for the year ended 30 June 2021 was approximately
HK$64.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 71.4%, as
compared with approximately HK$227.0 million in the year ended 30 June
2020. Both the revenue from the leasing of properties and the hotel
operations for the year decreased as compared with the year ended 30
June 2020. The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$242.0 million
for the year ended 30 June 2021 as compared with a loss of approximately
HK$305.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 for continuing and
discontinued operations, which represented a decrease of approximately
20.7%. The decrease in loss was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
change in fair value of investment properties and the absence of the loss
from discontinued operation for the year.

Net cash used in operating activities of the Group for the year under review
was approximately HK$9.8 million, while net cash generated from
operating activities of the Group was approximately HK$10.9 million for the
year ended 30 June 2020. Net assets attributable to the owners of the
Company as at 30 June 2021 amounted to approximately HK$1,591.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.0%, as compared with
approximately HK$1,788.5 million as at 30 June 2020.

As always, the Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and will continue to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems to comply with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to maximise the values of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group will continue to focus on its existing business operations and

investments in the Philippines riding on business environment to strive for
exploring potential business opportunities.
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The tourism industry in the Philippines is expected to grow after COVID-19
pandemic, with higher disposable incomes, increasingly discerning market
demographic and other positive factors will drive the booming
development of the Philippines. Marina Square Properties, Inc. (“MSPI"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the Philippines, had
submitted an application to Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation (“PAGCOR’) for a provisional license in order to expand and
upgrade the current hotel premises, facilities and services by the
establishment and operation of a casino and the development of an
integrated resort in the Philippines. MSPI had received a conditionally
approved letter issued by PAGCOR, and MSPI will further negotiate for the
terms of the provisional license agreement to be entered into between
PAGCOR and MSPI'in relation to the grant of the provisional license.

In August 2021, in order for MSPI to participate and accumulate relevant
experience in gaming operations, MSPI entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with PAGCOR and jointly
established a management committee to commence casino operations at
the casino located in the Group's hotel premises.

Looking forward, we strive to explore more opportunities of high potential
to create synergies among businesses and support the long-term growth
of the Group.

In conclusion, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude to my fellow
directors of the Company, the management team and the employees of
the Group for their relentless commitment, efforts and creative ideas
during the year. | would also like to take this opportunity to thank our
Shareholders, customers and business partners for their continued support.

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 September 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REGARDING
THE QUALIFIED OPINION

The auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) has expressed a qualified
opinion (the “Qualified Opinion”) on the corresponding figures related to
disposal of subsidiaries constituting the discontinued operation. Set out

below are the supplementary information regarding the aforesaid qualified

opinion:

06

Background for the discontinued operation for the year
ended 30 June 2020

Detailed information is set out in note 13 and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management’s view on the audit qualification

The management of the Company has given careful consideration
to the Qualified Opinion and the basis therefor and has had ongoing
discussions with Auditor when preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The management understands that the issue of the Qualified
Opinion was caused by the delay in the audit work of the Disposal
Group as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic in UK and also the
subsidiaries of the Disposal Group went into administration and
administrators were appointed in last year. The Company and the
Auditor have further attempted to request the administrators to
provide the financial information for the audit in this year but with
no response received. As a result, the Auditor could not perform its
audit work on the Disposal Group and this is beyond our
management control. As the Auditor could not obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence and materials to audit the line items
relevant to the Disposal Group on the Group's 2020 consolidated
financial statements, the Auditor issued the Qualified Opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
30 June 2020. Also, the Auditor issued the Qualified Opinion on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021
because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of
the related 2021 figures and 2020 figures in the consolidated
financial statements.

With respect to the type of audit opinion issued by the Auditor,
based on the foregoing, the management acknowledged and
agreed with the audit opinion issued based on their professional and
independent assessment.
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International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER RN A

Management Discussion and Analysis

View of the Audit Committee and management’s
position

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
confirmed that it had independently reviewed and agreed with the
management’s position concerning the Qualified Opinion for
reasons stated in paragraph headed “Management’s view on the
audit qualification” above.

It was acknowledged by the Audit Committee that there were
practical difficulties to the audit work for reasons stated above, and
that the relevant audit procedures required to be performed by the
Auditor were in fact affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the
subsequent administration for the subsidiaries of the Disposal Group.

On the basis of the above, the Audit Committee does not dispute
the Qualified Opinion issued on the corresponding figures related to
disposal of subsidiaries constituting the discontinued operation for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

Impact and removal of the audit qualification

As disclosed in Independent Auditor’s Report, the audit qualification
only related to the corresponding figures for the year ended 30 June
2021. As the Disposal Group would no longer be consolidated in the
financial statements of the Group after the date of disposal, the
management understands, after discussion with the Auditor, there
will be no consequential effect on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 30 June 2022 onwards in relation to
the same matter. Therefore, the management expects that the
Qualified Opinion would be removed in the next financial years.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Continuing operations

The Group's revenue for the year ended 30 June 2021 was approximately
HK$64.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 71.4%, as
compared with approximately HK$227.0 million in the year ended 30 June
2020. Both the revenue from the leasing of properties and the hotel
operations for the year decreased as compared with the year ended 30
June 2020. The Group reported a gross profit of approximately HK$4.5
million for the year under review, representing a decrease of approximately
97.0%, as compared with approximately HK$148.5 million in the year ended
30 June 2020. Gross profit margin for the year ended 30 June 2021 was
approximately 7.0%, representing a decrease of approximately 58.4%, as
compared to gross profit margin of approximately 65.4% for the year
ended 30 June 2020. The decrease in gross profit margin for the year was
mainly due to (i) the substantial decrease in the number of tourists given
the travel restrictions imposed by the local government of the Philippines,
(i) the decrease in the room occupancy rate and the selling price for the
hotel segment, and (iii) the decrease in the leasing income from Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation as a result of imposition of different
levels of community quarantine requirements in the Philippines in light of
the development of COVID-19 pandemic.

Other income of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 was
approximately HK$14.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately
8.6%, as compared with approximately HK$16.2 million in the year ended
30 June 2020.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$46.5 million on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2021, while a gain on change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$29.1 million was
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2020. The Group also recorded a
gain of approximately HKS$5.1 million on change in fair value of financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended 30 June
2021, representing a decrease of approximately 61.4%, as compared with
approximately HK$13.2 million in the year ended 30 June 2020.

Other losses of the Group mainly represented the loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment. The Group recorded a loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$3.7 million for the
year ended 30 June 2021, while a gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$0.05 million was recorded in the year
ended 30 June 2020. The Group recorded a net foreign exchange gain of
approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2021, while a net
foreign exchange loss of approximately HK$13.8 million was recorded in
the year ended 30 June 2020.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses
of the Group decreased by approximately 37.9% to approximately HK$78.8
million for the year ended 30 June 2021 from approximately HK$126.9
million in the year ended 30 June 2020. Included in these expenses for the
year ended 30 June 2021, approximately 39.7% and 12.7% were the staff
costs and the utilities expenses respectively. The staff costs for the year
ended 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$31.3 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 39.0%, as compared with approximately
HK$51.3 million in the year ended 30 June 2020. The utilities expenses for
the year ended 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$10.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 28.1%, as compared with
approximately HK$13.9 million in the year ended 30 June 2020.

Finance costs of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 was
approximately HK$29.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
9.8% as compared with approximately HK$32.5 million in the year ended
30 June 2020. The finance costs included the interest on promissory note,
the bank borrowings, lease liabilities and convertible bond.

The Group recorded income tax credit of approximately HK$30.8 million for
the year ended 30 June 2021, while income tax credit of approximately
HK$6.5 million was recognised in the year ended 30 June 2020. The income
tax credit was mainly due to the decrease in opening of deferred tax
liabilities of fair value adjustment on investment properties and property,
plant and equipment resulting from a decrease in applicable tax rate
during the year ended 30 June 2021.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$242.0 million for the year
ended 30 June 2021 as compared with a loss of approximately HK$305.3
million for the year ended 30 June 2020 for continuing and discontinued
operations, which represented a decrease of approximately 20.7%. The
decrease in loss was mainly attributable to the decrease in the change in
fair value of investment properties and the absence of the loss from
discontinued operation for the year.

Loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2021 amounted to
approximately 17.68 HK cents, as compared with loss per share of
approximately 20.42 HK cents for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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BIFRIREER R A

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENmR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are hotel operations, leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment and live poker events
operations.

Continuing operations

1.

10

Leasing of properties

The revenue derived from the leasing of properties represents the
rental income from the premises of the Group leased to PAGCOR.
The monthly rental income is based on an agreed percentage of net
gaming revenue generated from the local gaming area operated by
PAGCOR as lessee of the Group's premises or a fixed rental amount,
whichever is higher.

The revenue derived from the leasing of properties for the year
ended 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$30.6 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 78.3%, as compared with
approximately HK$140.7 million in the year ended 30 June 2020. The
decrease was mainly due to the effect of COVID-19 pandemic, and
the local government of the Philippines has been imposing different
levels of community quarantine requirements which affected the
gaming operations in Manila. As a result, the leasing income from
PAGCOR also decreased. It contributed approximately 47.2% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations during the year under
review while it contributed approximately 62.0% of the Group's
revenue from continuing operations in the year ended 30 June 2020.

Impairment loss of non-current assets

During the year, we concluded that the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$2.3 million
and right-of-use assets amounted to approximately HK$0.9 million
are required to be impaired respectively. The impairment was
recognised as the COVID-19 pandemic’s effects became widespread
and tourist activities was restricted in the Philippines. The
independent valuation expert had included the possible effect of
COVID-19 in the calculation of recoverable amount of the Leasing’s
non-current assets and therefore arrived at a lower recoverable
amount.
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Hotel operations

The revenue derived from the hotel operations mainly includes
room revenue, revenue from food and beverages and other hotel
service income. The hotel of the Group is located in Manila City
which is a tourist spot with churches and historical sites as well as
various night spots catered for tourists and is one of the major tourist
destinations in the Philippines.

The revenue derived from the hotel operations for the year ended 30
June 2021 was approximately HK$34.3 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 58.2%, as compared with approximately
HK$82.0 million in the year ended 30 June 2020.

During the year under review, included in the revenue derived from
the hotel operations, approximately 88.6% of the revenue was
contributed by room revenue while it was approximately 69.1% in
the year ended 30 June 2020. The room revenue for the year ended
30 June 2021 was approximately HK$30.4 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 46.4%, as compared with approximately
HKS$56.7 million in the year ended 30 June 2020. The decrease was
mainly due to the substantial decrease in the number of tourists
given the travel restrictions imposed by the local government of the
Philippines, and the decrease in the room occupancy rate and the
average room rates for the hotel rooms.

Impairment loss of non-current assets

During the year, we concluded that the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$22.5 million
and right-of-use assets amounted to approximately HK$2.8 million
are required to be impaired respectively. The impairment was
recognised as the COVID-19 pandemic’s effects became widespread
and tourist activities was restricted in the Philippines. The
independent valuation expert had included the possible effect of
COVID-19 in the calculation of recoverable amount of the Hotel's
non-current assets and therefore arrived at a lower recoverable
amount.

Live poker events operations

The revenue derived from the live poker events operations
represents the live event income from the sponsorship and the
entrance fee.

There is no revenue derived from the live poker events operations
for the year ended 30 June 2021 due to COVID-19 pandemic.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Countries across the globe are taking unprecedented measures to combat
the spread of COVID-19 pandemic since its initial outbreak back in January
of 2020. Travel restriction, travellers quarantine and even “lock down”
policies have been impacting the global economy seriously. Different
degrees of community quarantine measures were imposed by the
Philippines government and visitation to the Philippines decreased
drastically since the outbreak. It is uncertain when this will end. However,
following the roll out of the vaccination programmes, it is expected that
some restrictions may be eased in the near term. The Group remain
cautiously optimistic about the recovery of the tourism and gaming
industry in the Philippines. The Group will continue to focus on its existing
business operations and investments in the Philippines riding on business
environment to strive for exploring potential business opportunities.

MSPI' had submitted an application to PAGCOR for a provisional license (the
“Provisional License”) in order to expand and upgrade the current hotel
premises, facilities and services by the establishment and operation of a
casino and the development of an integrated resort in the Philippines. As
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 September
2020, MSPI received the draft provisional license agreement (the
“Provisional License Agreement”) in relation to the grant of Provisional
License from PAGCOR on 18 September 2020.

The board of directors of PAGCOR and the representatives of MSPI are
discussing and negotiating for the detail terms and conditions for the
Provisional License Agreement. We are trying to explore and develop a
new operation format with PAGCOR. In the meantime, we engaged
independent professional parties to review the internal control measures
implemented and anti-money laundering policy, to ensure the Group will
comply with all applicable laws and listing rules for the future operations.

In August 2021, in order for MSPI to participate and accumulate relevant
experience in gaming operations, MSPI entered into the Cooperation
Agreement with PAGCOR and jointly established a management
committee (the “"Management Committee”) to commence casino
operations at the casino located in the Group's hotel premises.

Regarding for the future development of an integrated resort, the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company will consider
different financing method and change of capital structure (as the case
may be) in order to expand our business and maintain the liquidity of the
Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$223.0 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$682.3 million).
Current assets amounted to approximately HK$659.2 million (as at 30 June
2020: HKS$771.0 million), of which approximately HK$564.9 million (as at 30
June 2020: HK$623.2 million) was bank balances and cash, approximately
HKS$4.3 million (as at 30 June 2020: HKS7.1 million) was trade receivables,
approximately HK$30.4 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$38.2 million) was
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, approximately HKS$ 1.4 million
(as at 30 June 2020: HK$1.8 million) was inventories, approximately HK$52.6
million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$93.4 million) was financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, approximately HK$2.2 million (as at 30 June 2020:
HKS$4.1 million) was contract assets, and approximately HK$3.3 million (as
at 30 June 2020: HK$3.2 million) was amounts due from associates.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$436.2 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$88.7 million), of
which approximately HK$1.8 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$3.5 million)
was trade payables, approximately HK$29.9 million (as at 30 June 2020:
HK$62.0 million) was other payables and accrued charges, approximately
HK$0.02 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$1.0 million) was contract liabilities,
approximately HK$19.9 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$19.5 million) was
bank borrowings, approximately HK$382.2 million (as at 30 June 2020:
HK$345.9 million recorded as non-current liabilities) was promissory note
and approximately HK$2.5 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$2.8 million) was
lease liabilities.

The bank balances and cash of the Group as at 30 June 2021 was mainly
denominated in Philippine Peso (“Peso”), Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKS") and
United States Dollars ("USD").
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, Fortune Growth Overseas Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of
the remaining 49% equity interest in Maxprofit International Limited at a
consideration of HK$1,138.0 million, of which HK$788.0 million was settled
by cash and HK$350.0 million was settled by way of the issuance of a
promissory note (the “2016 Promissory Note”) in the principal amount of
HK$350.0 million by Fortune Growth Overseas Limited to the holder, Cross-
Growth Co.,, Ltd. Details of the acquisition are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 25 July 2016 and the circular of the Company dated
25 August 2016. The 2016 Promissory Note, which was issued on 3 October
2016, carries interest at the fixed rate of 4% per annum and shall become
due and payable in full on the business day immediately preceding the
fifth anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the
Company. On 5 July 2019, the holder transferred the 2016 Promissory Note
to another independent third party of the Company, Oxford East Limited,
through a deed of transfer. The transfer has no impact to the Company as
term of note remains unchanged. On 31 March 2021, Fortune Growth
Overseas Limited issued promissory notes (the “New PNs”) to the
promissory note holder to settle the 2016 Promissory Note. The New PNs
amounted to HK$384,904,110 which represented the principal amount and
the accrued interest for the 2016 Promissory Note. The New PNs carry
interest which accrues on the outstanding principal amount of
HKS$384,904,110 from its issue date until repayment in full of the principal
amount at the fixed rate of 4% per annum. The New PNs shall become due
and payable in full on the business day immediately preceding the first
anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the
Company. A modification gain of approximately HKS$1,945,000 was
recognised in profit or loss in relation to this non-substantial modification
of promissory note, which represented the amount by which the
aggregate of the carrying amount of the 2016 Promissory Note and interest
payable exceeded the amortised cost of the New PNs. As at 30 June 2021,
the carrying value of the New PNs was approximately HK$382.2 million.

Net cash used in operating activities of the Group for the year under review
was approximately HK$9.8 million, while net cash generated from
operating activities of the Group was approximately HK$10.9 million for the
year ended 30 June 2020. Net assets attributable to the owners of the
Company as at 30 June 2021 amounted to approximately HK$1,591.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.0%, as compared with
approximately HKS1,788.5 million as at 30 June 2020.
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On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$1.00 each as placing shares were successfully placed by
the placing agent at the placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2017 and 10 August 2017. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable by
the Company, were approximately HK$358.50 million. The net proceeds
from the placing were intended to be used as to (i) approximately
HKS$150.0 million for the renovation of a hotel of the Group in Manila City
(the "Hotel"); (i) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of
the parcels of land adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land”), including
but not limited to the construction of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel,
and the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the
acquisition of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for
the potential acquisition of, including but not limited to, lands in the
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the
remaining proceeds for the general working capital of the Group. Set forth
below is a summary of the utilization of the net proceeds:
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Notes:

The renovation of the Hotel was almost completed during the year ended 30 June
2021. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the renovation of the Hotel was put on hold
during the year ended 30 June 2021, and expected to be completed in the
financial year ending 30 June 2022.

The HK$52.6 million utilised comprised HK$51.9 million loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land and HK$0.7
million for the payment of the design and consultancy services fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new lands to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Potential Acquisition
is expected to be completed in the financial year ending 30 June 2022. It is
expected that in addition to the balance of the net proceeds of approximately
HKS$47.4 million allocated, further financial resources are required for the
development of the New Hotel Land. The time for commencement of the
development of the New Hotel Land and use of the remaining net proceeds
allocated for the development of the New Hotel Land will depend on the internal
and external financial resources available to the Group and commencement of the
development of the new lands to be acquired.

It is expected that the HK$70 million allocated for the Potential Acquisition will be
utilised in the financial year ending 30 June 2022.

The gearing ratio, measured in terms of the carrying values of total
borrowings divided by total assets, was approximately 20.8% (as at 30 June
2020: 18.3%).

The Group financed its operations including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows and the issuance of promissory notes.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD
The entering into the Cooperation Agreement

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 16 July 2021, MSPI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the Philippines, and
PAGCOR intended to enter into the Cooperation Agreement. Please refer
to the Company’s circular dated 21 July 2021 for details.
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Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 30 August 2021, the
Board was notified by MSPI that it received the signed Cooperation
Agreement dated 9 August 2021 from PAGCOR, the cooperation among
the Group and PAGCOR shall take effect until 31 March 2031 unless
otherwise lawfully terminated in accordance with the Cooperation
Agreement. Based on preliminary assessment by management, the Group
intends to change the use of its properties from leasing a property to held
for own use under the Cooperation Agreement, the investment properties
will be reclassified as properties held for own use with corresponding
deferred tax liabilities related to the investment properties will also be
derecognized at the date of change in use. After reclassifying to properties
held for own use, the properties will be depreciated according to the
accounting policy of the Group.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Owing to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since the early of 2020,
countries across the world are taking unprecedented measures to combat
the spread of the virus. Travel restriction, travellers quarantine and even
“lock down" policies have been impacting the global economy seriously.
Visitation to the Philippines decreased drastically since the outbreak.
Different degrees of community quarantine measures were imposed by
the Philippines government during the year under review. The Group's
hotel and the casino in the hotel may be subject to temporary mandated
closures to comply with those anti-pandemic measures. All these will have
a negative impact on the Group's revenue from its hotel and leasing
operations in the Philippines.

It is uncertain when this will end. The Group will closely monitor the
current market situation and make corresponding measures such as cost
control policy in order to sustain our business.

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties from the
economic growth and the competition in the market that the Group
operates, and changes in economic, political and social conditions and
changes in the relevant laws and regulations in the places that the Group
operates.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk as the Group's assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso and EURO and the
Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD and Peso while
the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in HKS and Peso.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to the tax disputes between
certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the
Bureau of Internal Revenue in the Philippines.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as otherwise mentioned in this report, during the year ended 30 June
2021, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the places in which the Group operates that has a
significant impact on the business operations of the Group.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the bank loans are secured by the
Group's investment properties amounted to approximately HK$1,231
million and HKS$ 1,308 million respectively.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 22 June 2020, MSPI submitted an application to PAGCOR for the
Provisional License from PAGCOR in relation to the establishment and
operation of a casino in the City of Manila, Philippines. On 4 November
2020, PAGCOR in principle agreed to grant the Provisional License to MSPI
subject to the parties entering into the Provisional License Agreement.
MSPI is in the course of reviewing the terms of the Provisional License
Agreement.

The operation of gambling casinos in the Philippines is a regulated activity,
and every gambling casino in the Philippines has to be licensed by
PAGCOR and obtain a valid license from PAGCOR for the operation of the
gambling activities. Pursuant to the draft Provisional License Agreement,
the Provisional License to be granted to MSPI shall take effect on the date
of the Provisional License Agreement and shall be valid until the issuance
of the regular casino gaming license (the “Regular Casino Gaming License”)
by PAGCOR upon completion of the development of the integrated resort
and upon approval by PAGCOR of the report detailing the actual total
project cost to ensure MSPI's compliance with the approved project cost
based on the approved plan. The Provisional License and the Regular
Casino Gaming License shall have an aggregate term of fifteen (15) years
from the issue date of the Provisional License or until 11 July 2033,
whichever comes first. The Regular Casino Gaming License may be
renewed subject to the same terms and conditions pursuant to the
Provisional License Agreement. According to the draft Provisional License
Agreement, MSPI can only commence the operation of gambling activities
upon the receipt of the notice of commencement after PAGCOR is satisfied
that the casino in the integrated resort is fully compliant with the approved
plans and the pre-conditions provided by PAGCOR, and in any event, the
notice of commencement will not be issued by PAGCOR earlier than 28
February 2022. In order for MSPI to participate and accumulate relevant
experience in gaming operations prior to issue of the notice of
commencement by PAGCOR in early 2022, PAGCOR and MSPI intended to
enter into the Cooperation Agreement. The entering into of the Provisional
License Agreement and the execution of the Cooperation Agreement are
not interconditional upon each other.
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The transactions contemplated under the Cooperation Agreement
constituted a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and were subject
to the reporting, announcement, circular and Shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The relevant
resolution as set out in the notice of the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company (the "EGM”") dated 21 July 2021 was duly passed by the
Shareholders by way of poll at the EGM held on 6 August 2021. The Board
was notified by MSPI that it received the signed Cooperation Agreement
dated 9 August 2021 from PAGCOR, and the Cooperation Agreement took
effect for a period of fifteen (15) years as from 1 April 2016 until 31 March
2031 (both dates inclusive), unless otherwise lawfully terminated in
accordance with the Cooperation Agreement. Following the execution of
the Cooperation Agreement, MSPI and PAGCOR jointly established the
Management Committee as a governing body for the management and
operations of the casino and commenced casino operations, in which MSPI
has the authority to participate in the management of the casino through
the Management Committee. Further details are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 June 2020, 18 June 2020, 22
June 2020, 18 September 2020, 5 November 2020, 26 February 2021, 16
July 2021, 6 August 2021, 13 August 2021 and 30 August 2021; and the
circular of the Company dated 21 July 2021.

Save as disclosed, there was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiary and
associated company or significant investments of the Group, which would
have been required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules for the year
ended 30 June 2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities which may provide its growth and development potential,
enhance the profitability, and strive for better return to the Shareholders.
The Group will also continue to consider a renovation plan to improve the
properties of the Group as well as the facilities therein so as to attract more
guests and enhance their experience during their stays.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the Shareholders.
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The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso
and EURO. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD
and Peso while the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in
HKS and Peso. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign currency
exposure for each business segment and review the needs of individual
geographical area, and consider appropriate hedging policy in future when
necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 201 as at 30 June 2021
(as at 30 June 2020: 285). The staff costs for the year ended 30 June 2021
was approximately HK$31.3 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020:
HKS$51.3 million). The remuneration policy of the Company is
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company. The
remuneration of the Directors and the employees of the Group is based on
the performance and experience of the individuals and is determined with
reference to the Group's performance, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions. In addition to the salaries,
the employees of the Group are entitled to benefits including medical,
insurance and retirement benefits. Besides, the Group regularly provides
internal and external training courses for the employees of the Group to
meet their needs.
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Biographical information of the Directors the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report is set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, aged 52, joined the Company as an executive
Director in May 2017 and was appointed as the chairman of the board of
Directors in June 2017. He is also the chairman of the executive committee
of the Company, the authorised representative of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Choi possesses more
than 20 years of experience in financial service and merger and acquisition
projects. He is a non-executive director and the vice chairman of ICO Group
Limited (stock code: 1460). Dr. Choi was an executive director of Target
Insurance (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 6161) from September 2014 to
January 2019. The shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He is the chairman of Head & Shoulders Financial
Group Limited and the chairman of Head & Shoulders X Inc. Head &
Shoulders X Inc. is principally engaged in making investments in fintech
and blockchain projects, but without in any way involved in the operations
of such projects. Dr. Choi obtained a bachelor’s degree of business
administration (Magna Cum Laude) from Wichita State University in 1995
and a master’s degree of science from the University of lllinois at Urbana
Champaign in 1996, both of which are in the United States of America. He
has also obtained a doctoral degree of business administration from the
City University of Hong Kong in 2013.

Dr. Choi is the sole shareholder and the sole director of Head and Shoulders
Direct Investment Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn is the sole shareholder of
Brighten Path Limited, the controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules). Dr. Choi is deemed, by virtue of his interest in Brighten Path Limited,
to be interested in 504,223,268 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), representing approximately 36.83% of the issued share
capital of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Ho Wong Meng, aged 49, joined the Company in September 2020,
and is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. He is also a member of the executive committee and the
nomination committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ho possesses more than 20 years of
extensive experience and exceptional expertise in the gaming and
hospitality industry, mainly with the Genting Group. He also has a vast
knowledge and experience in the establishment and operation of casinos
and integrated resorts throughout the industry. Mr. Ho specialises in and
has deep understanding of the Asian gaming and hospitality industries. He
is a Certified Public Accountant who previously received intensive training
at KPMG Peat Marwick Malaysia. Mr. Ho is the executive chairman and
director of Frontier Capital Group Limited, which was previously listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX code: FCG).

Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited partnership
established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law of
Cayman Islands. The general partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is
Excite Investments Holdings Limited, an exempted company established
under the law of Cayman Islands and is solely owned by Mr. Ho. As such,
Mr. Ho is deemed to be interested in 260,000,000 Shares held by Excite
Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), representing approximately 18.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene, aged 64, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in May 2017. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee, and a member of the nomination committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a Master's Degree
in Business Administration and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience in the
finance and banking industry and acts or/and acted as director of a number
of private and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Ha is the director of a
certified public accountants corporate practice in Hong Kong. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Touyun Biotech Group
Limited (stock code: 1332). He also served as an independent non-
executive director of each of Longhui International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1007) from January 2016 to August 2020 and Planetree International
Development Limited (stock code: 613) from April 2019 to December 2020.
The shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Lau Ka Ho, aged 43, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2020. He is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Lau holds a Master's degree in business administration from
The University of lowa and a Master's degree in corporate governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong (now known as “Hong Kong
Metropolitan University”). He is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and holds a Diploma in Company Direction. He has more than 15
years of experience in corporate management, corporate finance and
corporate secretarial areas. Mr. Lau is an executive director and the
company secretary of Gain Plus Holdings Limited (stock code: 9900). He is
also an executive director and the chief executive officer of Prosperous
Future Holdings Limited (“Prosperous Future”) (stock code: 1259). Mr. Lau
was previously the chief financial officer and the company secretary of
Prosperous Future from May 2019 to December 2019 and the company
secretary of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (now known as
“Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited”) (stock code: 232)
from May 2018 to December 2018. The shares of these companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Also, he was previously the deputy chief
financial officer and company secretary of Peace Map Holding Limited, a
company previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
April 2013 to November 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai, aged 41, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director in January 2021. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of each of the audit committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng holds a
Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in Accounting from Macquarie University
in Australia. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public Accountant and a member
of CPA Australia who has over 15 years of managerial experience in
auditing, finance and accounting. Mr. Cheng has extensive experience in
financial and accounting as well as assurance and advisory services in Hong
Kong and Australia, where he has gained expertise to a range of industries,
including financial services, food and beverage, software houses,
hospitality, manufacturing and not-for-profits organisations. He is also well
experienced in internal auditing in various leading financial institutions,
including those related to internal controls over financial reporting as well
as daily operation procedures.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Chi Wai, aged 43, joined the Group in January 2019 and is the
chief financial officer of the Company. He is responsible for the accounting
and financial management of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a degree of
bachelor of arts in Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants. He has over 18 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and finance management in an international accounting firm.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 103 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2021 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
6 to 20 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 47% and 48%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’'s five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of a Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

B IRRE AR R 7]

International Entertainment Corporation

Report of the Directors

ESERES

ERENREAEBHE _T_—FRA=TH
I EEZFHRMEERZGEMHERE -

FTEXB
ARBIRBREERAR  HXEMBRARZER
R AR A M RARMIRE36

FER IR
AEEBE T —FAASHALFEZER
BRAFRE 13 HEZEADERER -

EERUW I TERMBEE_S-_—FA=1+HL
FRRNEMKRE (BET_TFA=THI
FE: 8-

E S B
AEERE-_T-—FAASHALFEZED
EEHRAFRECE0E [EREHNHRRAN]

— i o

TEERMMIER

AEBRZARERAREFEMEEEDL &
BIh 2N 5 B G B UKD 47% % 48% ©

AEBRAASEEELHARER 2B (X
EEFANBEFETEER30%

RERERMER SBEEE BEF2ETBEA
(EER LWRA)KBEEMAEEARFCDHE
TTRAEBBS% 2R EAREARHEHHET
Fr#Ea TS -

Annual Report 45 2020/21 25



BIFRIREER R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Report of the Directors

ESEWRES

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 239 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15
and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of the principal properties of the Group are set out on page 240
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2021, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles”), amounted to approximately HK$776,000.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 108 of this annual report and note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year, no charitable donations were made by the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned with effect from 1 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (appointed with effect from 1 January 2021)
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi (resigned with effect from 1 January 2021)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles and the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
and Mr. Ho Wong Meng, being executive Directors, shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the "AGM") to be held on Wednesday, 24 November 2021. The retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 21 to 24 of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene, Mr. Lau
Ka Ho and Mr. Cheng Hong Wai a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Kis

BRTIXRBEEIN RZBEZ—FRA=+H" &
EERARAEBTRAERERANRARHEL
MHEEEE(EXRERAMENE(EF LY
BRGIFEXVER) 2By - HERMDKESS - &
BRIER S MG GPIEXVEE 7 R F 80 & EX
ARGARE MR EAERAR (BFER
FREBEZ LSRRGSR EXEFE
B REDRZIXR)  SAREREZ MR GRDISE 352
RASAZIGFIEE M ERIERIORE © K
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Long positions in the Shares R s =
Number of Shares
G EE
Approximate
percentage
of the
Personal Corporate number of
Name of Director interest interest Total issued Shares
HE&T
RHHE
Y fBA = AR R B BRYESH
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley PSS ([21E1]) - 504,223,268 504,223,268 36.83%
("Dr. Choi") (Note 1)
(Btat1)
Mr. Ho Wong Meng Ho Wong Meng 5& 4 = 260,000,000 260,000,000 18.99%
("Mr. Ho") (THo %4 1) (Note 2)
(Htat2)
Notes: Hfat -

(1) These Shares were held by Brighten Path Limited (“Brighten Path”), a company
wholly-owned by Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited (“Head and
Shoulders”) which in turn was wholly-owned by Dr. Choi, an executive Director.

) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,, an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner) which was wholly owned by Mr. Ho, an executive Director.

28 Annual Report €% 2020/21

3% % % 19 | Brighten Path Limited ([Brighten Path |) £
& * Brighten Path /& — [ H3 Head and Shoulders Direct
Investment Limited ([ Head and Shoulders]) & & #H 2
AA) i Head and Shoulders | B ITE E&E L 2
BHA -

2 #5517 | Excite Opportunity Fund LP. (K & —RiRIE
FEHERRCEREBEEIRINERRERE
BOERA) THRTEZHREZERAN
Excite Investments Holdings Limited (fE & & BAE A)
B -



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2021, so far as is known to the
Directors or chief executives of the Company, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section

336 of the SFO.

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder

BRREH

Brighten Path
Brighten Path

Head and Shoulders
Head and Shoulders
Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.

Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.

Excite Investments Holdings Limited

Excite Investments Holdings Limited

Glorious Future Fund SPC

Glorious Future Fund SPC

AG Investment Management
Company Limited

AG Investment Management
Company Limited

Mr. Tang Yuk Fan

Tang Yuk Fan 54

Capacity/Nature of
Interest

5 EEtE

Beneficial owner

EmfEa A

Interest of a controlled
corporation
R Uil NG £y

Beneficial owner

Eafa A

Interest of a controlled
corporation

el I YNCIWA 3

4

Interest of a controlled
corporation

R PNCIP 5

Interest of a controlled
corporation
R | NIl s

Interest of a controlled
corporation

S VNI £
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N E v
Approximate
percentage of
the number of
Number of Shares issued Shares Note
HEBTRA
RAEE FEMHEIL W
504,223,268 36.83%
504,223,268 36.83% Note 1
KtaE1
260,000,000 18.99% Notes 2
and 3
KtaE2
K3
260,000,000 18.99% Note 2
Hta2
260,000,000 18.99% Note 3
Kfat 3
260,000,000 18.99% Note 3
HtaE3
260,000,000 18.99% Note 3
Ktat 3
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Brighten Path was wholly-owned by Head and Shoulders which in turn was
wholly-owned by Dr. Choi. Accordingly, each of Head and Shoulders and Dr. Choi
was deemed to be interested in 504,223,268 Shares held by Brighten Path under
the SFO.

(2) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner). Accordingly, Excite Investments Holdings Limited was deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(3) Glorious Future Fund SPC was the limited partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,,
whose management shares were held by AG Investment Management Company
Limited in its capacity as investment manager. AG Investment Management
Company Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Tang Yuk Fan. Accordingly, each of
Glorious Future Fund SPC, AG Investment Management Company Limited and Mr.
Tang Yuk Fan was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Excite
Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 1T November 2017 and
became unconditional on 2 November 2017. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and/or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are full time or
part time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group); and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time
of making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period of
ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the particular option but
subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option Scheme for
which an option must be held or the performance target which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible participants in
writing (@and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board may
from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
inclusive of, from the date upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the earlier of the date falling 10
years after the adoption date or the termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the eligible participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of business
on the date which falls ten (10) years after the adoption date, after such
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

FRRRMERTEY (@)

THEME

B EA TR RBETHEES 2ED
EHE - EREAERTETGERA TR

RBeE IBRORBHOBH(ZAAREXRE
Bk 3P B IR(E R PR B A P 2 TR (B (i) AR
MREZRZHERAMAC)EEXBERIHMEH
WERPIRZFHRHE K Gi) BORELHEH
ZH{E °

BT 82 F 1

BB AT 8118 B Rk B BARE = 8RN B BARERT 1 (10)
FEAEERRAEREER BRA—BEER -
R HEE - B EEROEARRE  EER
RERT 8 2 RS A B A i T 81 A S AR LE TR
BEARITE 2 EMBRRIDAE BRI RER -

Movements relating to the share options granted during the year ended & ZE — —FEXNA=1THLEFE  F@ECERE
30 June 2021 were as follows: %HX%Z“EDZZHT :
Number of share options
BREHR
At 1July At 30 June Exercise
Date of grant Capacity 2020 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2021 Validity period price
R® R
b St 22 —BR--F
RitiBH 5t th-H g&i 217 BAR g2d8 ARA=TH B TR
HKS
BT
4 December 2017 Business partners 13,691,572 - - - - 13,691,572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
T —tF R —tE+-AmBEE
+=AmA 777t$+ A=H
13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
—tE+-AREE
_7_t¢+ A=H
13,691,572 = = = - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
“E—+F+ZANAZE
“ZHET-AZH
13,691,572 - - - - 13,691,572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
—tE+-AmBEE
,ift¢+ A=A
9 July 2018 Advisor 13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 9July 201810 8 July 2028 157
“E-N\F Eaf —\E+tANBE
+HAAR 777/\¢tﬁ/\El
68457,860 = = = - 684573860
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of the duty of his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the convertible bond as disclosed
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director's connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The following Director is considered to have interests in the business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules, particulars of which are
set out below:

EENHBRBGDAELS

RiE LRI THEEHR BN E R EY
REBMEBBRRALBERHEE 2 LB RAM
- SERIIMT -

Description of business of

Name of entity which business
is considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business

the entity which is
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the

Nature of interest in

Name of Director of the Group business of the Group the entity
WRRELREEBER
HEBBRAREAEERBEK FAEBRAF2EEZ
EEpns RAEBRRFE 2 EREE E3 T REeBRESEME
Mr. Ho Wong Meng Frontier Capital Group Limited and Gaming Executive chairman and
its subsidiary director
Ho Wong Meng %t 4 Frontier Capital Group Limited B HITEERRES

Ko EL B )

Note: Mr. Ho Wong Meng is interested in 41,443,500 shares of Frontier Capital Group

Limited, representing 15% of the number of issued shares of Frontier Capital
Group Limited.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned entities
and the above Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the business of these entities.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or in existence during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the percentage of
the Shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25.0% of the
Company'’s total number of issued Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles, or under the
Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 September 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures and to complying with the statutory
and regulatory requirements with an aim to maximising the Shareholders’
values and interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’ transparency
and accountability. During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code on Securities Transactions”), the standard of which is
no less than the required standard provided in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

The Company, having made specific enquiries of all Directors, was not
aware of any non-compliance with the required standard provided in the
Model Code and the Code on Securities Transactions throughout the year
ended 30 June 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) takes primary responsibility for
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established, and is responsible for the management of the Board and
ensures that all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings. The chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) is primarily responsible for the overall management of
the Group and oversight of the management. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are clearly established. In addition, the Company has established
the executive committee, the audit committee, the nomination committee
and the remuneration committee with respective terms of reference to
assist the Board in focusing on specific matters, fulfill their roles and
functions delegated by the Board, and make any necessary
recommendations of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five Directors, of
whom two are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The names of the Directors during the year and up to
the date of this annual report are set out below:

Executive Directors

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned with effect from 1 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (appointed with effect from 1 January 2021)
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi (resigned with effect from 1 January 2021)

Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship among the
members of the Board are set out in the section headed “Board of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 21 to 24 of this annual report.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter should
be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules), have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at that Board meeting.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

The Board held six meetings during the year ended 30 June 2021. Notice of
not less than 14 days was given to all the Directors for the regular Board
meetings and the Directors were given an opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for the regular Board meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) E=A—de )
The attendance of each Director at the said six Board meetings and the &KEEHE Ll S AESSSZRN_ZE-_FF
AGM held on 3 December 2020 are set out below: T AZBROTZBREAFAS 2 HE X5 0
T
Attendance
HERE
Board
Meetings AGM
EEEgE RRBEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman) EOAREE L (/) 6/6 1/1
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (et ? Ho Wong Meng 4& 4 #1&1)

(Chief Executive Officer) (7T AEE,) 6/6 1/1
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas o2 PR B BR S A (a2 0/0 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors BIAKHTES
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene EEA R4 6/6 1/1
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BIRZEAE 6/6 11
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai o B B (& g A (WaEs) 3/3 0/0
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi ore4) e 2R A7 = (et ) 3/3 1/
Notes: Btet -

(1) Mr. Ho Wong Meng was appointed as an executive Director and the Chief (1)
Executive Officer with effect from 1 September 2020.

) Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas resigned as an executive Director and the Chief 2)
Executive Officer with effect from 1 September 2020.

(3) Mr. Cheng Hong Wai was appointed as an independent non-executive Director (3)
with effect from 1 January 2021.

4) Ms. Lu Gloria Yi resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect 4)
from 1 January 2021.

Ho Wong Meng SE £ Z E BTTE FRITHAH -
BZZE-ZTFNA—BRER-

POEARALEREINTESROTBAR B2 -FF
NA—BBAER -

BEEEEAE T _—F A RAREZETREIF
WITES -

BEZEztE - —F— A BEEHEBYIENTE
=

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 3 December 2020 to  /MNEZEBMEFNR —_ZE-_FTF+ - =HE1T2
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and X ERBEF X & UM ITER - ZEARE N H 2
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor ~ MAR -+ &5t RAZ AN B 7 14 0 2120 -

independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the &R

CERNEEREMESEFE 2B TEFT

independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other  FEFITERERIT T — XN E:H ©

Directors during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules. The non-
executive Directors are subject to the aforesaid retirement requirements
and are appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Each of Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene, Mr. Lau Ka Ho and Mr. Cheng Hong Wai,
who were appointed as independent non-executive Directors, entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment and is subject to the Articles.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each of
them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board’s committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They will
also receive the materials on the operations and business of the Group.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group's
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

TREGHRE

ERg#E)
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gLEE.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records for the
year ended 30 June 2021 and all of them had participated in continuing
professional development activities by attending the training courses,
seminars, workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the year ended 30 June 2021.
A summary of the training received by each of the Directors during the
year ended 30 June 2021 is as follows:

Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley 2SI+

Mr. Ho Wong Meng Ho Wong Meng 7& 4

Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene EHT A
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BRERE
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BERIE S

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman of the Executive Committee)
and Mr. Ho Wong Meng. The primary duties of the Executive Committee
are, inter alia, to advise the Board in formulating policies in relation to the
business operations of the Group, supervise the management to
implement the policies laid down by the Board, make recommendations to
the Board as to the Group's business plans, and oversee the management
and the daily operations of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises three independent non-executive Directors as at
the date of this annual report, namely Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene and Mr. Cheng Hong
Wai, with written terms of reference which are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the
remuneration policy and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and the remuneration of the non-executive
Directors.

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group's performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions. During
the year ended 30 June 2021, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the remuneration policy of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group. The attendance records of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

TREGHRE

THEST

RAFHREH  ARmFHEZE(FHEZES])
B =RBYIENITEFAK - BB 5 58 & (M
ZEEXR) BEESRAREBEELRLE  HE@
BRESESNBIMEERARRBEE - H#E
BEgzI2RARETEE)IARALEES
EARESREEABZFHMBRRER AR
RHIRTERFRR 2 ER M EBERE ZIEFR
ExeRfles  MLENRTEERAKES
MEBAB ZFHM A RIARIERITE R 2 F B A
EReRMES-

EERAEERRERABZHEMDREEAR
BRER WKRB2EASEEE  ERFHMER
RERTRAEE HRBE_ZT-_—FA=1H
HFE - FHEZEEBRITREHE - UWEHA
REAZHFHBEE  UEREZERAEESRER
ABZFMAEESREER FTHEZEENE
ZHERCEEIT

Committee members Attendance
ZEERE HEIRE
Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman) BIRZF LA (EE) /1
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene BEEAEA 1/1
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai "o B B {2 S A (it 1) 0/0
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi Mete? B 25 47 + (fiz2) 11

Notes:

(1) Mr. Cheng Hong Wai was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 January 2021.

) Ms. Lu Gloria Yi resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 1 January 2021.

(1) HBEEREEE-_ZF-_—F-A-HAREZERFHMHE

@ BEZXxta—T—_—F—- A - HEREFHEESK
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprises two independent non-executive Directors and one
executive Director as at the date of this annual report, namely Mr. Cheng
Hong Wai (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Ha Kee Choy
Eugene and Mr. Ho Wong Meng, with written terms of reference which are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia,
to review the structure, size and the composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to complement
the Company's corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman,
the managing Director or the Chief Executive of the Company; and to
nominate and recommend candidates to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
for the Board's approval.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.

In regard to the criteria for evaluating and selecting candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall consider two types of qualifications, as
follows:

l. Characteristics of individual director

Integrity and accountability

Informed judgment

Prudence and maturity

Principled and professional

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee deems
appropriate
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Il. Competenciesin the following areas to ensure the
Board’s overall suitability

Accounting and finance

Law

Industry knowledge

Marketing

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee deems
appropriate

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:

the structure, size and composition of the Board;

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to enable
the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise
and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time and
commitment to the role; and

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination Committee,
the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria and recommend the
most competent candidate to the Board. The Nomination Committee shall
also consider the number of board positions they hold in other firms. After
the Nomination Committee reviewed and considered the candidates, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Detailed background information in relation to potential candidate should
be provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board’s approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter to act
as a Director.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules, (i) every Director
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
all retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (ii)
any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next
general meeting of the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election at the general meeting of the Company. For those who offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM or the other general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall take into account the
fulfillment of duties, contribution, and attendance of Board meetings and
general meetings. The Nomination Committee shall also access whether
the retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board. Based on the recommendations made by
the Nomination Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the AGM
or other general meeting of the Company, and provide available
biographical information of the retiring Directors in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders to make
informed decision on the re-election of such retiring Directors at the AGM
or other general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members possess the
relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the business operations of the
Group with several of them also possess professional qualifications. The
Nomination Committee considers that an appropriate mix of skills,
experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on the Board is maintained
and therefore no measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; to
assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor its
implementation; to review the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; to recommend the appointment of new Directors; and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are
set out below:

TREGHRE

RAZEET (H)
RBEZEEKE Y HEDEHIIMT

Committee members Attendance
ZEENE IR
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (Chairman) ®ete? ERESTAE (FE) Wy 0/0
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene BEHA %A 1
Mr. Ho Wong Meng "ete Ho Wong Meng %t 4 (#72 11
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas et [0 S R 4 AE (M) 0/0
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi Mo B 25 47 - (it 1/1
Notes: Kfat -

1) Mr. Cheng Hong Wai was appointed as the chairman and a member of the (1) BRELEEZTARBZESEERKE BT

Nomination Committee with effect from 1 January 2021. ——F—A—H#EK-

(2) Mr. Ho Wong Meng was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 September 2020.

(3) Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 September 2020.

4) Ms. Lu Gloria Yi resigned as the chairman and a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 1 January 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors, as at the date of this annual report namely Mr. Ha Kee Choy
Eugene (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lau Ka Ho and Mr. Cheng
Hong Wai, with written terms of reference which are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. At least
one of the members of the Audit Committee possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualification as defined under the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, inter alia, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditor, to review the financial information of
the Group, and to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management functions of the Group.

During the year, the Audit Committee held six meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.
The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor not less than twice
to discuss the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group
during the year and had reviewed the interim report and the annual report
of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

BEREET (®)
EREEEKE Y HEREHIIMT

Committee members Attendance
EEEHE R
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene (Chairman) BHEHARA(FE) 6/6
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BIRREE 6/6
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai efe? B B (& 4 A (i) 11
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi et [EZE 47 + (Mit2) 5/5
Notes: Bt -

(1) Mr. Cheng Hong Wai was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 1 January 2021.

) Ms. Lu Gloria Yi resigned as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
1 January 2021.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the remuneration in relation to audit
services paid or payable to the auditor of the Company was HK$1,400,000
and the remuneration in relation to non-audit services (including review of
interim results and other non-audit services) paid or payable to the auditor
of the Company and its affiliated firm was HK$570,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to
time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the
Group; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure

in the Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are established in order to carry on the business of the entity in an orderly
and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management policies,
safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness and
accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage the
identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential effects of
any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed the
significant risks in this annual report. In addition, the Group has adopted a
policy to handle and disseminate the inside information of the Group,
which was designed based on “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm to perform the internal audit function to carry out the review on the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered the controls over the financial, operational and compliance of the
Group. The internal audit function of the Group considered the scale of
operations of the Group and resources available and its review was based
on tests of controls, inspection of the related documents and discussion
with the relevant personnel of the Group.

After the internal audit function conducted the review, the internal audit
function submitted its review report to the Audit Committee with the key
audit findings and recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group which were also presented at the
Board meeting. The internal audit function concluded that no significant
deficiency in the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group was found during the review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared by
the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group's accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and include the
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor of the Company on the
Independent Auditor’'s Report are set out on pages 95 to 102 of this annual
report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Chun Kit (“Mr. Wong"), is engaged and appointed by the
Company from an external secretarial services provider as its Company
Secretary. The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Dr.
Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, an executive Director. Mr. Wong confirmed that he
has received 15 hours professional trainings under the requirement of Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Articles and applicable
legislation and regulations.

1. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and an EGM shall be held within two (2)
months after the date of the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of the date of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene an EGM, the Shareholder(s) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by such
Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to convene an
EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company to such Shareholder(s).

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning the
EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

4. An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.
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AMENDMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 30 June 2021. The consolidated version of the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles is available
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company's
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.
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INTRODUCTION

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”, and together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is principally engaged in the business of
hotel operations, leasing of properties equipped with entertainment
equipment and live poker events operations. The Group operates a hotel
complex in Metro Manila in the Philippines. Hotel facilities include, but are
not limited to, restaurants, a business center, a swimming pool and a
fitness center. The Group has a responsibility to maximize shareholder
returns, which is one of the key elements to reinforce the foundation of the
Group for long-term development and success. This is achieved not only
through enhancing the Group’s financial strength, but also by fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility.

The Group believes sustainability is the key to success and has integrated
this concept into its business strategy. In order to pursue a sustainable
business model, the Group has implemented the principles of sustainable
development at operational levels, integrated environmental, social and
governance ("ESG") aspects into its management system and taken
corresponding measures in its governance perspective.

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
summarizes the ESG initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

Reporting Period

The ESG Report covers the financial year from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021
(the “Reporting Period” or “2021").
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Boundary
The reporting boundary of the ESG Report includes:

the Group's activities in the Hong Kong headquarters and Macau
office; and

the Group’s core business of leasing of properties and hotel
hospitality business in the Philippines, which accounts for the
majority of the Group’s total annual revenue in the Reporting Period.

The significance of the impact on the Group’s policies and financial
performance of different business activities were taken into consideration
when deciding on the components included in the ESG Report.

As the Group's core business is conducted in the Philippines, the Group
considers the environmental impact of the Hong Kong headquarters and
Macau office to be insignificant. As a result, the ESG Report does not cover
the environmental data of the Group's operations in Hong Kong and
Macau, while the disclosure on social information includes Hong Kong,
Macau and the Philippines.

During the Reporting Period, the Group extended the reporting boundary
to include its activities in the Macau office so as to improve stakeholders’
understanding of the Group's ESG performance.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”) in Appendix 27
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Further Information

The Group values feedback from its stakeholders. If you have any questions
or suggestions regarding the ESG Report or the Group’s performance in
sustainable development, please feel free to contact us by emailing to
enquiry@ientcorp.com.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has adopted the following reporting principles, namely
materiality, quantitative and consistency in the preparation of the ESG
Report.

Materiality: The Group determines the impact of various ESG issues on
the Group's operations and its stakeholders through an extensive survey.
Based on the results of the stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment survey, the Group identifies material ESG issues and makes key
disclosures.

For further details, please refer to the section headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “"Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: Where feasible, the Group makes records and calculates
quantitative information. For environmental data, the Group refers to the
Stock Exchange’s “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs". The quantitative data of social Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI") in the ESG Report come from the statistical
records of relevant departments.

Consistency: Where feasible, the Group uses consistent data statistics to
collect ESG data. If there are any changes that may affect comparison with
previous reports, the Group will add comments to the corresponding
content of the ESG Report.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present you the
ESG Report, demonstrating in detail the Group's approach and
performance in terms of sustainable development for the financial year
ended 30 June 2021.

The Group strives to create values for its shareholders while fulfilling
corporate social responsibility. Other than maintaining service quality, the
Board is ultimately responsible for overseeing the Group's corporate
governance as well as the overall ESG management approach. The Board
has a supervisory role in the data collection, drafting and review of the ESG
Report. Information about the Group’s ESG governance structure is stated
in the section headed “Governance for Sustainability”.

To prioritize the material ESG-related issues, the Board and the ESG Working
Group assess the significance of multiple ESG topics with reference to
different stakeholders’ opinions by constantly communicating with the
Group's stakeholders and regularly inviting them to participate in a
materiality assessment. Information about the stakeholder communication
channels and materiality assessment conducted by the Group is stated in
the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” respectively. In order to gain a deeper understanding of
stakeholders’ expectations of the Group’s sustainable development, the
Group will further strengthen its communication with stakeholders and
formulate relevant sustainable development policies and measures with
reference to their opinions to enhance the Group'’s ESG performance.

The Group strives to reduce its impact on the environment to safeguard its
sustainable business growth. The Group is aware that its hotel operations
have environmental impacts such as air pollutant emissions, greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions, waste disposal, energy consumption and water
consumption. As a corporate which upholds corporate social responsibility,
the Group has been adopting measures to reduce its environmental
impacts on different areas and regularly reviews the effectiveness of such
measures. In addition, the Group acknowledges the importance of
continuous improvement on its ESG performance. The Group believes
setting ESG-related targets can enhance the Group's commitment to
corporate social responsibility and allow the Group's stakeholders to better
understand the ESG performance of the Group. As a result, the Group has
set ESG targets on topics that are material to the Group. Information about
how the Board reviews the progress made against ESG-related targets is
stated in the sections headed “Review of the Progress Made against ESG-
related Targets”.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD (Continued)

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow
directors, the management team and all employees for their contributions
to the Group's sustainable development. | would also like to thank all
stakeholders for their prolonged care and support. In the future, the Group
will continue to improve its governance and transparency, provide quality
services and focus on efficient use of resources so as to fulfill corporate
social responsibility and pursue a sustainable future.

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Chairman

GOVERNANCE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

The Group has established the ESG Working Group to promote a company-
wide awareness of ESG issues. The ESG Working Group is comprised of
senior management and general staff with adequate knowledge on ESG,
its members span across different business departments, including the
operational, human resources and finance departments. They are
responsible for executing the Group’s ESG measures, collecting and
analyzing ESG data, giving suggestions to the Board on ESG issues and
reviewing ESG-related matters across the Group's different departments.

With the assistance of the ESG Working Group, the Board continuously
evaluates and monitors the Group’s ESG performance, risk and
opportunities. The members of the ESG Working Group regularly meet
each other to discuss the effectiveness of the Group’s policies and
procedures and seek opportunities to improve the Group's ESG
performance. The ESG Working Group reports its findings to the Board
where appropriate so that the Board can find solutions to manage the
Group's ESG risks and opportunities.

REVIEW OF THE PROGRESS MADE AGAINST ESG-
RELATED TARGETS

The Group has conducted research on target setting and sustainability
planning. Through the Board’s oversight of the Group’s ESG issues and the
assistance of the ESG Working Group, the Group has set up ESG-related
targets on relevant KPIs to drive positive changes in its daily operations.
The Board delegates the ESG Working Group to evaluate the Group's
progress towards the targets. The ESG Working Group utilizes the data
collected to compare the performance between different years so as to
keep track of the progress made against the Group’s ESG-related targets.
As a result, the targets serve as a tool for the Group to assess its ESG
performance on a yearly basis. The ESG Working Group strives to meet the
targets by promoting environmentally friendly practices and increasing
employees’ awareness of ESG. The targets and environmentally friendly
initiatives are believed to help raise the employees’ awareness of
environmental protection, which ultimately optimize the ESG performance
of the Group in the long run.
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RiE  dE2REREHS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG performance. To better understand and address their
concerns and expectations, the Group has maintained close
communication with its key stakeholders on a regular basis through various
channels. The Group will continue to strengthen its collection of
information, so as to enhance its reporting performance.

The following table summarizes stakeholders’ participation channels and
their concerns and expectations. While the Group was managing all ESG
affairs which affect its businesses and stakeholders, it identified the material
issues in each sector of its business. The materiality of these issues is
identified through stakeholder engagement exercises, management
reviews and industry analysis.

Stakeholders
B0E

Key Communication Channels
FEEBERE
Shareholders/investors General meetings

Annual Financial reports
Announcements and notices
Company website

R REE RS
FEMBRE
NENMBES
NEABh

Hotel guests Customer service
Customer hotline and email

Customer satisfaction survey

BEER P R
BB R ER

EPREERE
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Concerns and Expectations

BiEzEERYHE

Financial performance

Sustainable business development
Environmental responsibility
Accurate, complete and timely information disclosure
Shareholders’ rights and interest
Corporate governance

MsRE

AREEBER

RIREME

BRHR R - ST R

PR ER A ) K i 2

*rERER

Customers' satisfaction
Protection of customers’ privacy
Environmental responsibility
Customer service hotline and email enquiry
Hotel safety and security
Compliant management
Emergency response
BEFmER

REZPILE

RFEME
BEPRGEAGENEHEH
BERZERRE

RREE

FEH R = FE W
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholders
BhE

Employees

7l
i

Suppliers

HER

Communities/
Non-governmental
organizations

i, FEBUR AR B

Key Communication Channels

FEBBRE

Regular performance appraisals
Frequent meetings
Training programs

EHIRIR S
REEH

EFIERIE

Business meetings
Order/contract execution
Tele-conferences

ESVEE
I-HEYE VAL

AT 2%
E=N =

Donations and support to the
community
ESG reports
At e B R R R T

W R REAEE

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve its ESG
performance and create greater value for the wider community on a

continuous basis.

Rk dE2RERES

FnEZHE &)

Concerns and Expectations

BiEzEERHE

Career development
Occupational health and safety
Remuneration and benefits
Diversity and equal opportunity
ERER

BERELRZE
M K rE A

EPMEI ST 3

Corporate contribution
Product quality

Fair and open procurement
Stable relationship
PEER

EnEE

DR AFAEREE

B BR

Contribution to society
Environmental responsibility
Compliance with laws and regulations
HEaR

RIFEME

BTIRRER

AEBEREEFNEHRNNZHERR HER
ERRER  URHERBEAHEREE NEE-
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees who are responsible for the key
functions of the Group have participated in preparing the ESG Report and
assisted the Group to review its operations, identify key ESG issues and
assess the importance of these issues to its businesses and stakeholders.
The Group has compiled a questionnaire in reference to the identified
material ESG aspects to collect the information from relevant departments

and business units of the Group.

The following materiality matrix summarizes the Group’s material ESG

issues as set out in the ESG Report:

EEMFME
EEERARASEEERENE IR
B e RkBramE YR AKERTHEE -
HAIBESRIRE  He kB aRA NI GRENHE
EBEFNENERNE - AREZ2ECHFNEXN
RE 4@ kELBERREAS  ARAAKER
RAEE D R EGEAIREER -

82

E AN

ATEZRMREEMIRE g
MERRE  HENERAEE

K EaHRE PrE

Materiality Matrix for 2021

High —_—aE — icEh /
, e —E_—FEEfEE
o
%) - -
O Service quality
a o| BmEE
% Customer privacy and data
Z = SR L B Hotel security o | Anti-corruption
E & o | EEz2
PN
E i Devel t and traini
z evelopment and training -
@ *{SE% Supply chain management [ R R ] © Reglzll/?tory ijplylance
B K s — HAREHRE
A R o
<X ° =
EQ \ﬂ Employment practices and
= 7= labour standards
= iz 2 RIIE I RS T%AR|
o
T =
Y 4
=
%
7=,
o
w —
E Eimssm/‘ns
= HER)
—
[N
<
Low SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS High
& ©F  BERUESYENEEM =

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective
management policies and internal control systems for its ESG issues, and

confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance with the

requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1.

Emissions

The Group dedicates its effort to minimize the impact of the
Group's business operations on the environment and believes
that it is responsible for protecting the environment.
Therefore, the Group has implemented the Environmental
Protection Policy to reduce its environmental footprint and
ensure compliance with environmental laws and regulations.
The policy emphasizes the need to conserve natural resources
and energy. It also sets out guidelines on waste disposal and
GHG emissions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste including, but not limited to, the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap.311) of Hong Kong, Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap.354) of Hong Kong, Environmental Law (Law
No. 2/91/M) of Macau, Republic Act No. 4850 of the Philippines
and The Philippine Clean Air Act (Republic Act No. 8749).

In response to the growing concerns about air pollution and
climate change, the Group has set forth the target of reducing
the intensities of air emissions and GHG emissions by at least
5% by the end of the financial year from 1 July 2029 to 30 June
2030 (“2030") compared to the financial year from 1 July 2018
to 30 June 2019 (“2019"). Also, the Group targeted to maintain
zero non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
air and GHG emissions. The Group will continue to implement
its Environmental Protection Policy in order to pursue its
targets.

Rk dE2RERES

Al. BEERD

AEEB B AREENER L ELIR
BERNTERERE  TRRBRE
RER/EEME - Bt N"EECHTT
RRBERIAR D HIRE B B R R E
STIRBDAEMER B RER R AR
EARRBRMEROBEN - KEE
IRHIE B REYEE MR E R BTN
M3E3

PR HRE - REBIY NABEAE
REBERKEEREHER - mKKL
TS  EEREZEEEMNE
EMMEBARMERZEH - BEE
FRNEBZERISRE HIEF (31
) BEBUMESIEA(F354F) -
SEPYIR A B K (5B 2/91/MSRE ) »
JE 1 & H 1 B 3% (Republic Act) &8 4850
ERIFREERZFA(EMELSE
8749 f§) o

RN ZE RS R RIS <8 E
AEBEBERENEEREERE
REEZRFEETAR =

FHrA—HE_E=ZTF,A=1+H
W BERE ([ —E=4 |) F/KpA
BR-_E—N\FtA—HEZZ—N
FERAZTHNFREE(=ZZ—Hh
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
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A1.

Emissions (Continued)
Air Emissions

The Group's major air emissions are generated from the use of
fossil fuels for cooking purposes in the hotel kitchens, by
generators for electricity generation, as well as by vehicles. The
types of air emissions generated from the Group's operations
include nitrogen oxides (“NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and
particulate matter (“PM"). The Group promotes the
minimization of air emissions generated by the Group.
Therefore, the Group has formulated a series of policies to
avoid excessive air emissions. The air pollutant reduction
measures include installing devices to regulate the power
output of the generators in the Group's hotel, as well as
encouraging employees to carpool and drive less. During the
Reporting Period, the NOx, SOx and PM emissions of the
Group were approximately 111.9 kg, 0.2 kg and 9.7 kg,
respectively.

GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions are refrigerants, the fuel
consumed by the Group’s vehicles and electricity
consumption resulted from the Group’s daily operations.

In order to mitigate the GHG emissions, the Group has
adopted various energy conversation measures and waste
reduction measures. Relevant measures are described in the
sections headed “"Energy Consumption” and “Waste
Management”.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1.

Emissions (Continued)
GHG Emissions (Continued)

The following table shows the Group's GHG emissions during

Rk dE2RERES

A. RIFE#)
Al. BB (&)
SBE RN ()
TRIFRBERE R EBMFEES

the Reporting Period. BERBEEL -
2021
Indicators’ BE —E-—F
Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions 2 (tCO»e) B (8BE1) BEEREER?
(BE=—RRES 341.30
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions LR (BE2) RERBEHENC
(tCOz) (BE-—EtirEE) 5,893.02
Total GHG emissions (tCO:e) BEREENAE
(B_—FtRER) 6,234.32
Intensity of GHG emissions * BERBHREE
(tCOze/million HKD revenue) (=g tREE
BEBITHA) 96.06
Notes: Bisr

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, including but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an
ESG Report — Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange, the latest released emission
factor of HK Electric Investments Limited, “2015-2017 National Grid
Emission Factor” from the Department of Energy of the Republic of
the Philippines and the “Global Warming Potential Values” from the
IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5).

2. Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions include emissions from fuel
combustion at stationary sources and mobile sources as well as
refrigerant consumption. Compared to the previous ESG Report,
more types of emission sources, including petrol used by vehicles
and refrigerant consumption, are included in the calculation of
direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions.

3. Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions include emissions
resulting from electricity generation.

4. During the Reporting Period, the Group's total revenue was
approximately HK$64,900,000. The data is also used for calculating
other intensity data.

1. BERBEERBEN—SItLREES
iR WER (BREERER) 7 &R
TR ERABERETHIEES %M
HAEREREETE XS R
HRAEIZAE | - B FTEE M Y [ I (A 1
RIS REBRE — W= &
ERRESEIRERES | BERES
REBR AR R EMAPERAT - JE
REAMBLERBEGN [ —AF
E-T—+tF2HREREREH]
(2015-2017 National Grid Emission
Factor) * AR —ZF— P4 IPCC 55 7R AT
B ¥R (ARS) B [ R BRAE(LEREE] -

2. B (8E) )R = REBHNBEEER
KBEREORE A G LR SISH - &
E—HEBE  HERELARELER B
Z IR BEORR (BRI EE RN
MR FERELHE) MAER (EE )R
EREEHE -

3 BRME(RE)REREAKEER
TEHALEH -

4, RmEHE AEEBZ2RKALN
/64,900,000 7T © B BRI S AR
FIEHMERE R

Annual Report 4% 2020/21 61



International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER R A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B AHBRER

HE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
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A1.

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management

The Group is aware that proper waste management is the key
to waste management, so the Group has established
guidelines on the management and disposal of waste. Waste
generated is categorized into hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste, which are collected and handled separately.

Hazardous Waste Management

As the Group operates a hotel, various activities such as the
operation of restaurants and maintenance of hotel rooms
generate hazardous waste. The major types of hazardous
waste managed by the Group include fluorescent light bulbs
and containers of chemicals. The Group strictly follows its
Policy on Handling Hazardous Materials and Chemical when
handling hazardous waste to ensure the storage, collection,
treatment and disposal of hazardous waste comply with the
applicable statutory requirements. To avoid leakage, all the
hazardous waste must be stored in a designated location and
properly labeled, before being handled by accredited third-
party hazardous waste haulers and treaters.

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
approximately 0.83 tonnes of hazardous waste in total, which
included approximately 0.49 tonnes of fluorescent light bulbs
and approximately 0.34 tonnes of containers of chemicals. The
intensity of hazardous waste was approximately 0.01 tonnes
per million Hong Kong dollars revenue.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1.

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)

Non-hazardous Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste is generated from the daily activities of
the kitchens of the hotel restaurants and administrative work.
The major types of non-hazardous waste include waste
cooking oil and paper.

During the Reporting Period, the group generated
approximately 4.08 tonnes of non-hazardous waste, which
included approximately 3.32 tonnes of waste cooking oil and
approximately 0.76 tonnes of paper. The intensity of non-
hazardous waste was approximately 0.06 tonnes per million
Hong Kong dollars revenue.

The Group has adopted the following environmentally friendly
initiatives to reduce the amount of waste being disposed of at
landfills. Such initiatives include, but are not limited to:

Encourage duplex printing;

Separate waste by wet/organic and dry/non-organic
categories;

Separate metal, paper and plastic from other waste for
recycling; and

Encourage hotel guests and staff to recycle waste
resources.

Through these measures, the Group has achieved positive
results. Recyclable waste collected by the Group is sent to
recyclers for treatment.

To reaffirm the Group’s commitment to reduce waste, a target
of reducing the intensity of hazardous waste produced by at
least 5% by the end of 2030 compared to the 2019 baseline
has been set. Also, the Group targeted to maintain zero non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to the
generation and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. The Group will continue to implement its waste
reduction measures in order to pursue its targets.

Rk dE2RERES
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. BRIE#)
A2. Use of Resources A2. ERER
When the Group operates its hotel complex, electricity and AEBELEERELAAERREE
water are frequently consumed, and the Group has HEBE D RKER  IAEBEEHIE
established the Environmental Protection Policy to govern the RRBRUABEERER - ZBRE
use of resources. The policy aims to achieve higher energy EIR SRS WR D T ER Yk
efficiency and reduce the unnecessary use of materials. 5 -
Energy Consumption BEJRFEFT
The following table shows the Group's energy consumption TRERNNBEHAEAEE T EEK
during the Reporting Period. HIBEIRERE -
2021

Indicator BE ot
Direct energy consumption (000 kwh) HiEEREZ (000 T ) 973.30
Diesel (000 kWh) 4858 ('000 F ELBF) 185.95
LPG (000 kWh) RAL AR (1000 T ELAF) 696.34
Petrol (000 KWh)' Y8 (1000 F ELR) ! 91.01
Indirect energy consumption (000 kWh) Iz LIRS (1000 T FLAF) 9,856.20
Purchased electricity (‘000 kWh) BEE (000 T RE) 9,856.20
Total energy consumption (000 kWh) BERAFEE ('000 T FBF) 10,829.50
Intensity of energy consumption RREERE

("000 kWh/million HKD revenue) ("000 TELE "BEEITHEA) 166.86

64

Note:
1. Compared to the previous ESG Report, the Group extended the

reporting scope to include the energy consumption resulted from
the use of petrol.

Reducing energy consumption is an important step to protect
the environment as well as reduce the Group's operating
costs. To improve the Group's energy efficiency, it has adopted
various measures, these measures include:

Use LED lights in the hotel rooms;

Install variable-frequency drive to regulate the power
output motors;

Reduce the number of fluorescent tubes; and

Drive less and carpool.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

Energy Consumption (Continued)

To reaffirm the Group’s commitment to efficient energy use,
the Group targeted to reduce the intensity of electricity
consumption in the following year. In the long run, the Group
targeted to reduce its intensity of energy consumption by at
least 5% by the end of 2030 compared to the 2019 baseline.
The Group will continue to implement its energy-saving
measures in order to pursue its targets.

Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total water
consumption was approximately 76,854 m? the intensity of
water consumption was approximately 1,184.19 m? per million
Hong Kong dollars revenue.

The Group encourages all employees and guests to develop
the habit of conserving water consciously. The Group has
been strengthening its water-saving promotion, posting
water-saving slogans, and guiding employees to use water
reasonably. Through these water conservation measures, the
employees’ awareness of water conservation has been
enhanced.

To reaffirm the Group’s commitment to water conservation,
the Group targeted to reduce the intensity of water
consumption in the following year. In the long run, the Group
targeted to reduce its intensity of water consumption by at
least 5% by the end of 2030 compared to the 2019 baseline.
The Group will continue to implement its water conservation
measures in order to pursue its targets.

As the Group's operations are mainly based in Hong Kong and
the Philippines, the Group does not have any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose.

Packaging Materials

Since the Group's operations did not involve any industrial
productions, the Group did not consume a significant amount
of packaging materials during the Reporting Period. The
disclosure on the total packaging material used for finished
products does not apply to the Group.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

66

A3.

A4,

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group works tirelessly to mitigate the environmental
impacts of its activities through adopting industry best
practices, targeted at reducing natural resources consumption
and emissions. The Group's Environmental Protection Policy is
established to ensure its impacts on the environment and
natural resources are regularly monitored and properly
managed.

The Group has guidelines to encourage its employees to
reduce water and paper consumption, promote the use of
electronic copies and collect recyclables items. In addition, the
Group has its wastewater treatment plant in place to remove
contaminants from sewage so that the quality of the
discharged sewage meets the requirements of the Philippines’
Laguna Lake Development Authority (the “LLDA"). To comply
with the Republic Act 4850, the Group submitted the Quarterly
Self-Monitoring Reports to LLDA on time. Through complying
with the relevant environmental protection laws and
regulations, the activities of the Group do not have a
significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

Climate-related issues are affecting societies around the world
and therefore it has also impacted the Group’s business. The
Philippines, one of the locations where the Group operates, is
particularly susceptible to climate-related issues such as super
typhoons and flooding. The Group acknowledges the far-
reaching impact of climate change and is eager to combat
climate change proactively.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RE#)
A4. Climate Change (Continued) A4, RIRE1L(E)

In view of the seriousness of climate change, the Group
identified a type of climate-related risks that might
significantly impact the Group, namely acute physical risks. As
climate change is causing extreme weather events to be more
frequent and severe, the Group might encounter situations
where the Group's hotel operation being adversely affected or
the hotel needs to be closed under unpleasant weather such
as typhoons and heavy rain. The hotel business is one of the
Group's major sources of income, so the adverse impact on
hotel operation would cause a direct negative impact on the
Group's revenue. In addition, the extreme weather events
would prevent people from traveling, the reduction in the
number of tourists would also reduce the revenue from the
hotel. If extreme weather damages the hotel facilities, the
Group will experience a loss of assets. Therefore, the Group
may be impacted by the acute physical risks due to climate
change.

The Group has taken different actions to manage the above-
mentioned acute physical risks. For example, the Group has
formulated contingency plans for emergencies so that loss
can be reduced or avoided when extreme weather affects the
Group's operating sites. In addition, the Group has purchased
insurance against risks of property loss. It is believed that the
potential financial impacts can be minimized with adequate
preparations for extreme weather events.

Other than climate-related issues which have impacted the
Group, the Group is aware that transition risks associated with
climate-related issues may significantly impact the Group. As
different countries are working on the goals of the Paris
Agreement, the Group expects the laws and regulations
related to climate change are going to be more stringent. As a
result, the Group may face legal risks, which is a type of
transition risks, and may need to bear higher operating costs
to comply with regulatory changes.
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A4. Climate Change (Continued)

To manage the legal risks that may be brought along by the
climate crisis, the Group has taken an array of actions. First, the
Group constantly monitors any changes in laws or regulations.
Second, the Group has sought compliance consulting services
to reduce legal risks. Third, the Group has been taking
comprehensive measures to protect the environment,
including measures aimed at reducing GHG emissions. By
going beyond current compliance requirements, the Group
has a better chance to adapt swiftly to regulatory changes.

The Group is devoted to minimizing risks that may derive from
climate change. The Group has communicated its actions on
climate change mitigation and adaptation to the public via
multiple channels, particularly the ESG Report. Through
reporting the Group'’s improvement on ESG performance, the
Group hopes that the public could understand that the
hospitality industry can help to handle the climate crisis. The
Group cares about sustainability and has been putting effort
into environmental protection. For example, the Group
minimizes the use of single-use items such as plastic tableware
in its hotel, provides toiletries with minimal packaging for
hotel guests and encourages hotel guests and staff to recycle
waste resources.

The Group has integrated climate risks into its internal control
process to holistically take account of climate change.
Through the internal control process, the Group recognized
the risks and opportunities that arose in the transition to a
low-carbon economy. The Group will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the Group's actions on climate change and
enhance its resilience against climate-related issues.
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B. SOCIAL B. #&
B1. Employment B1. {Ef®

The Group supports equal opportunity for all employees
regardless of gender, age, nationality, religion, sexual
orientation, disability, or other personal characteristics. The
Group was committed to providing an inclusive and
harmonious workplace to all employees.

The Group has established its employment policies to fulfill its
vision on people-oriented management. Terms regarding
recruitment, compensation, promotion, working hours and
rest periods, diversity, equal opportunity and dismissal are
stated on the Employee Handbook, which was distributed to
every employee. The Group's policies are in place to ensure
that reported incidents of discrimination are handled fairly and
appropriately.

To protect human rights, the Group ensures that employees
do not work against their wills. Employees are encouraged to
finish their work efficiently within the working hours. It
guarantees to arrange at least 1 rest day per week for every
employee.

During the Reporting Period, there were no incidents of
discrimination being reported. The Group will continue to
increase employees’ awareness of equal opportunity in the
workplace.

The Group strictly follows the labor standards pursuant to
provisions of the Labor Code of the Philippines and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group's effort was
recognized by the Department of Labor and Employment in
National Capital Region for the fifth conservative year, as the
Group has obtained the Certificate of Compliance on General
Labor Standards since 2017. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to employment including, but
not limited to, Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong
Kong, Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) of Hong Kong,
the Labour Relations Law (Law No. 7/2008) of Macau and the
Labor Code of the Philippines.

AEBXFH=BREE(TWIERN - F
e~ BIAE - RE - MHEA - BASHE
EARR) TSRS - AEEHS
RERESRKEBTNBN TS

AEEEHERBHE - AEKERE
AABANEESTERE - BHEA
B HE - B TERERAKR:
Zoft - FERE MRET E R R
FNEEFM  YERZLESER -
AEBECHIERBARE - BERQFE
2R IE 2 AR EF

RREARE AEERFREEERT
tE- AEBEHBEEERDERAS
MUK TIE REREBREERHE
FRZDVENKRERE -

REBEMRE - SEEHREREN - K
SESEERS THESMAERY T

EHENTE

A& B R 1R 3E 2 B 55 ))& # (Labor
Code) K H A3 AR ~ VAR MR E B
BEFETER - REBBE_T—+
FERF—MRBITLEASGHIE
SENSNEERFESERgHE
& 45 T N & /% 3 (Department of labour
and employment in National Capital
Region) AR Al » ARG HIME - A& E
I i AR B E R A T E T E A
BRETRNEBERBEN(E7F) -
BEBREIEREN (F608E) - RFE
BB (R & (55 7/2008 505 12) A R JE 2
B SE A o

Annual Report 4% 2020/21 69



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ45 R A A)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #t& %)
B1. Employment (Continued) B1. & (#&)
The Group’s Workforce KEES T A2
As at 30 June 2021, there were a total of 201 employees in the R—_E-_—FNA=+H AEEH
Group's core business segments, all of whom were full-time BOERDBEE 201 HEE  BESE
employees. The breakdown of the Group’s workforce is as HEL2BEE - AEEME T AR
follows: e -
As at
30 June 2021
R-ZB=-—f
Indicators B ANA=1+H
Number of employees EE A 201
By gender ZIERIE D
Female I 75
Male S 126
By age group REBRARIEI D
18-30 years old 18 E 307% 60
31-49 years old 31 E495% 123
50 years old or above 505% 3K A 18
By region R = E 5
Hong Kong and Macau B RIBRPT 14
The Philippines JEEE 187
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. &)
B1. Employment (Continued) B1. {EfE (&)
Retaining Talents AL
Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. To retain EERAESEZBEENEE - BKER
and motivate employees, the Group offers a competitive FEEREE  AEERTZESIIEM
remuneration package to each employee. The remuneration BEEBFINTNGTE AEESE
packages provided for employees are reviewed annually, HEREEERENTHEFEETR
where subsequent adjustments will be made based on the B BERIBEEEMNRER - £REM
employee’s performance, experiences and market standards. SIREEITHAE - IR T HBSN - HAith
Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits include BTRNeFEEHEAES MK B
mandatory provident fund contribution, medical insurance BRI REBEBRISIELL - R®E
coverage and performance-related discretionary bonuses. HAE AEEHFSEIRAEXLY
During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a turnover 42.8% °
rate of approximately 42.8%.
2021
Indicators EE —B-—F
Number and rate (%) of employee turnover 1 &7 2k A B 7 2k 2 (%) 86 (42.8)
By gender ZIERIE D
Female pegi 51 (68.0)
Male Bt 35 (27.8)
By age group RERRAEREISD
18-30 years old 18 F 307% 48 (80.0)
31-49 years old 31 24958 24 (19.5)
50 years old or above 50 %8 A 14 (77.8)
By region i@ &
Hong Kong and Macau B KR 1(7.1)
The Philippines JFEEE 85 (45.5)
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SOCIAL (Continued)
B2. Health, Safety and Security

The health and safety of guests and employees at the Group's
hotels, clubs and properties are the Group's top priority, thus
the Group has established effective systems and policies such
as the Alcohol-free Workplace Policy, Drug-free Workplace
Policy, Smoke-free Workplace Policy and policies on
prevention of communicable diseases. Occasionally, the
Group may face unstable conditions in the Philippines such as
terrorism and social unrest. Health and safety committee
meetings are held regularly to review the performance of the
Group's measures. For the effective implementation of health
and safety measures, regular training is provided to
responsible personnel. Procedures are in place to ensure
compliance with local regulations and other international
occupational health and safety standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards including,
but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Cap. 509) of Hong Kong, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282) of Hong Kong, General Regulation on
Health and Safety in a non-industrial work environment
(Decree-Law 37/89/M) of Macau and Republic Act No. 11058
of the Philippines.

The Group has established policies to ensure safety in the
workplace. Multiple measures are taken to protect employees
from different health and safety risks. For example, an
employee who has symptoms of a contagious disease is not
allowed to enter the Group's premises to prevent the spread
of the disease. In addition, the Group is devoted to creating a
drug-free and alcohol-free workplace. During working hours,
the Group may conduct a random alcohol test or drug test
with its employees, disciplinary actions will be taken
accordingly if the test shows a positive result.
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B3.

Health, Safety and Security (Continued)
Maintaining Zero Workplace Accidents

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued its efforts
to enhance its security and safety management systems.
Specifically, the Group conducted a gap analysis to identify
room for improvement in its operations with reference to the
international standard of security management. The Group
will continue to implement more measures to improve
occupational health and safety.

The Group is committed to building a safety-first culture and
avoid workplace accidents. During the Reporting Period, there
were no reported cases of work-related injuries. Thus, the
Group had zero lost days due to work injury. The Group has
achieved zero work-related fatalities in the past three years.

Other Health and Safety Measures

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group is highly conscious
of the potential health and safety impacts brought to its
employees. Apart from strengthening the sanitation in its
premises to ensure a healthy and safe working environment,
precautionary measures are also taken. All staff members are
required to wear surgical masks or face shields when entering
or staying on the Group’s premises. Anti-epidemic items
including hand sanitizers, disposable gloves, gowns, hairnets,
shoe covers are provided to employees when needed.

Development and Training

Investing in people is a valuable investment that the Group
can make for the sustainability of its business, the opportunity
to learn and grow is a motivation for employees. The Group
offers various development and training programs to all
employees so that they can acquire new skills and knowledge.
The Group will continue to explore and enhance the
effectiveness of its training programs.

To promote a culture of continuous self-improvement, a
performance appraisal is provided annually to ensure that
every employee receives formal feedback on their
performance at least once per year for career planning and
development.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B3.

B4.

Development and Training (Continued)
Talent Management

The Group values the mutual growth and development of
both its employees and the corporate, therefore, the career
development of its staff is highly supported. In addition, the
Group encourages employees to participate in training
programs to enhance their skill sets and understanding of the
hospitality industry.

During the Reporting period, the percentage of employees
trained was approximately 3% (by gender — female: 3%, male:
4%; by employment category — management: 15%, general
staff: 3%), while the average training hours completed per
employee was approximately 0.7 hours (by gender — female:
0.8 hours, male: 0.5 hours; by employment category —
management: 2.3 hours, general: 0.7 hours). Other than formal
training provided by the Group, the employees receive on-
the-job training and attend external training sessions, these
training hours are not recorded by the Group and thus not
included in the disclosure of the ESG Report.

Labor Standards

The Group is well aware that child labor and forced labor
violate fundamental human rights. The Group adopts its Child
Labor Policy, which strictly prohibits child labor and forced
labor. In the recruitment process, the Human Resources
Division collects candidates’ personal data and carefully
checks their identity documents. If a violation of the Child
Labor Policy is discovered, it will be dealt with according to
the stipulation of the Group’s Employee Handbook. In
addition, the Human Resources Division regularly reviews the
employment practices and guidelines on staff recruitment to
ensure that the Group’s recruitment process is in full
compliance with the Child Labor Policy and the relevant laws.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to preventing child labor and forced labor including,
but not limited to, Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong
Kong, the List of jobs restrained to minors (Chief Executive
Order No. 343/2008) of Macau, the List of jobs prohibited to
minors (Chief Executive Order No. 344/2008) of Macau and the
Republic Act No. 9231 of the Philippines.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)
B5. Supply Chain Management

B. #&®
B5. fiEMEERE

The Group has the responsibility to manage environmental
and social risks along its supply chain. The Purchase
Procedures were in place to ensure all suppliers abide by the
laws and regulations in relation to environmental and social
conduct. The Group not only concerns the price, but also labor
standards, human rights, health and safety, and the
environment. The Group regularly communicates its rigorous
standards to all its suppliers. The Group strictly followed the
Purchase Procedures to evaluate the business practices of its
suppliers. During the Reporting Period, over 90% of the
Group's major suppliers have gone through the Purchase
Procedures.

Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers

The Group commits to offering quality services to its
customers and meeting their needs in order to retain its
customers. Therefore, the Group regulates its procurement
procedures to strive for the best value for its customers.

To ensure the comfort of all the guests, the Group ensures all
linen and bathroom amenities in its hotel are in compliance
with a set of standardized specifications. ltems that do not
comply with the required specifications will be rejected and
returned to the corresponding suppliers. If substitutes for the
rejected items are not readily available or goods are urgently
needed, the Group will seek alternative suppliers which meet
the Group's standards and the User Department will check if
the quality variation is acceptable.
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The Group's suppliers are divided into two general categories:
(i) office item suppliers; and (i) hotel item suppliers. At the
office level, suppliers provide routine office items for the
headquarters office, including stationery, toner and paper, etc.
For the hotel segment, most items are procured for hotel
operations and that cover a wide range of items including
beverage, food, linens and cleaning supplies, etc. The Group is
committed to selecting the most suitable suppliers which
meet the Group’s expectations. During the procurement
process, the Purchasing Department assesses the
environmental and social risks of the candidate suppliers with
a high level of objectivity and impartiality. If possible, the
Purchasing Department will select a supplier from at least 3
candidate suppliers according to business needs, data
provided, site inspections and product quality surveys. The
Group also ensures that suppliers will provide efficient after-
sales services before purchasing any products from them.
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SOCIAL (Continued) B.
B5. Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers (Continued)

The Group strives not to over-rely on a specific supplier so as

to ensure the stability of its supply chain and lower the risk of

disruption. When choosing business partners, the Purchasing

Department works with reputable suppliers who provide us

with the best quality products, which meet the Group's

sustainability specifications and align with the Supply Chain

Code of Conduct. The following table is an overview of data in

relation to the Group's key suppliers during the Reporting

Period.

Indicators &

Number of key suppliers FEMREFEAE

By Region =il &5
The Philippines JEREE
Hong Kong B
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Other regions HAtbi =
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers (Continued)

Additionally, the Group requires all suppliers to comply with
the laws when supplying goods and services to the Group.
The Group conducts annual evaluations of the performance of
its suppliers to monitor the environmental and social risks of
the supply chain. The Group also strongly encourages the
Purchase Department to take note of the local government’s
policy on recommended green product specifications. For
example, the Purchasing Department was advised to study
the materials published by the Philippines government
agencies such as the Department of Budget and
Management, Department of Trade and Industry and
Department of Environment and Natural Resources. By
gathering information from multiple government agencies,
the Purchasing Department seeks to develop a process to
procure goods, services and works with a relatively lower
environmental impact throughout their life cycle.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes product and service quality is one of the
key factors in the attainment of customers’ trust. The Group
has established policies to ensure that high-quality products
and services are delivered. In addition, the Group is committed
to handling queries from customers in a timely and efficient
manner. In order to enhance the hotel’s products and services
on a continuous basis, customers are encouraged to provide
feedback on their experience, and the Group has established
procedures for handling customers’ queries and complaints.
Well-trained representatives are always ready to promptly
respond to inquiries, requests and complaints. All complaints
will be reviewed thoroughly and passed to the relevant
departments for follow-ups to prevent similar situations in the
future.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to safety and health, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided. The
relevant laws and regulations include, but are not limited to,
the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362) of Hong Kong,
Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) of Hong Kong, Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong, Consumer
Protection Law (Law No. 12/88/M) of Macau, Macau
Advertising Law (Law No. 7/89/M), Republic Act No. 8293 of
the Philippines and Data Privacy Act (Republic Act No. 10173)
of the Philippines.

Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction

The Group is committed to meeting or even exceeding
customers’ expectations on the Group's service quality. Any
requests, complaints and preferences from guests have to be
properly handled in a courteous, professional and efficient
way. If required, complaints will be followed up by personal
calls or letters. The Group set out guidelines on obtaining the
guests’ preferences when contacting them. If the Group
receives requests or comments from its guests, it will update
the guests’ profiles in the internal system so that their
preferences will be considered in the future. For any
unfavorable comments about the Group's services or facilities,
the responsible Department Head must be informed as soon
as possible to ensure customers’ complaints are handled

properly.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)
B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

B. &%)
B6. EmEE (&)

Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group received 15
complaints regarding hotel facilities or services such as a
temporary suspension of Wi-Fi connections. The complaints
are handled promptly with the help of the hotel staff.

Since the Group predominately engages in hotel operations
and leasing of properties, it was not involved in sales of
products during the Reporting Period. The disclosure on the
total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons does not apply to the Group.

Advertising and labeling

The Group is constantly engaged in the promotion of its
hospitality services through various advertising platforms such
as the Group's official website, social media, posters and
marketing campaigns. The Group ensures no misleading or
false information is delivered to the public in the Group’s
promotional materials. At the Group’s hotel, marketing
campaigns are managed by the management in accordance
with overseas, regional and local media guidelines.

As the Group operates in the hotel industry, its operations do
not involve labeling matters.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognizes the importance of protecting
intellectual property rights. The Group has established a policy
to prohibit the use of illegal or unauthorized computer
programs on computers within the workplace. All the
computer programs used by the Group were purchased from
licensed dealers. The Group closely monitors its business
activities which may involve the use of intellectual property
rights, such as the installation of computer programs. The
Group will take corrective actions as soon as possible once a
case of infringement of intellectual property rights is identified.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Consumer Privacy and Data

To safeguard the personal data of employees, customers and
stakeholders, The Group established privacy policies which set
out (1) the purpose of personal data collection; (2) the use of
personal data; (3) the transfer of personal data; (4) the
retention of personal data; (5) the security on personal data;
and (6) the procedures to access or update personal data with
reference to relevant laws and regulations. The privacy
statement is published on the corporate website to draw
users’ attention. The privacy policies are reviewed by the
management on a regular basis and are updated where
appropriate. Under the privacy policies, the Group enforces
security and control measures relating to computer software,
email, domains and websites. The Group's privacy protection
measures include, but are not limited to:

Only licensed software can be installed on the
computers within the workplace;

Password protected workstations, networks and
applications;

Access to customers’ data is granted to employees
based on their job requirements;

Restrictions on the use of USB ports on computers; and

Anti-virus and anti-spam solutions are installed and
regularly updated.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Consumer Privacy and Data (Continued)

Employees are instructed how to manage the data that they
have access to. The Group pays extra attention to customer
data management and no substantiated complaints regarding
leakage of customer privacy or loss of customer data were
reported during the Reporting Period.

To enhance employees’ understanding of privacy and data
protection, the Group communicates its privacy policies to
employees for their attention on their rights and
responsibilities. In addition, the Group conducts awareness
campaigns and provides data privacy training for employees
in refresher programs. The Group appointed the data
protection officer to conduct compliance inspections of the
Group's privacy protection measures and form a liaison with
the National Privacy Commission, which is the regulating body
of the Data Privacy Act in the Philippines.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains the highest standards of openness,
uprightness and accountability, all the employees are
expected to observe the highest standards of ethical, personal
and professional conduct. The Group does not tolerate
corruption, bribery, extortion, money laundering and other
fraudulent activities in connection with any of its business
operations. The Group has adopted a Code of Discipline,
which contains terms on anti-corruption and the penalties for
offenses against business ethics. All employees and the
management of the Groups are required to strictly comply
with the Code of Discipline, which states that employees are
prohibited, with only limited exceptions, from receiving tips
and gifts from hotel customers, colleagues or suppliers. Any
gifts or favors received, regardless of value, must be reported
to the individual's supervisor. Any matters of genuine concern
will be thoroughly investigated and actions will be taken
accordingly. Training that helps to enhance employees’
understanding of the anti-corruption provisions outlined in
the Code of Discipline is provided to employees if necessary.
In addition, regular corporate governance training, which
covers knowledge on anti-corruption legislation as well as
necessary skills to handle ethical dilemmas at the workplace, is
provided to raise employees’ awareness.
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82

SOCIAL (Continued)

B7. Anti-corruption (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
including, but not limited to, Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201) of Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression of
Bribery in the Private Sector (Law No. 19/2009) of Macau and
Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act (Republic Act No. 3019) of
the Philippines, and there was no concluded legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group's issuer
or its employees.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group has implemented the Whistle-blowing Policy
which enables all employees and third parties such as
customers, suppliers and contractors, to raise any concerns
about improprieties, misconducts, malpractices, wrongdoings,
irregularities, fraud or corruption to the management. Reports
and complaints received will be assessed within a reasonable
timeframe. After which, they will be handled by the
Investigating Panel when necessary. Such policy also aims at
protecting whistle-blowers from fear of reprisal, discrimination
or adverse consequences, the identity of the whistle-blower
will be kept strictly confidential where possible. Any violations
or substantiated allegations will be followed up with effective
remedial action commensurate with the severity of the
offense. The Group reserves the right to refer the case to the
appropriate external regulatory authorities.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B8. Community Investment

B. &%)
B8. #EXRE

The Group recognizes the importance of the welling-being of
the local communities to the continuous growth of its
business. Therefore, the Group follows its Community
Investment Policy to encourage its employees to take part in a
wide range of community activities. The employees are
delighted to devote their time and efforts to give a helping
hand to disadvantaged groups. They have participated in
volunteer services and contributed to the community in
different forms.

Local Procurement

The Group intends to allocate budget to local suppliers as the
Group believes that local procurement can support local
economic development and create job opportunities for the
local community. As a result, the Group preferentially
purchases goods and services from suppliers within the region
close to its operation. During the Reporting Period, more than
95% of its major suppliers were located in the Philippines, the
country that the Group performs most of the business
activities.
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RiE  dE2REREHS

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF FHAMEXZFMERARRIE. 8~k
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED E&R#HEIETIREZES]

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Sections
BEIRERE =]

Governance Structure Message from the Board
ERIRE EXgE

Governance for Sustainability

ARERRER

Review of the Progress Made against
ESG-related Targets
REIRIE g RERTIFRR B RIEM#H®

Stakeholder Engagement
RKihESHE

Materiality Assessment

EBIET(E
Reporting Principles Reporting Principles
e 2R Bl b 2 R Al

Stakeholder Engagement
R &2

Materiality Assessment

BB
Reporting Boundary About the ESG Report — Reporting Boundary
ftE 2 #6 [E] BHRE e kEnmsE — EREE
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B AEREA

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF

EAMAEXZFAERATIRIE

HE

e

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED E&R#EIE5IRARZES] (f“t")

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision [ RBFRrARIE | &

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs  Description
TEEHE - EFH@-
—REEREARERIER gt

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA : ERY

General Disclosure

—RRIER

KPIAT.1
RS AE IR IR ALY
KPI A1.2

RASEAE IR IR A1.2
KPIA13

RS A IR R AL3
KPI A1.4

AR AR WIEIE A1 4
KPI A1.5

RASRAR IR AR A15

KPIA1.6

AR ERIEIZA16

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BERABRIORERBEN  MKREHOEES BF

NEEREMELSH

@ BER:K

(b) BTFHBTABERTENHBEELRD

EEHL o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B A R AR BB -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG

emissions (in tonnes) and intensity.

B (HBE) g REZE(BE2))RERBEERE (B

WEETH) RBE °

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

FESAEREEYESE (LAEGE) REE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and

intensity.

FELREREEYESE A E) REE -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

R FTET L HE R E B IR R R E R E L B IR ATEREREY

W

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes

are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.

HEEEEREESEENMN AL I

R B AR R REDE L B R ERERE) P8R o

AP ET SLEY

Sections/Remarks

B EE

Emissions

Energy Consumption

Waste Management
bZl3ie)

8L

REYE TR

Emissions — Air Emissions
HER) — BERBEIX
Emissions — GHG Emissions
PR — R =R A HE
Emissions — Waste Management
PR — BEYER

Emissions — Waste Management

B — B E e

Emissions
B

Emissions — Waste Management

BERY) — B E R
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF &HEMESXZFIERARIRIE, 48K
s
B

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

B3 i
—REBRBRERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[BEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

—RIE
KPI A2.1

RASAERUIEIR A2
KPI A2.2

RABAARUIEIR A22
KPIA23

RASAEIERA23

KPI A2.4

RASRAE IR A24

KPI' A2.5

RS A IRIR A25

86 Annual Report €% 2020/21

Description

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIERIR - KREAMRE) BBEE -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
and intensity.

RERESNEER LHEEREEERTE o

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BFEKERTE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

R FTET A BERE AN B iR R RERE L B RFT
ERERE) P8R o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

it SKEGE A KR - r] B ERIE R - LA KR PrET S8 A
K Es B IR R AE RS L B R PTERER B P8R -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and with reference to per unit produced.

HXEAABEMBNEE (UNEGE) RGEEEN
(-

AREES IRERS| (&)

[ NE TR ARIE ]R3 ()

Sections/Remarks

B EE

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption
BERER — sER7ER

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BIREER — FK

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

BIREH — RERFER

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BIRER — K

Use of Resources — Packaging
Materials (not applicable —
explained)
BRER — BEMH(TER
— B#RE)
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs

E-3 i
—REBERBEREARER

12 45

HERER

BEABMSXZFAAERA
ERaWmETE EIWé‘%EI(ﬁ)

HE

B/, HER

[FETRERE ] R (&)
Description Sections/Remarks
Hiat B

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHEA3 : RERRARER

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI'A3.1

RAB A IR IR A3
Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHE A4 : RiIzE1L

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A4.1

RA B A8 IR IR A4

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.
REREZETAVBRERANEREKEANZENL
5% o

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

B EBHRBERARNERNEAZERDHENE R
BT ENTE -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

Bl I e S 2 AR %SE%ﬁAFinMEK
IRAE RS E A BUR

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
HlERRAREHETAEEZENERRIXIEEH
BH - REHTE o

The Environment and Natural
Resources

RIERRAEIR

The Environment and Natural
Resources

RERARABR

Climate Change

TR,

Climate Change

RARE(E
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

B3 i
—REBRBRERER

Aspect B1: Employment
EBmEB1 : &R

General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPIB1.1

RS A AR 1R B

KPIB1.2

RASR AR IR 1R B1.2
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Description

ik

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERAFMEEE BEREA TERSE RE T

Ee  Zult  RE\RUAREMEFBREN

@ BE: K

b) BFHBITARERZENBBEEZRAN

BE R -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,

full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.

RIER - EEAL (MEBEGRE)  FRER R

EDMIESEE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

IR - FEARN KRB S HERRKEK

AREES IRERS| (&)

[ NE TR ARIE ]R3 ()

Sections/Remarks

B EE

Employment

Employment — The Group’s
Workforce

B —AEENETAR
Employment — Retaining Talents

BRE—BEAT
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF &
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED %&

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE B -
—MRIFERERERIER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EBEB2: @RERZZE

General Disclosure

—fRIER

KPI B2.1

RASR AR IR 1R B2.1

KPIB2.2

RASAE IR 1R B2.2

KPIB2.3

RASAE IR 1R B2.3

B AEREA

HE

AHESXZARARRIE. #HE8K
AREES IRERS| (@)

[FETRERE ] R (&)
Description Sections/Remarks
fat 40 F

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BARHMZ2TEREIREREEEXBELBEN

@ BE:k

() BEBTFTHBETABERTZENHBEZRRG

BB R} o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each

of the past three years including the reporting year.

BE=ZF(BRERFR)BFRTITHARKILE -

Lost days due to work injury.

IHBBETIIEESE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

T TR AR ) BB S 2 R R 2
BEREA-

2fEE  ARBRERITR

Health, Safety and Security

f2fE - 2 RRE

Health, Safety and Security —
Maintaining Zero Workplace
Accidents

BE Z2RRE —@#FT
eSS PR T B SN

Health, Safety and Security —
Maintaining Zero Workplace
Accidents

e 22 hRE —
eSS PR B AN

Health, Safety and Security

HRFT

Health, Safety and Security —
Other Health and Safety Measures
25 - 22 RRE

R Z2RRE — K2
B 2 FE
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs
TEHE - EH -
—RIFERERERIER

Description

ik

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BT B3 : R RIEI

General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPI B3.1

RAR A SRR B3

KPIB3.2

R E1R B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BT B4 : & T%H|

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B4.1

RS AA RUIETR B4
KPI B4.2

RSB IR 1R B4.2

90 Annual Report €% 2020/21

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRI R E BT TR E #) F 3 R SRR R 4
AIFFNEE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

BRUERINEEEN(NSRERRE PREERE)ED
MXIEEBL

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

BURIREBENE S - BREBTHIIIN TR
2o

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRANIEE T SRHIB T

@ BER:K

b) MTHBETABEATENAMERRAD

HYER) o

Description of measures to review employment practices to

avoid child and forced labour.

g ST R BB PR FE pE LA R B T R oaHIA5 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered.

W 2 MBI ERR B R IE ST ERERH) 22 5K

AREES IRERS| (&)

[ NE TR ARIE ]R3 ()

Sections/Remarks

B EE

Development and Training
R R

Development and Training —
Talent Management

BRI — AT ERE
Development and Training —

Talent Management

BR RSN — AT EE

Labor Standards

LT AR

Labor Standards

LT AR
Labor Standards
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs  Description
TEEHE - EF@-

—REERERERIER Rt

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : HEHEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

—MRIKEE ERHEENRE R ERREBOR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RS AE A FE1R B BB S HHERHA -

KPI'B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

BB AE R B5.2 B AHERHNIED - REFNITHE BB R H
FERBIE - A SABRARIT REEE 0% -

KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and

social risks along the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

RS AE N IE 1R B5.3 A ABEERN R EEEERSNRE MR R AIE

Bl ARAERTRERTE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

RASE 4B R E 1R BS 4 W ERE HER R R E 2 AREERLRGHED

AR AT REEET A

HERERRE

BEEBMSXZAERARRIE. #HER
ERaWmETE EIIN@%EI(%‘%)

SFRLERE | R ()

Sections/Remarks

BE O EE

Supply Chain Management

HEgEER

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers

HEREE — EEBRSEN
HEm

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers

HEHEER — EEREHEN
g

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers

HEEERE — EEREHEN
g

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers

HEEERE — EEREEN
HrER
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—MRIFERERERIER

HERER

HE

EAMARZFAERARIER
ERmEEIIAER @

B/, HER

[FETRBERE ] R (&)
Description Sections/Remarks
Rt ;0 F

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EMEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B6.1

RG4S I TZ B6.1

KPI B6.2

RS AR I TE B6.2

KPI B6.3

RG4S WIETZ B6.3
KPI B6.4

RS A5 I IZ B6 .4

KPI B6.5

RS AE IR 1R B6.S
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Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

FHMREERMRBHREERZE  BES  BHK

LB EE AR E

@ EXE: K
(b) BFHBITAEBEAFENHEBEZNRD
HIE R} o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEXHDE
BB DL
Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

REMGE TR EEFEHMEDK

RN E M MRISVIRFEE AR TTE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

Fsuh BR A N AR FE AN B EE R R A 1B D)

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

HalE 2R ERENNERDWRER -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

iR BEHEBERRE RALREER
BITE

C AR AR TT KRB

Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility — Quality
Assurance and Customer
Satisfaction (Not applicable —
explained)

EREE —HERBELEF
WMEE (TER — BERE)
Product Responsibility — Quality
Assurance and Customer
Satisfaction

EREE —HERBELEF
WEE

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights
EmEf— AZER

Product Responsibility —Quality
Assurance and Customer
Satisfaction

EREE —HERBELEF
wEE

Product Responsibility — Quality
Assurance and Customer
Satisfaction

EmEF —EERIREP
MEE
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs

B3 i
—REBERBERERER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BmEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

—RRIER

KPI B7.1

AR B 1R BT
KPI B7.2

PR AA AIEIR B 2
KPIB7.3

RAS AR IR 1R B7 3

Description

it

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI LIRS - 1% - BGFROERER ¢

@ BE:K

() BEBTFTHBETABEAZENHBEZRRD

EEHL o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

RERPHBETASIHESRELERENE)THA

REOBE RFDRER o

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

P E RS R BRZF - LARABBERITRER % o

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors

and staff.

M mEE R B TRHOREFHE

BEEBMSXZAERARRIE. #HER
ERREEIIARR @

[ NE TR ARIE | R ()

Sections/Remarks

BE O EE

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

R&3F

Anti-corruption — Whistleblowing
Policy

RER — BRMBEK

Anti-corruption

RES
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF #&
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED E&

(Continued)

HE

AR EXZFAERATIRIE. HEK
BHmEE §IW§§§I(@

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued) [ REFRPRE | E (£)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—REERBERENER

Description

ik

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HE&RE

General Disclosure

—RIE
KPI BS.1

RAS 48 AR 1R B8

KPI B8.2

RASR AR IR 1R B8.2
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Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

BB ERTHREEMEL RTEMERELE
BIEEE Z R & FIER A EER o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)
ETEREBE(HE  BREE  BIHFR - @#E -
ik - BE) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

ERIREABAER(WEEXERH) -

Sections/Remarks

B EE

Community Investment

HERRE

Community Investment
HERE

Community Investment —

Local Procurement

HERE — AHRE
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+852 2218 8288

Tel :
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE - +852 2218 8288
+852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

BE:

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT
CORPORATION

Bl IRE B RAE]

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International
Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 238, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the corresponding figures
of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2021, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BYZHAMRES

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Corresponding figures related to disposal of subsidiaries
constituting the discontinued operation

As disclosed in Note 13 and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed the disposal of entire equity interest in
Newworth Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries (together as the “Disposal
Group”) on 29 May 2020, the date on which the Disposal Group ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group. The loss from discontinued operation
approximately to HK$198,824,000 and the gain arising from the disposal of
the Disposal Group of approximately HK$127,962,000 was presented under
the caption “Discontinued Operation” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Subsequent to the disposal, five subsidiaries of the Disposal Group (the
“Five Disposed Subsidiaries”) in the United Kingdom were put into
administration under the law of the United Kingdom. Administrators (the
“Administrators”) were appointed on the same date and have taken control
of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries since then. The directors of the Company
were denied by the Administrators from accessing the relevant financial
and other information of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries and therefore were
unable to provide us with sufficient information and documentary
evidence for our audit for the year ended 30 June 2020. As a result, we
were unable to perform audit procedures that we considered necessary
and determine whether any adjustments might be necessary in respect of
(i) the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group as at
date of disposal as set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements; and (ii) the income and expenses of the discontinued
operation for the period from 1 July 2019 to the date of disposal. Any
adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in respect of the
above may have consequential significant effects on the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements concerning the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group as at date of disposal, the loss
from discontinued operation and the gain arising from the disposal of the
Disposal Group for the year ended 30 June 2020. Our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 was
modified accordingly.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2021 is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter
on the comparability of the related 2021 figures and 2020 figures in these
consolidated financial statements.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of the non-current assets

We identified the impairment assessment in relation to the non-current
assets located in the Republic of the Philippines (the “Philippines”) allocated
to the cash generating unit of hotel operations (the “Hotel CGU") as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgements and estimates involved
in management assessment process. The Group has gross carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment of HK$221,209,000 and right-of-use
assets of HK$27,750,000 respectively relating to the Hotel CGU, which are
significant operating assets of the Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the management assesses if there are
any indicators of potential impairment of the assets relating to the Hotel
CGU. If any impairment indicator exists, the management assesses the
recoverable amount of the Hotel CGU with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer not connected to the
Group (the "Valuer”) by income capitalisation approach. As disclosed in
Note 15 and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management has concluded that impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$22,530,000 and HK$2,831,000
respectively are recognised in the profit or loss.

BYZHAMRES

BPERBEB B S EASRM (B BETER)
(TFBET LR ETER - HPIBLZF LA
EONETEARS [RBMRBEREEMB®RE
EENEE]FoPE— L - REFE G
AENBEeFBETR (T8 - BB
R BERE YEETTAPNEMERET-
BAFIHRE - RAMESHNERERRERTRLEE
AT AFIRRE BRI ER -

FREXREE

AREZERERERMNEXAE - HAHD
HEVBHRRNBERZRAEENEIR - BLER
EERMELERGEVBRRLHABREE
1TRREN - R T EHELEREHREFBNES
BIMREBERZER] —HmiEEN RAEE
TXAAEERRNRENEBR L AREZER -

EREEE Z B EFT
BMEREBALNIERERMEA([ERE]) BE
PREOEEERSEAEM(BEREELASE
i) 2 ERBEEZBENEHF A —THERSE
%EIE FRATEENGRER S RNERHE
Mffste BEEEHEBEERESESBEMERZY
¥ BWEERSEARGERAEEE(HA BEEEZ
EREEELE) ZEEARED R A221,209000% 7T
X 27,750,000 7 7T °

REREPR EEESTHRBERGELSE
UEBZEERGERXMBERETR - HiFEk
FEBENS  IEEEe2E —FHE B5£H
RS 2 B HEGER ([EHER ) BBRAE
MM AR 2 EFEEERCELEMN 2]
IS 5E - BNER A I A RAR MR 15 R I9FTHEEE -
EREEESLERRBEYE  BERKHERER
HEEED R 522,530,000 7T K 2,831,000 7 7T HY R
EEEERERSPER -

Annual Report £ #§ 2020/21 97



BIFRIREER R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZREHRES

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
the Hotel CGU included:

Discussing the impairment indicators of the Hotel CGU with the
management and inspecting the operating results and cash flow
forecast of the Group's hotel segment;

Assessing the valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted in the
valuation, such as the discount rate, capitalisation rate, average
occupancy rate and average daily room rate, by comparing them
with the budget approved by the management, available market
data for comparable properties and the historical operating
performances of the Group’s hotel segment.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

We identified the fair value measurement of investment properties located
in the Philippines as a key audit matter due to the significant management
judgements and estimates adopted in the fair value measurement of the
investment properties.

As disclosed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
management estimated the fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$1,231 million as at 30 June 2021, with a fair value loss of
approximately HK$112 million recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

Independent external valuations were obtained in respect of the
investment properties in order to support the management's estimation of
fair value. The valuation is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgements including rental income from
future lease period and capitalisation rate in light of the current market
condition.
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Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s fair value measurement of
investment properties included:

Conducting in-depth discussions with management about the cash
flow projections used in the income approach calculation and
assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas which affect the income approach
calculation;

Assessing the valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, such as
discount rate and capitalisation rate based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry, in particular those relating to the cash
flow projection used by the income approach for the fair value
measurement.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional  fERIBEE B BT EBETEZOBEDR - K&
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We — F 7 B3 HIHT - (R4 7 HEIRRAEE - BN
also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZREHRES

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate number P05309

Hong Kong, 24 September 2021
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BIFRIREER RN A

International Entertainment Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BZE Bz
-2 —E-FF
AA=T1H NAZ=TH
LEFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaF FET FAET
Continued operations FEREEK
Revenue WA 5(b) 64,900 226,965
Cost of sales SHERA (60,378) (78/431)
Gross profit EA 4,522 148,534
Other income Hb U A 6 14,802 16,216
Other losses, net HAhEsig )5 5E 7 (3,192) (16,832)
Change in fair value of financial assets BRATVESABRZ eREE
at fair value through profit or loss N EES 20 (46,545) 29,066
Change in fair value of financial liabilities BAFEFABRZZEHAE
at fair value through profit or loss N FE 31 5,104 13,173
Change in fair value of investment properties & & ¥ 2% N F(EE 16 (111,939) (262,125)
Gain on modification of promissory note 1B R BB 2 e 29 1,945 -
Impairment loss of property, plant and Y - BB R EREREEE
equipment 15 (24,797) (8,709)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREEERERBE 19 (3,728) (666)
Share of loss of associates DI E A FEE 18 (789) (126)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE RS ER (18) (3,043)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHFAX (78,812) (123,889)
Finance costs M E R 8 (29,347) (32,534)
Loss before taxation B Al &S 18 9 (272,794) (240,935)
Income tax credit FTigfiik & 11 30,754 6,465
Loss for the year from continuing operations  F AR B IFE K & %55 2 518 (242,040) (234,470)
Discontinued operation BRIEEEEL
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of tax HEMBATIWE  &HKRFHE 32 - 127,962
Loss for the year FAEE 13 - (198,824)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation ~ F R B B &R 1E4&L & 575 2 B8 - (70,862)
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International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER R A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEzHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
== — —EFTF
ANA=1+H ~NA=1+H
LtHEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss for the year FABE (242,040) (305,332)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will @B HIEEIEG 2
not be reclassified to profit or loss: Hi2m (EE), s
— Remeasurement of defined benefit — B ERAERENET
obligations (179) 442
— Exchange differences arising on translation — & AZ25|EEEFEL 2
of presentation currency PEH Z%E 45,348 36,457
Other comprehensive loss that may be HigngEoEEEny
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: Hibsr & B8
— Exchange differences arising on translation — R E SN EFEBI FERREL
of financial statements of 2N ZERE
foreign operations = (11,613)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HEMN B A A TE L IE K
of subsidiaries = 19,875
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEMEEIEERE (196,871) (260,171)
Loss for the year attributable to: T3S IBEEGEFEANEE :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ SN
— from continuing operations — RBEEEET (242,040) (234,470)
— from discontinued operation — EBRIEREEER - (45,094)
(242,040) (279,564)
Non-controlling interests SRR
— from continuing operations — BB R - B
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER - (25,768)
- (25,768)
(242,040) (305,332)
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International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
—EC-—F —TFF
NA=1+H NA=1H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaF F#ExT FAET
Total comprehensive loss for the year EIEFARAEHEEEERE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company . VNCIE 2PN (196,871) (234,787)
— Non-controlling interests — FEPERRAE A - (25,384)
(196,871) (260,171)
HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
Loss per share attributable to owners of RARHE ANEEEREE
the Company 14
Basic - YiIN
— from continuing operations — BB ET (17.68) (17.13)
— from discontinued operation — BRI E T - (3.29)
(17.68) (20.42)
Diluted g
— from continuing operations — BB (17.68) (17.13)
— from discontinued operation — BRIEEEET - (329
(17.68) (2042)
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ45 R A A)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

At 30 June 2021
R-ZEZ—F A=1H

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
—B-—F —EEF
ANB=TH ANA=+A
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
HfaF F#&x FHIT
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets JEmENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKREE 15 223,330 280,786
Investment properties REMZE 16 1,231,000 1,308,000
Loan receivable EUWE R 17 77,203 75,503
Interest in associates /N s 18 55,686 55228
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 37,735 33,787
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HiEWEIE  BE R
TR RIA 22 16,995 14,329
1,641,949 1,767,633
Current assets MENEE
Inventories e 1,403 1,840
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEREZ
profit or loss SREE 20 52,573 93,441
Trade receivables FEYERTE 21 4,347 7,053
Contract assets BHEE 23 2,232 4,128
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HiEWRIE B4k
FAfTRIE 22 30,433 38,231
Amounts due from associates FE U 2 R B R IE 3,275 3,173
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFERRS 35(a) 564,942 623,170
659,205 771,036
Total assets BEMRE 2,301,154 2,538,669
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables FETBRIR 24 1,779 3,544
Other payables and accrued charges HEf T I8 KRB 24 29,863 61,999
Promissory note R 29 382,196 -
Contract liabilities BTG 23 19 972
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 19,887 19,450
Lease liabilities HEBE 19 2,469 2,774
436,213 88,739
Net current assets mENEESE 222,992 682,297
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE4G R A A)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 30 June 2021
R-E-—F A=+H

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
~NAZ=1+H ~NA=1H
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
et TET TFETT
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAEBE 25 152,255 179,889
Other liabilities BEmEE 999 4,661
Lease liabilities HE&E 19 42,394 32,807
Promissory note ZY Rt 29 - 345915
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 34,803 53,486
Convertible bond AR ES 31 42,881 44,692
273,332 661,450
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,591,609 1,788,480
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA Al A A (RS
Share capital %N 27 1,369,157 1,369,157
Share premium and reserves AR 5 B R 222,452 419,323
TOTAL EQUITY e AR RE 1,591,609 1,788,480

The financial statements on pages 103 to 238 were approved by the Board ~ ZHRFE 1032 238 B 7 M BHMEREN - —F N,

of Directors on 24 September 2021 and were signed on its behalf by: B-tmMAEESeHd i TH NIESRKKRS
2
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley Mr. Ho Wong Meng
HEEE LT Ho Wong Meng 5t 4
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR R 7

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREEX

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T _—F N A=1THIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATEEAEL
Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger Other Exchange  compensation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
NRAAER
e B &E Chit1 ] Efbfite EifiE ZBERE RERA a8 FBRER EnEE
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
T TR Thr Tén T Thi Thr Tén Tin Thr
(noteq) (noted) (notec)
(fita) (Hito) (ic)
At30June 2019 R-E-NERA=TH 1369157 170,289 53022 (112683) (282,058) 5433 820,107 2023267 10419 203368
Loss forthe year ERER - - = = - = (279564) (279564) (25,768) (305332)
Remeasurement of defined benefit EiEARRHER
obligations - - - - - - 4“4 ) - 4“4
Exchange differences arising on tranlation  E B2 FIEHEES 2
of presentation currency ERER - - - - 36457 - - 36457 - 36457
Eichange differences arsing on transation A E BB EREBRRE
of financial statements of EEERER
foreign operations = = = = (11.997) = = (11.997) 384 (11613)
Release of exchange reserve upon RERBAAERR
disposalof subsiciaries (note 32) B G (Wit 32) - , = - 19875 = = 19875 = 19875
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear ~ FAZERIEAS - - - - 4335 - (79122 (234787) (25,384) (260171)
Disposal of subsidiates (note 32 HERBLA W32 - - - - - - - - 14965 14965
At30June 2020 RZZ=FF/A=1H 1369157 170,289 53022 (112683) 231723) 5433 540985 1788480 - 1788430
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (242,040) (242,040) - (242,040)
Remeasurement of defined benefit EFTERTRNER
obligations - - - - - - (179) (179) - (179)
Exchange differences arsing on BERJIRHEEL L
translation of presentation curency EREE - - - - 45,348 - - 45,348 - 45,348
Total comprehensivelossfortheyear ~ FR2EEBER - - - - 45,348 - (242219) (196,871 - (196,871)
At30 June 2021 RZE--%7A=1H 1,369,157 170,289 53022 (112,683)  (192375) 5433 298766 1,591,609 - 1591609
(@  Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the share capital ~ (a) ~ ANEBAGHFEIEAIEEIFEEER AR ({7 HE

and share premium of Cyber On-Air Multimedia Limited whose shares were
exchanged for the Company'’s shares and the nominal amount of share capital
issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation. Cyber On-Air
Multimedia Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2008.

The other reserves represent net effect of discount on acquisition of subsidiaries
and premium on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries from a subsidiary
of the then intermediate parent arising during the year ended 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2017 respectively.

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the value of the unexercised share
option granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note 3.17.
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BIFRIREER RN A

International Entertainment Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

QE_AIE%/)ILE%

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
—EC-—F —TFF
AA=T1H NAZ=TH
LHEE IEFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEERS
Loss before taxation BR7% Al & 18
From continuing operations FEREEK (272,794) (240,935)
From discontinued operation R IEEE TS = (71,180)
Adjustments for: BTFNIEE LA
Interest income B A (4,349) (6,593)
Interest expenses MERX 29,347 34,729
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts for JE W AR T8 2 B Ath FE YRR IR 2
trade and other receivables, net RERREFR 2,752 1,187
Written-off of other receivables il 5 L At FE L R IE = 2,670
Change in fair value of financial assets BRATEFABR ZeREE
at fair value through profit or loss NEEED 46,545 (29,066)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities BEAVFESFABRZZEHAR
at fair value through profit or loss RFEEH (5,104) (13,173)
Change in fair value of investment properties SEMERNTEES 111,939 262,125
Gain on modification of promissory note BB H B’ 2 e (1,945) =
Impairment loss of property, plant and M - WE REEREREE
equipment 24,797 8,709
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEERERR 3,728 666
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - WERBEETE 48,461 52,638
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTREEENE 5,382 5,445
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEME - HEREEL
equipment 518, (Uzs) 3,662 (45)
Loss on written-off of property, plant and WM - BE REZHE BB
equipment - 430
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets and HEFREEEREE
lease liabilities BEz K= (108) =
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E = 52,589
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEE 2 WE = (891)
Release of provision for additional transfer fee AEBRERYNEE & B FEE - (1,767)
Share of loss of associates SIGEEE A REE 789 126
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR Z Wt - (127,962)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss PN (Uhzs), 51838 (362) 13,759
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ45 R A A)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERETRER

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
-2 —E-FF
NA=t1H ~NA=+H
IEEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT T
Operating cash flows before movements RETEEE S E AL
in working capital Behe (7,260) (56,539)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERd, (1) 482 (296)
Decrease in trade receivables JE U BR TE R 3,674 14217
Decrease in other receivables, HAth IR - ke RTEN
deposits and prepayments TRIRR 9,197 5,599
Increase in amounts due from associates JE AT BS: 2 N B R IR EE N (60) =
Decrease in trade payables FERTARIER A (1,859) (4,105)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and Hih e RIBRETERRD),
accrued charges 12N (13,931) 52,009
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (AR),/FRAREEK 2 HE (9,757) 10,885
Income taxes paid BEAIPTISH (56) =
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (AR)/REKLEs s
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReFE8 (9,813) 10,885
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received B UHE 1,483 4,076
Additions to property, plant and equipment RNEWME - BE REE (11,332) (12,276)
Proceeds received on disposal of property, HEWHE  BERSEEZ
plant and equipment B PR1SFRIR 205 209
Increase in deposits for property, plant and M - BRE RREBEESIEM
equipment (4,035) (21,621)
Purchase of investment properties BEIREYSHE (1,835) (22,229)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AT = 172,208
Proceeds from sale of players’ registration HEK B AMATSHIE - 36,853
Payment for purchase of players’ registration BAKE M2 I®R - (101,691)
Proceed:s received on disposal of unlisted fund HEFEMES ZEWMBRIE = 126,979
Increase in loan receivable FEU B SR AN = (22,551)
Amounts advance to associates TETEE & A R 5RIE = (3,173)
Repayment of capital loan from subsidiaries EEEHEZHMBARZ
disposed of BEARER - 243,737
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (AR)/RERERSD 2 REFHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (15,514) 400,521
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE4G R A A)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GaeRETRER

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
HZE H=
== —E-FTF
~NAE=1+H NA=1H
IEEE IHFE
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B et F#Bx TFHETT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE 35(b)
Interest paid EfTFLE (5,757) (13,068)
Increase in other borrowings H & E 1N = 95,000
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEECENR (20,039) (4,862)
Repayment of other borrowings Hib B E 2B = (95,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBBZER (8,362) (9,326)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RARBE RS e 558 (34,158) (27,256)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND B RBELEEYWORD),
CASH EQUIVALENTS HONFER (59,485) 384,150
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERBF 7 E
CHANGES 1,257 (3,297)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZHeMREEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 623,170 242317
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RERZEeMREEEYD
OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and cash LRTT & MR &5 R 35(a) 564,942 623,170
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ45 R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

i

GENERAL

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). As of the date of this report, Brighten Path Limited
("Brighten Path”) and Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited
("Head and Shoulders”) are the Company’s immediate and ultimate
parent respectively. Head and Shoulders is wholly and beneficially
owned by Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, executive Director. The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” section to this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group were
principally involved in hotel operations, leasing of properties
equipped with entertainment equipment at the hotel complex of
the Group in Metro Manila in the Philippines (the “Hotel Business”
and “Leasing Business”) and live poker events (the “Live Events
Business”) in Macau. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 36.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1T Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

The Directors are of the opinion that none of these new or
amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior period.
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International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER RN A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet

effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s operations, have been issued but are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20212

Annual improvement project®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

& Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
E The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or

after a date to be determined.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

2. BEMEBBMEHREED (THFEMHE
WREER)) (®)

(b)

EARERZBERMBRE L ZE
3 Z

AEEY EREFRAATERMER
RERR - AILEAKELERRE 2
IR RI BB G E LR -

BAIERE 9% FlREENE —
BEUBREERNFESR . BFBER
BEMSHREERER -
BEMISRE LN E %

RABI RS LS
F165(BFTAK)

EARBRERAF 6 R-T-—51A

(fB3TA) =1 B Covid-19
HEEE RS

BN SRR BEF R
“Z-)\FE_Z_ZF
BRNFERE

BEEENE 6% nE - BERRE—
(1B3TA) REFERAIZEE

FuEs

BEGERE 7 BREIEATER

(fB3TA) ERBRAERE
FSH(T-TEF)
AR
EEUNBREEAE R MoERE R
(1B3TA)
ERMHRSENF 0% R RELEREBENR
BB GRERIE 85 FRBLEHZ
(1B3TA) BENERTE.
l REZTE - —F— A B2 EFRBHTE
E HAR A 3K
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E AR AR
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E HA R A Rk
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Annual Report %22020/21 113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021

s —

FNA=THIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)

Those new/revised HKFRSs that might have material impact
on the Group's financial statements are set out below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including below amendments that might relevant to the
Group upon effective:

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on other’s
behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example 13
to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment
of lease incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives are illustrated in that example.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from
selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain
that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at
the end of the reporting period. The amendments also
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision to
HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation to
align with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in
conclusion and do not change the existing requirements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
instead of the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to
HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope
of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether
at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.
The amendments also add an explicit statement that an
acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
any gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business are recognised in
the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate
or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments above in the future will have
an impact on the financial statements.
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BIFRIREER RN A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso
(“Peso”), the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company’s major subsidiaries operate. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$") as the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) consider that it is an appropriate presentation
for a company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.4 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)

34 EBEHREEREEEE)

3.4 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as “gain on bargain purchase”.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHBER#E

(Continued)

3.5 Subsidiaries 3.5 MIBAF

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)
AN

3.6 Associates 3.6

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold land
and building

the buildings are located,
or their estimated useful lives

Leasehold improvements

term of the lease or land leases
on which the buildings are
located, or their estimated

useful lives
Machinery 3-15 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3-15 years
equipment
Entertainment equipment 5-15 years
Computer hardware 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period and
up to the date of completion of construction for the
investment properties. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at its fair value. The Group's
property interest held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes is classified and accounted
for as investment property and is measured using the fair
value model. Gain or loss arising from change in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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3. EXEHEE#®)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.9 Leases

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.9 HE@#®)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset (Continued)

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property carried at fair value (see note 3.8), the
Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability
other than adjustments to lease liability resulting from Covid-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.9 Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments:

(i)  fixed lease payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date;

(i) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

(iv)  exercise price of a purchase option, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(v)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the

lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.9 HE@#®)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised
in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of
lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of
future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases,
an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the
right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero,
any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease,
in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope
of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased), the lease liability
is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted
by the same amount. With the exception to which the
practical expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
applies (see note 2(a)), if the renegotiation results in a decrease
in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the
lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease
with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease
liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date
and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.9 HE@#®)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from
the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the remaining lease
term.

3.10 Financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHBER#E
(Continued)

3.10 2@ I B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.10 £ T B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on trade receivables, contract assets and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

In particular, the following information, but not limited to, is
taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor's ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)

3.10 £ T B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease receivable
or contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and promissory note are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process and upon non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities.

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both the
debt and conversion option components are classified
separately into their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
variable amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an embedded derivative liability.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the debt component is
determined using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)

3.10 £ T B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bond is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bond are allocated to the debt and conversion option
components in proportion to their relative fair values.
Transaction costs relating to the conversion option
component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included
in the carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bond using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHBER#E

(Continued)

3.10 2@ I B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.

When the Group exchanges with an existing lender one debt
instrument into another one with substantially different terms,
such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial
modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received and discounted using the original effective
rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the
difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
immediately before the modification; and (2) the present value
of the cash flows immediately after modification is recognised
in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss.
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE4G R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

3.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods
or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Room revenue

Room revenues are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer
during the stay in the hotel. The services are charged at a fixed
rate with no significant variable consideration. The Group
recognised revenue in the amount to which the entity has the
right to invoice, which is representative to the value service
being delivered. Invoices are issued upon check out and
payable immediately. No significant financing component

existed.

Food and beverage

The Group provides food and beverages service in the hotel.
The Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the
entity has the right to invoice, which is representative to the
service being delivered. Invoices for food and beverage service
are issued on upon customer check-out and payable

immediately. No significant financing component existed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)
3.12 WA TR (&)

3.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Live event income

The Group generates income from organising live poker
events. The revenue are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the entity
has the right to invoice, which is representative to the service
being delivered. Invoices for live poker events are issued on
upon the end of event and payable within 90 days. No
significant financing component existed.

Other income

Revenues from other hotel services are recognised over time
as the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer. The services are charged at a fixed rate with no
significant variable consideration. The Group recognised
revenue in the amount to which the entity has the right to
invoice, which is representative to the value of services being
delivered. No significant financing component existed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.13 Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 3.10 to the financial
statements and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration become unconditional.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognised
room revenue before begin unconditional entitled to the
consideration under the payment term set out in the contract.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the

contract.

3.14 Income taxes

Income tax charge represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted in the relevant jurisdictions by the end of the

reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.14 FIBH (&)

3.14 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
in the relevant jurisdictions that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.14 fifEH (&)

3.14 Income taxes (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

3.15 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (i.e. foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.15 SN ()

3.15 Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

3.16 Employee benefits

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs in Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees in Hong Kong who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. Prior to the MPF Scheme being
effective, the Group did not have any pension arrangements

for its employees.

Retirement benefit costs in the Philippines

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contribution. Contributions are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions,

where applicable.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in

which they occur.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)
3.16 Employee benefits (Continued) 3.16 EEER (&)

Retirement benefit costs in the Philippines (Continued)

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained profits and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit obligations or assets.
Retirement benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
The Group presents the retirement benefit costs (other than
remeasurement) in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.
The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.17 Share-based payments 317 ARG ARERHAFR

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the share-based
compensation reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long as
all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are
satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to
achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is
also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees and others providing similar services, the fair value
of goods or services received is recognised in profit or loss
unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
When the entity cannot estimate reliably the fair value of
goods or services received, they are indirectly measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For cash-
settled share based payments, a liability is recognised at the
fair value of the goods or services received.

When the option is exercised, the amount recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share
premium account. When the option lapses, the amount
recognised in the share-based compensation reserve is
released directly to retained profits.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.18 ke RMEERE

3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised in profit or loss.

3.19 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowings
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of time value of money is

material).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

3.21

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortization
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with HKAS 37.

Related parties
(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iif)

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent .
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BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

3. EXEHEE#®)

3.20 BERBAREE(£E)

3.21

AR ERERLEMNDRHHE M
SREENEE AAREERE
RIREE BIFCERLMAT M
1BIK - ATREBE AR EIERARE -
HESGEEANREHA —BANE
TR EMFRER - MR LR
BENEARAKRIBR SN o

REBEHEAEZXARABE/NI
BHBCRAEEM  VSRATER
AR = R FEER SEHEFE - X
MNHE WA PEEREK  ZEXRAE
BRI RS TRRHEHE(ER)
RREEA G ENEIREEZS
EMEP RS ERR

o

BEAL

(@ WA A TR - BIRZ A £ 3%
ATHTREAREEBREE
() EHRARENARER
iy HAKEEEATEN K

AAEERARABAT
MEEERERE -

(iif)

Annual Report ¥ 2020/21 149



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR R 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021

s —

FNA=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a party, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies, the Directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates and
assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected
to be utilised by the Group. The Group reviews their estimated useful
lives based on factors that include technological changes, the
existing circumstances, prospective economic utilisation as well as
physical condition of the assets on a regular basis. The results of the
operations of the Group could be affected by changes in these
estimates brought about by the changes in the factors mentioned.
The management of the Group regularly reviews these factors in
determining the estimated useful lives of the assets.

A significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in these assets would result in a
change to the estimated useful lives to reflect the changed pattern.
A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the assets would
decrease the depreciation period of the assets and increase
depreciation provided to write off the cost of assets, while an
increase in the estimated useful lives of the assets, opposite impact
on depreciation period and depreciation would be resulted.

Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
arising from certain companies within the Group that are suffering
from losses for years amounted to approximately HK$145,252,000
(2020: HK$142,996,000) (details disclosed in note 25). No deferred tax
assets have been recognised and offset against deferred tax liabilities
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams from these
companies within the Group. The unused tax losses not recognised
may be crystallised if the actual future profits generated are more
than expected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liability on the undistributed profits earned by the
subsidiaries of the Company in the Republic of the Philippines (the
“Philippines”) have been accrued at a tax rate of 15% on the
expected dividend stream of not less than 70 % of the yearly profit in
both years which is determined after taking into consideration of the
current dividend policy of the relevant subsidiaries of the Company.

The dividend policy is subject to the financial and market conditions,
the availability of funding and reserves available for distribution of
relevant subsidiaries of the Company in the Philippines. If the
dividend policy of the relevant subsidiaries of the Company has
changed, the deferred tax in relation to withholding tax of
undistributed earnings would be changed accordingly.

Investment properties

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
investment properties. Note 16 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of investment properties. The carrying
amount of investment properties as at 30 June 2021 was
HK$1,231,000,000 (2020: HK$1,308,000,000) as set out in Note 16.

4.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

BEAEHIEIRABEGHZEE
KR (&)

BEHEARE
RATIRIEREHME ([FEEE ] 2B
BRI RDIRB A2 BLEHIBA B IHT
DRMEFEZ FERBF70% (BERER
AR AR B AIEVR BIEEE) 2 T8
HARR B+ IR 15% 5THE ©

REBRZBRARRRIFERE Z AN B
NEZMBERTHER - B2 A BIEREA]
D IKfER o M2 R AERE K B A B 2 BB IR
RAEE - AABRARDIREFNFMFENNR 2R
L%ﬁlﬁiﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ@

BEWE
AEBFERGEERNTEETIEER AT EEM
BHBEZBARE UG EREMEAT
B et aEECREMEATEM
BEERD HARBERBRBERZFEE
#e MMTEE16FTE  R=ZE-_—F A=+
B - REWEIREEA1,231,0000008 7 (=
T~ T4 1 1,308,000,0007T) ©

Annual Report %% 2020/21 153



International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021

BE—T-—F A=THIFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment at end of each reporting period if there are any
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use calculations; (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in assessing the
recoverable amount, including cash flow projections, discount rates
etc,; and (iv) appropriate determination of cash generating units and
allocation of related expected future cashflows. Changing the
assumptions selected and judgements made by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations.

A more detailed information in relation to the impairment
assessment of these assets are disclosed in Note 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impact of COVID-19

The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") since early 2020
has resulted in significant decrease in commercial activities such as
hotel and casino operation in the Philippines whereas the Group
operates and negatively affected the Group's business from
continuing operations until the reporting date. The Group has
implemented certain mitigating measures to contain costs, including
renegotiating reducing discretionary spending, and to preserve the
Group's assets, including collection of receivables.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Group has
taken into account the increased risks caused by COVID-19 on
impairment of the Group's financial and non-financial assets when
assessing assets impairment including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and expected credit losses on trade
and other receivables at end of reporting period. Management has
been closely monitoring the development of the COVID-19 outbreak
and considered that, save as disclosed above, there is no other
matters that would result in a significant adverse impact on the
Group's results and financial position as at the reporting date as a
result of the COVID-19.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

The major effects of the global pandemic on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year are summarised as

4.

follows:

(a)

(b)

Decrease in sales and cash flows from hotel segment,
leading to impairment of non-current assets

As disclosed in Note 5, the revenue streams from the hotel
segment decreased during the year which did not meet the
management budget. It is caused by the disruption of hotel
business in the Philippines since the global pandemic. The
Group considered the segment loss and failure of meeting
budgeted revenue as indicators of impairment, and therefore
determined the recoverable amount for the cash generating
units. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Impairment loss of around
HK$25,361,000 (2020: HK$9,375,000) related to the non-current
assets in hotel segment was recognised in profit or loss for the
year. For details, please refer to Note 15.

Decrease in fair value of investment properties

During the year, the casino operated by PAGCOR in the
Group's property leased was closed for several months and
reopened but limited to a maximum of thirty to fifty percent
capacity since late August 2020. The Group measures fair value
based on a valuation carried out by JLL with income
capitalisation approach. The Group considered their
expectation on when the casino operated by PAGCOR can be
fully resumed as a significant judgement and the rental
income forecasts used in the income capitalisation approach
were probability weighted by scenarios. For detail assessment
please refer to Note 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

(c)

Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.

The management has incorporated their judgements on
deciding forward-looking factors in the calculation of expected
credit losses. Management'’s judgements regarding expected
credit losses are based on the facts available to management
currently. Due to the unprecedented nature of the COVID-19
pandemic, its effect on the Group’s customers and their ability
to meet their financial obligations to the Group is difficult to
predict. As a result, the Group’s judgments and associated
estimates of expected credit losses may ultimately prove, with
the benefit of hindsight, to be incorrect. For detail assessment
of loss allowances for trade receivables, please refer to Note
40(a).

SEGMENT REPORTING

Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to
make strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-maker has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is engaged

in business activities from which the Group may earn revenue and
incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the internal

management reporting information that is provided to and regularly

reviewed by the Group's directors in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For theyear ended 30 June 2021

BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued)

The Executive Directors have determined that the Group has the
following reportable segments:

Continuing operations:

— the "Hotel” segment represents the operation of hotel
business in the Philippines;

— the “Leasing” segment represents leasing of investment
properties equipped with entertainment equipment to
PAGCOR;

—  the “Live Events” segment represents the operation of live
poker events business. (note)

Discontinued operation:

—  the "Football Club” segment represents the operation of
Wigan Athletic AF.C,, which is a football club in the UK. On 29
May 2020, Football Club segment was disposed of and
presented as discontinued operation for the year ended 30
June 2020.

Note: Due to the prevalence of COVID-19 pandemic, there was no live poker
event held during the year.
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5.

(a)

International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER RN A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Business segment

Segment information about these reportable segments is

presented below:

Year ended 30 June 2021

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

DERERE (&)
(a)

E S T
EHZETZRI B HBEH 27
T

BE-SE-—FAA=1+HBLEE

Continuing operations

BESEER
Hotel Leasing Live Events Consolidated
B IE % RigEE &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THET TERT
Revenue — external WA — MR 34,262 30,638 - 64,900
Segment results aR=iil < (46,336) (139,403) (5,115) (190,854)
Unallocated other income AoEEMEA 846
Exchange gains G 689
Change in fair value of financial BATESABR
assets at FVTPL CREENTES (46,545)
Change in fair value of financial BATEFABRE
liabilities at FVTPL *RBEATER 5,104
Gain on modification of promissory &2 E 18 7 Wizs
note 1,945
Share of loss of associates HEBE AR ER (789)
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl kR (1,970)
Legal and professional fees FEREEE (3,414)
Salaries and allowances e Ro2aE (13,703)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ fEFEEEHE (1,364)
Finance costs UBER (21,004)
Unallocated expenses AOBEHRAZ (1,735)
Loss before taxation for the year FRKRHAIERE (272,794)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2021

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interest in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory note
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities
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NEBEE

AAEBE
BRI
RRES
Hit

5. DEMERE @)
(@) FBoEWE)
R-ZB--%XA=1H
Hotel Leasing Live Events  Consolidated

BIE i RGES )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT TET TRT TRT
248,563 1,566,455 16,601 1,831,619
355,657
52,573

55,686
5,619

2,301,154

77,801 198,408 2,202 278,411
386,035

42,881
2,218

709,545



5.

International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE4G R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2021

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Addition to property, plant and
equipment

Addition to investment properties
(Reversal of)/provision for expected

credit losses

Change in fair value of investment

properties

Change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of financial
liabilities at FVTPL

Gain on modification of
promissory note

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss of right-of-use
assets

Share of loss of associates

Interest income

Income tax (credit)/expenses

nE - B LRERE

EREEENE
RENE  BERRE

FREENE
TR ESIA (R
B

REME ATES

RATEIARIEZ
SHAEATERH
RATEI ARG
SRARATES
BRoRL B2 it

nE - BEL&RERE
R
ERERERERBRE

AMEBERAIEE
MEBKA
FER (%), /it

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE
5. DERERE (@)
(@) EBIEWE)
BE-Z-_-—FXA=Z+HLFE

Continuing operations
FERERE

Hotel Leasing LiveEvents  Unallocated Consolidated
BIE i REEE ROE o)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR THET TR THERT TEx
30,856 17,064 - 541 48,461
3,611 407 - 1,364 5,382
6,381 6,502 - - 12,883
- 4,183 - - 4,183

(241) (547) 3,540 - 2,752

- 111,939 - - 111,939

= - - 46,545 46,545
- - - (5,104) (5,104)
- - - (1,945) (1,945)
22,530 2,267 - - 24,797
2,831 897 - - 3,728
- - - 789 789
(11) (3,885) (32) (421) (4,349)
(9,905) (20,905) 56 - (30,754)
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T _—F N A=1THIEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Business segment (Continued)

5. DERERE @)
(a) XX (E)

Year ended 30 June 2020 BE_ZE-ZHFXA=+THLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B&IE
RREEEs REEHK
Hotel Leasing Live Events Subtotal  Football Club  Consolidated
BIE 8% BI5EE INEE o RIRKEZE Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THET THET THER TR
Revenue — external WA — 4R 82,010 140,728 4227 226,965 125,073 352,038
Segment results NEPEE (24917) (190,493) (1,711) @17,121) (199,142) (416,263)
Unallocated otherincome AABEEMBA 1062
Exchange losses EXER (10,950)
Change in fair value of financial R AFET ABHEZ
assets at FVTPL PRHEEATES 29,066
Change in fair value of financial R A Bt ABHEZ
liabilities at FVTPL LRABLTEE 13173
Share of loss of associates AMEBENREE (126)
Auditor's remuneration G (2,690)
Legal and professional fees PREDEES (7.542)
Salaries and allowances A (12014)
Depreciation of right-of-use FREAERE
assets (1,364)
Finance costs MKER (27,011)
Unallocated expenses AABEEZ (5418)
Loss before taxation for the year AR F AT 12 (440,077)
Less: loss before taxationfor 3 : FRRADKIE
the period from R T Al
discontinued operation B 199,142
Loss before taxation for the year AR A HEL L £
from continuing operations BREiRIE R (240,935)
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2020

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interest in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory note
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities

BE

DEEE

KOBMEE
BORERASE
B ?@#AE@Z
PREE

N A=ONCIPA 5

APEAE
BRI
RRES
Hit

BRES

DHM

S HER

4I}

g

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

5. ERERE®)
(a) ¥XKaI(E)
R-ZEBE-ZEFEXA=1+H

Hotel Leasing Live Events  Consolidated
Bk Gizbrd SRV e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TR
296,455 1,686,865 20,826 2,004,146
380,218

93441

55228
5636

2,538,669

67447 258,023 2,655 328,125

370,310
44,692
7,062

750,189
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T _—F N A=1THIEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2020

Depreciation of property, nE - BEREENE
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Addition to property, plant and
equipment

Addition to investment properties

Amortisation of intangible assets

Addition to intangible assets

Provision for/(reversal of) expected
credit losses

Change in fair value of investment
properties

Change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of financial
liabilities at FVTPL

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss of right-of-use assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Share of loss of associates

Interest income

Income tax credit

RREBERE
REME  BERR

RERENF
B/ AERE
REEVAE
BHERER
/(8D
REMEZATERY

BRTEAESL
TREELTEE
BRTFEABRSL
TRABATERD
0% BERREL
REBR
RREBEZRERR
HEMBLR K
DEBERTBE
MEHA
FEhE%

5. DERERE @)
(a) XX (E)
HpEs

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

BRI

BEEEE He%n

Hotel Leasing Live Events  Unallocated Subtotal  Football Club
i3 B BBED AHE Gh o RIRBER
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
TAT TAL TARL TAR TAL TAR
29,040 14,694 109 557 44400 8238
2103 388 = 1364 385 1,590
7,146 19811 = 14 26971 4720
= 3397 = = 33,967 =

= = = = = 52,589

= = = = = 81,491

953 (60) = = 893 294

= 262,125 = = 262,125 =

= = = (29,066) (29,066) =

= = = (13173) (13173) =
8,709 = = = 8,709 =
666 = = = 066 =
= = = = = (127,962)

= = = 126 126 =

(34) (6,323) = (236) (6,593) =
(3838) (2627) = = (6,465) (318)

BE-E-_ZEEAA=THLEE

Consolidated
A
HK$000
Thr

52638
5445

31,691
3397
52589
81491

262125

(29066)

(13173)

8,709
666
(127.962)
126
(6593)
(6,783)
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A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. SERERE (4)
Disaggregation of revenue (b) WADIF
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary TRHFHIZFTEHWETS  TE2ER
geographical market, major products and service lines and N RFSTE B LA R W A FE R 2 3F 2
timing of revenue recognition. The table also includes a WA o NRINE D IFU A BEAREE
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group’s A] 2R 5 2P 2 HR -
reportable segments.
Year ended 30 June 2021 BEZZE-_—-EXA=1THLEE
Continuing operations
Hotel Leasing Live Events  Consolidated
BIE % RigEE o)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TERT
Primary geographical market FEHETS
The Philippines JFREE 34,262 30,638 - 64,900
Timing of revenue recognition WA R
Transferred over time BaRF PR ES
Room revenue EEBA 30,357 - - 30,357
Food and beverages BER 3,192 - - 3,192
Other hotel service income HAE & RS A 713 - - 713
34,262 - - 34,262
Other source of income R R A KR
Leasing of investment properties MELARES B2
equipped with entertainment BEMH
equipment - 30,638 - 30,638
34,262 30,638 - 64,900
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

)
5.
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(b)

—FNA=THILFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. SEBERE (4
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (b) WAZH (&)
Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-_Z_ZFXA=1HLFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
BREEEY BE¥
Hotel Leasing Live Events Subtotal  Football Club  Consolidated
BIE % Ri5EE N RIKEEH e
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Primary geographical markets *Z#E %
The Philippines FEE 82010 140,728 o 22738 = 22738
The UK fiigEil - - - - 125,073 125,073
Others Hitr = = 4227 4227 = 4207
82010 140,728 4227 226,965 125,073 352038
Timing of revenue recognition A B2 R
Transferred over time b fIER
Room revenue FBREMA 56,705 - - 56,705 - 56,705
Food and beverages R 23218 - - B8 16261 39479
Other hotel service income EEIE RIS YA 2,087 = = 2,087 = 2,087
Commercial income BERA - - - - 21825 21825
Broadcasting income BEIA = = = = 64,181 64,181
Matchday income EBBA - - - - 17377 17377
Live eventincome BEESMA - - 4207 4207 - 4207
82010 - 4227 86,237 119,644 205,881
Transferred at a point in time RE-EHEE
Commercial income BERA - - - - 3337 3337
Other source of income EMRAKE
Leasing of investment properties  TA &R EIRLR1E 2
equipped with entertainment R EWE
equipment - 140,728 - 140,728 - 140,728
Leasing of stadium HERES - - - - 2092 209
- 140,728 - 140,728 2092 142,820
82010 140,728 4227 226,965 125073 352,038
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

(d)

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

5. DEHRE#)

Geographic information () HEEFR
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s non- TREHEAEEKEEMITE  EILE
current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax MEEEMERENEE( B EIR
assets and post-employment benefit assets (“Specified non- BEE ) AINERBIEE 2 DT
current assets”).
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F RZZT_ZTF
NA=tH ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TET FET
The Philippines JteE 1,547,741 1678206
Others Hih 10 1914
1,547,751 1,680,120
Information about major customers (d FRXTEEZEFZESR

Included in the revenue generated from leasing segment of
approximately HK$30,638,000 (2020: HK$140,728,000) were
contributed by the Group’s largest customer and the
aggregate revenue from this customer represented
approximately 47% (2020: 40%) of the total revenue of the
Group. There are no other single customers contributing over
10% of the Group's total revenue.

T2 BB E & 2 WA 49 30,638,000 7T
— T T 1 140,728,0007 7T ) A AR
SESARFER  MREBZEFZ
BRUAEAREBERBALI47% (ZF =
TF 40%) o EEME KPP AX
EEBIATER10% A L2 BB -
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e B R EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMKRA
2021 2020
=B —F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest income FLEMA 4,349 6,593
Sundry income (note) MU A (HaF) 10,453 9,623
14,802 16,216
Note: Kt -
Sundry income mainly includes rental income of approximately HK$10,028,000 HEWAFZEREREEMAINS A THREEHALE N
(2020: HK$8,601,000) from leasing of insignificant portion of the Group’s spare HoBMEBREEMIEARAEMERSKRALY
hotel units as office, currently classified as property, plant and equipment, to 10,028,000 7L (ZF =T 4 : 8601,0004 7T ) + i B
external parties on a short-term basis. DERME - BB KR -
7. OTHER LOSSES, NET 7. HfthEsig#8E
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FH&TT
Continuing operations REKEER
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME  REAREZ
plant and equipment (E518) has (3,662) 45
Net foreign exchange gain/(losses) P&z (E18) /55 362 (13,759)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets and HEFERAEEER
lease liabilities HEE G W= 108 =
Written-off of other receivables il S5 £ b Uk 308 — (2670)
Loss on written-off of property, WEEY % - R M&iE 2 EE
plant and equipment = (430)
Others Hi - (18)
(3,192) (16,832)
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e B R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. HIHEEH
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHIT
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest on promissory note A ZIR B 17,669 17,086
Interest on bank borrowings |ITEERE 5,652 6,495
Interest on other borrowings HMmEERS = 6,545
Interest on lease liabilities HEaERNE 4,692 3,359
Interest on convertible bond ATHRRESHFIE 3,293 3,266
31,306 36,751
Less: Amount capitalised (note) B B RE (A (1,959) (4.217)
29,347 32,534

Note: Htaz -

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the specific borrowings to

FRENMLEERATTRAARGEREEZFER

expenditure on qualifying assets. B

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. [RIREIEIE
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Loss before taxation from continuing SIS 7 IR AT EE
operations has been arrived at after B0k (BEA) THIBIE -
charging/(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EEWE (Bt i0) 3,798 3,953
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments): B LN (TBIEESME) :
Salaries and allowances e MoERh 26,656 45,921
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIREFIET B R 832 1,459
Total staff costs @8 T A 31,286 51,333
Depreciation e
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W% BERREBITE
equipment (included in cost of sales (GHASHE R ARIA K —R
and general and administrative expenses) FITHFHX) 48,461 44,400
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — FREEEITE
(included in general and administrative GTA—MRITERF)
expenses) 5,382 3,855
Total depreciation eEmss 53,843 48,255
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) o. MRREIEE %)
2021
—E_—F
HK$'000
FET

Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL 2 AF(Ezt AlBzs 2 & R EE

(note 20) NHERE (AfaE20) 46,545
Change in fair value of financial liabilities RAVEFABRZ ERAE

at FVTPL (note 31) NHERE (A 31) (5,104)
Change in fair value of investment properties & &Y% 2 A FEZE) (Hi:F 16)

(note 16) 111,939
Gain on modification of promissory note &R B 2 Was (BY7F 29)

(note 29) (1,945)
Impairment loss of property, plant and VI BB MR R EEE

equipment (note 15) (Kiat15) 24,797
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEEREEE (K7 19)

(note 19) 3,728
Auditor's remuneration % EREN BN &

— Audit services — BZR% 1,400

— Non-audit service — EFZART 570
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R AR 2 FEERAK 689
Short-term lease payment SEERER oYtk 1,268
Low-value assets lease payment REEEEMENES 1
(Reversal of)/provision for expected Ty &EZEHEEEE

credit losses of (Bm), B

— Trade receivables — FEUWERIA (788)

— Other receivables — E fth fE W FRIE 3,540
Legal and professional fees EERBEER 5,976

2020
—E-FTF
HK$'000
FHEIT
(29,066)
(13,173)

262,125

8,709

666

1,740
950
24,279
2,361

893

10,452
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e B R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST 10. EEMERESFHA LT
PAID INDIVIDUALS

2021 2020
—EB-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&xT FHT
Continuing operations HEREEK
Directors’ fees EE0E
— Executive directors —HITES 3,010 2917
— Independent non-executive Directors — B IERITES 720 720
Basic remuneration, allowances and EAREB - AL REYFZE
benefits in kind 47 280
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRTE GBI K 21 36
3,798 3,953
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2020: six) ENHENER(CT_ZTF  NB)EFE
directors were as follows: AZBl&mT :
Year ended 30 June 2021 BE-ZE-_—FXA=1HLEE
Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
EARE -
EER EIREF
we EMFIz= EE-REEN st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Dr. CHOI Chiu Fai Stanley ZABIE L 1,200 - 18 1,218
Mr. CHAN Chun Yiu Thomas' (Cp el 270 47 3 320
Mr. HO Wong Meng? HO Wong Meng ¢ 4 2 1,540 - - 1,540
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors
Ms. LU Gloria Y3 (7o 120 - - 120
Mr. HA Kee Choy Eugene EHAEA 240 - - 240
Mr. LAU Ka Ho* BIRz kA& 240 - - 240
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai® BER(RE A 120 - - 120
3,730 47 21 3,798
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e B R EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T _—F N A=1THIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST 10. EEMERESIHALT @)
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2020 BE—E-—EHEAA=t+HILEE
Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
BERE -
2L K& R
HE EMFER FTEIER #ast
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FAT FHAT FAT FH&TT
Executive directors HITES
Dr. CHOI Chiu Fai Stanley ZegisiE 4 1,200 = 18 1,218
Mr. CHAN Chun Yiu Thomas'  BROZRR AT 1,717 280 18 2,015

Independent non-executive BV FHITES

directors

Mr. HA Kee Choy Eugene BEHA%AE 240 = = 240

Ms. LU Gloria Y3 Pzt 43 240 - - 240

Mr. LAU Ka Ho* BIRZ L 20 = = 20

Mr. SUN Jiong® RAm S Ao 220 = = 220
3,637 280 36 3,953

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an FAR AEETERATRNESEHME  1E

inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation BINBAREESNINBER Z B8 s B E

for loss of office for the year (2020: Nil). In addition, none of the TECTF ) o I MAFEESBEE

directors had waived any emoluments during the current year or FE - BEESHEWEEMES -

prior year.

Notes: et -

The director resigned on 1 September 2020. BERAESER S -_ZEFNA—HEF-

1 1

z The director was appointed on 1 September 2020. 2 BEHESRN T _TZFNA—BEZT-
g The director resigned on 1 January 2021. 3 EHEEN _T_—F— A —HBEI-

4 The director was appointed on 1 June 2020. 4 EREEN = _TF A —HEZE-
s The director was appointed on 1 January 2021. 5 fHEEN T _—F— A HEZT-
6 The director resigned on 1 June 2020. 6 EHESN _Z_TF A —HEE-

172 Annual Report %% 2020/21



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST 10. EEMERESHALT @)
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Highest paid individuals BEEEHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, $;ﬁ<£%§%%‘;ﬁ}\j¢ [ZE=Gmi St

two (2020: one) were directors of the Company whose emoluments P R)ALTRARBESR - HME E Jr

Erh o H =
are included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the )\J:XﬁerE’]&iﬂP ﬁﬁ—_ B(=2=F
o o . F:OBR)AT(EF—RB(ZZE_TF : —
remaining three (2020: four) individuals, of which one (2020: one) of PN+ BAEESHEEAS)MEMT -
individuals were senior management of the Group, were as follows:

2021 2020
== ﬂE — 7 — EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
Basic salaries and allowances BEXRFr& L2 4,299 7,362
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RGBT ET IR 54 99
Discretionary or performance related MGk BRIV S

incentive payments 373 267
4,726 7,728

The emoluments were within the following bands: e EEmT
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 ZITZ 1,500,000 57T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T & 2,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /8 7T & 3,000,000 77T - 1
3 4
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T _—F N A=1THIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Board of Directors and Senior
management” section of this annual report, were within the
following bands:

10. EEMERESHFALT#E)

BeEFAL(E)
AEESREEAB(REEFBHARASE
BIEFSLEMERAR] — ) ZMEH
B

2021 2020

=B —-F —ECEREF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A ANEX

HK$1,000,001 to HKS$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T 1,500,000 75 7T 1 1

The discretionary or performance related incentive payments are
determined by reference to the individual performance of the
employees of the Group.

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors or any of the five highest paid individual as inducement to
join or upon joining of the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No director waived any emoluments in the year ended 30
June 2021 and 2020.
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE4G R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT

The amount of income tax recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from continuing operations represents:

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

. FRiSRIER

KRB E2ERERERZREFELE XK
ZFS i #htE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFE T FH&T
Current tax BNVEAT 18
— under provision of income tax —BEFEMEHBETE
in prior years 56 =
Deferred tax credit BEETIBE R (30,810) (6,465)
Income tax credit s iz (30,754) (6,465)
Hong Kong profits tax for the qualifying group entity is calculated at HE-_Z - —FR-ZF-ZFA=THIE

8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HKS2 million
for the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. Hong Kong profits tax for
other group entities is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated profits.
No provision for taxation in Hong Kong was made in the financial
statements for the current year as the Group's operations in HK had
no assessable profits.

The Group's subsidiaries in the Philippines are subject to the
Philippines profits tax rate of 25% for the year ended 30 June 2021
(2020: 30%). The withholding tax rate in respect of a dividend
distributed by a subsidiary of the Company operating in the
Philippines to its overseas immediate holding company is 15% for
the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. No provision for taxation in
the Philippines was made in the financial statements for the current
year as the Group's operations in the Philippines had no assessable
profits.

The Group's subsidiary in Macau is subject to Macau profits tax rate
of 12% for the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. No provision for
taxation in Macau was made in the financial statements for the
current year as the Group’s operations in Macau had no assessable
profits.

FE - éﬁh%lﬁﬁazéﬁﬁu BEHIIAE
2,000,000 7 JT {dh 51 F& Fr 1 &8 F1) 4% £ F 8.25%
K B3 2,000,000 7 T 2 {51 FE R Bl 28 R R B
E165%TE - HMEBEEEHBEFEH
TR BRI 165% 1 & o MRAANEBE R
BB EBWERERAT - QI ERAE
EMIEHRERNTIRE SR IBEEE -

BHE_Z-_—FX XA=1THLFE r£E
ZIHFEEMBRARIAEZMELN(ZEE
F 1 30%) BANFERENET o NARINIER
E& SER B ARNEE TS —F)K
—EERNACHHILEFEREBIINEE
W“TﬁﬁZ% ERZBIHRREA
15% > MR AEBERIFRE 2 E 5 EREF
AR W EARFEEMIERER AR
EERBERE -

BE TR T -_FTFA=FHIt
FE - AEEZBPINEB R BRI E12%
BABRPIFER o ARARERPNIRP 2 %55
WEERH AT - M ER AT E M ERER
WETHERPI TR R o
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A MR

For theyear ended 30 June 2021

BE—FT-—F NA=1THIFFE
11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 11. FRIEIRIESR (&)
2021 2020
& — — 4 —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Loss before taxation BRELATE 1B (272,794) (240,935)
Taxation at the principal tax rates applicable to X BBEBRFBERNRBFNZEE

profits in the country concerned %Rf FTE 2 BIE (68,199) (72,281)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE M RERE R 48 E%WZ

operating in other jurisdictions B AR TR R 2 & 14,024 (2,092)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NAIB AL 2 B2

for tax purpose 701 1,973
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose B ZERF A Z RIS & (1,296) (4,512)
Tax effect of net income derived from M PAGCOR A E FTE £

leasing of properties to PAGCOR BARBBRAFRE 2

not taxable for tax purpose By a (13,549) (14,957)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and BAF AR ERMIBEER

deductible temporary difference not AR E R =58 2 G 2

previously recognised (116) (160)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible ﬁiﬁﬁu/uﬁlg)gﬂé! KA R R =

temporary differences not recognised WL 61,565 85,564
Decrease in opening deferred tax liabilities HEARERDEHFENRE

resulting from a decrease in applicable RIS FER A

tax rate (23,940) -
Under provision in prior years BAFERETR 56 -
Income tax credit for the year FAMBHEL (30,754) (6,465)

At 30 June 2021 and 2020, there are tax dispute cases between
Marina Square Properties, Inc. (“MSPI"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company principally engaging in the business of

leasing of properties in the Philippines, and Bureau of Internal
Revenue (“BIR") in the Philippines for the calendar years of 2008,
2012, 2014 and 2015 which were pending for final decision of the
court. Based on the advice of the independent legal advisor of the
subsidiary, the Directors believe that MSPI has valid legal arguments
to defend the tax disputes and concluded that the possibility of

additional tax liabilities is remote.
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12.

13.

International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER RN A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 14 February 2020, the Company and Next Leader Fund, L.P. (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sales and purchase agreement (the “Sales
and Purchase Agreement”) to sell the entire issued shares of the
subsidiary, Newworth Ventures Limited (“Newworth”), to the
Purchaser.

The disposal (the “Disposal”) was completed on 29 May 2020 (the
“Disposal Date”) and constitutes a discontinued operation under
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” as Newworth and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”),
which mainly consisted of the Football Club, represented one of the
major lines of business of the Group.

The management of the Group was notified that on 1 July 2020, the
five subsidiaries of the Disposal Group (“Five Disposed Subsidiaries”)
in the United Kingdom, including but not limited to Wigan Athletic
A.F.C. Limited, were put into administration under the law of the
United Kingdom. Administrators (the “Administrators”) were
appointed on the same date and have taken control of the Five
Disposed Subsidiaries since then. Despite the Company's repeated
negotiations with the Administrators for the arrangement of the
audit work of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries, the Administrators
informed that they are unable to assist in the audit work of the Five
Disposed Subsidiaries given that they are in the process of selling
the business and assets of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries.
Accordingly, the unaudited management accounts of the Disposal
Group as at 29 May 2020 were used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and for the calculation of the loss
from the discontinued operation of the Group for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020.

12.

13.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

&=
EEgTEEMEE TS —FA=1+H
IFFERNRARE(ZE_FF : &) o

B IERE T

RZZE_TF_A+MA - N2 B Next
Leader Fund, LP.(TEF DAV EBE W& ([ E
Etpazl) - MEH B EHE A 5 Newworth
Ventures Limited ([ Newworth |) 2 82 317 8%

{/\ ®

HEFBE(HEEE)R_ZE=-FTFAA
“t+AB((THER])EK « WEKEBH
BHmELENEST [FELENERDEE
RERIEREEBL] B THRERERS -
e TR R E B R B E 4 K 2 Newworth &
HIfBAR([HEEE]) AASEEHR K
FEEBLE -

AEETEERER R-_T_TFtA—
B ZEHEeEEENRARHEAT ([ERH
BB AR (BIEE TR K Wigan Athletic
AFC. Limited) BEIRIBRENERX B - WIE
RBEZRIEEBATEREAL  EEABGLE
FIAREEHRBAR - BEARAREHAR
HENBARMEZ TIELHEREIR AEST
ZRtER B EAEM BN EE EH
ERARLENBRARINERREE  BEE
EHBETER I EWB AR EZLE -
I REEBR S _TFAA-TILHEHK
REEZEEEREEARNRELEBGEEUS
WK AR EASERE T _ZTFN
A=1THIEHBRFEENE R IEEEEEEE -
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For theyear ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 13. BERIERERE @)
Analysis of the results of the discontinued operation: BRI EEBEEDN
Period from
1 July 2019
to the
Disposal Date
B=F—-N%F
+tHA—HBEE
ek =Rc
LEAARE
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue WA 125,073
Cost of sales HERK A (198,841)
Gross loss Ei8 (73,768)
Other income E A 6,971
Other gain H bz 2,657
General and administrative expenses —MRITEAX (132,807)
Finance costs B E A (2,195)
Income tax credit FriS i e 318
Loss for the period from discontinued operation TRE B R IEE T BiNEE (198,824)
Operating cash outflows IR (90,532)
Investing cash outflows HER B (53,924)
Financing cash inflows BERERA 141,074
Net cash outflows B m i FRE (3382)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Disposal Group HYEERNRNHERBHEENBEERER
at the Disposal Date are disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated IRE TS RER M 32 R -
financial statements.
A gain of approximately HK$127,962,000 for the year ended 30 June BE—_ZT-_ZEA=tHILEEHRLE
2020 arose on Disposal Group, being the proceeds of the Disposal .Fiqu $#49127,962,0007 7T » B ﬁ’%$1§
less the carrying amount of the Disposal Group's net assets to the FEREREEEERAEE Z FEERR
Group. No tax charge or credit arose from the Disposal. Ho  HESBUWEELHRIBEY HaikR o
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14. LOSS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of the

Company are calculated as follows:

14. SEREE
ADFEE AEIESREA REHER R

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

B TIIBERTE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Continuing operations S (242,040) (234,470)
Discontinued operation BRI T - (45,094)
(242,040) (279,564)
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEZEF
~NA=1H ~NA=1H
‘000 ‘000
TR T i
Number of shares BRGOEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FR AT E G A% E K & #5%
for the purposes of basic and diluted B8 2 T m AR it E g E
loss per share 1,369,157 1,369,157
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A MR

For theyear ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. SREE#E)
2021 2020
——% —ETF
HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
Loss per share EhREE
Basic AR
— Continuing operations — B (17.68) (17.13)
— Discontinued operation — BRI EER - (3.29)
(17.68) (20.42)
Diluted e
— Continuing operations — EEREER (17.68) (17.13)
— Discontinued operation — BERIEEEER - (3.29)
(17.68) (20.42)
The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 FEEE S - FR_E_TFA=1
June 2021 and 2020 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s EI HFEZzSREEERETERRITHER
outstanding share options and convertible bond as the exercise NEIRARITEZEBRERTRERES  RE
price of those options and convertible bond is higher than the BREBREN T BRRES ZITEBES IR
average market price for shares for the year. MERNZFHME -
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
(B2 E_—FANA=THIFFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥, WE&RE
Freehold Leasehold Furniture,
land and land and Leasehold fixturesand ~ Entertainment Computer Motor  Construction
buildings buildings ~ improvements Machinery equipment equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
XA%E HEL# & 4B
THREF i3 £ HELE BE e BRERE EhRE bt ERIR &t
HKS'000 HKS000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000

TR TR Fin TR TR Tin T TR Tin T

Cost: A
At30 June 2019 RZE-NFRA=1H 16,368 836,602 19470 91595 138294 140338 11522 4m 1915 1260326
Disposal of subsidiaries (note32) &M BAR (Hit32) (157 (351,603) (10634) - (4439%) - (1242) (2391) = w37179)
Additions FE - - 1004 81 10103 18168 1776 539 = 31691
Disposals bk - - = - (704) = (67) ) = (1200)
Wiitten-off W - - - - () (747) 215) - - (3460)
Transfer &4 - 190 - - - - - - (1920) -
Exchange adjustments EX A% (646) (4873) (200) 1876 265 3062 (491) (61) 5 (1,063)
At30 June 200 RZB-257A=1H - 482,046 9,640 93,552 102,787 154,116 98 1,878 - 844,117
Additions FE - 13 - 5912 384 6,344 - - - 12,883
Disposals HE = (4921) = (299) (4332) (236) = © = (9,788)
Bichange adjustments EfEE - 10,844 26 2,063 2382 3423 - 1y} - 18940
At30 June 2021 RZE=-57A=1H - 438,212 9,866 101,228 101,181 163,647 98 1,920 - 866,152

Accumulated depreciation ZHMERRESE:
and impairment loss;
At30 June 2019 RZE-NE/7A=1H 105 313409 12895 82461 116656 101,388 10179 3217 - 640370
Disposal of subsidiaries (note32)  (HEMBAR (it 32) (721) (78143) 689%) - (36601) - (10421) 2214) - (1349%)
Provision for the year EREE 640 B2 152 3117 7044 13682 882 480 - 52638
Impairment loss HEEE - 7928 - 26 551 - - 14 - 8709
Elimination on disposal HERHE - - - - 607) - - @31 - (1038)
Elimination on witten-off ifcliag - - - - (544) (7464) (o2} - - (8030)
Bichange adjustments EfEE (24) 2365 (357) 1746 268 291 (543) (68) - 5678
At30 June 200 S Sy - 270,830 7,164 87,540 86,767 109,897 75 1,058 - 563,331
Provsion for the year FREE - 2812 697 3,785 4340 16,495 14 318 - 48461
Impairment loss HEER - 20,857 - 844 869 2,185 - Y] - 2,197
Elimination on disposal HERHE - (4921) - (299) (586) (115) - - - (5921)
Bichange adjustments EREE - 5803 141 1,938 1918 233 - pi| - 12,154
At30 June 2021 RZBZ-57A=1H - 315,381 8,002 93,808 93,308 130,795 89 1,439 - 642,822

Canying amount BAfE:
At30 June 2021 RZE--xA=1A - 172,831 1,864 7420 7873 32,852 9 481 - 23,330
At30 June 200 RZZ-3F/A=1A - 21216 2476 6012 16020 #4219 B 820 - 280786
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021

s —

FNA=THIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment tests for Hotel CGU

The group of non-financial assets included in Hotel segment (“Hotel
CGU") is tested for impairment as the hotel segment recorded a
segment loss during the year. For the purpose of impairment testing,
gross carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of
HK$221,209,000 and right-of-use assets of HK$27,750,000 of the
hotel segment were allocated to the Hotel CGU. The recoverable
amount of the Hotel CGU has been determined by fair value less
costs of disposal ("FVLCOD") with reference to the valuation prepared
by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited
("JLL"), an independent professional valuer not connected to the
Group. The fair value of the Hotel CGU were measured using income
capitalisation approach with use of significant unobservable inputs
and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There
were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year. Key
assumptions used in calculating the recoverable amount are as
followvs:

Growth rate of revenue WaRig Rk x
Discount rate TE R
Capitalisation rate BARb =

15. . WEMNEREE)
BIERESEL BV ZRERR

AFABED SR/ EEAR (DEEE S
EAEEMN)ETRERR - JHEREEDE
REREEBDEER - URENHAMS @ &

Eo#HME BELRIXEEREE LA
2212090008 T M AEE ERERE
27,750,000 T D B BB EIR S E L BN -
BERSEABMARE S EREERAEER
WERRE 2 B B EGHERMP T EFT
ERERARAE ([HEETHERZGE
ERAFEREEXA (AT ERLERE])
F o BERSEEEMNATFEERK
ABRALEETHE - WEREBATATHE
BABE  HEOEAATEEBRE=R-

EW%E&Iﬁ&ﬁ@AiﬁﬁoﬁﬁﬁW
SRFTEARBREREZAT
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=-B=—F %_Y_YE
~NA=1+H NA=1H
4.0% 4.0%
12.0% 11.0%
8.0% 7.0%
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment tests for Hotel CGU (Continued)

During the year, the global health emergency resulting from the
COVID-19 pandemic has remained and led to a significant disruption
in tourist activities in the Philippines. The income forecasts used in
the income capitalisation approach were probability weighted based
on the following scenarios to account for the impact of COVID-19 as
discussed in Note 4:

—  Base case (75% weighting): Subject to the travel restriction
and reduction in customer demands, revenue generated from
hotel segment can be recovered steadily from January 2022
and fully recovered during the financial year of 2022/23 when
tourism activities expected to be resumed.

—  Conservative case (25% weighting): The expected resumption
of the tourism activities and expected cashflow from recovery
in base case would defer for 1 year due to prevalence of travel
restriction.

The recoverable amount of the Hotel CGU measured from income
capitalisation approach is approximately HK$214,000,000 (2020:
HK$252,839,000) which is lower than the carrying amount of the
Hotel CGU. Therefore, impairment loss was provided to property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets attributable to the
Hotel CGU for the year ended 30 June 2021 by approximately
HK$22,530,000 (2020: HK$8,709,000) and HK$2,831,000 (2020:
HK$666,000) respectively.

Impairment tests for Leasing CGU

The group of non-financial assets included in Leasing segment
("Leasing CGU") with gross carrying amount of HK$50,160,000 is
tested for impairment as the leasing segment recorded a segment
loss during the year. The recoverable amount of the Leasing CGU of
HK$47,000,000 have been determined by FVLCOD with reference to
the valuation prepared by JLL using income capitalisation approach
with use of significant unobservable inputs and hence were classified
as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, impairment loss was provided
to property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets attributable
to the Leasing CGU for the year ended 30 June 2021 by
approximately HK$2,267,000 and HK$897,000 respectively.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

15. . MWEMNERE#E)

BERESELBENMZRERR &)
RERN - COVD-19ZBEERNEREERS
EHEERTS  TEBSFREIREZERE
T o WABAMEERT R ATE R Th A
RTFERA B R MELER - LAET R4
Ffr it COVID-19 Ry £

— HABRT5%LE) : SERIRER
BIREERIEL  REBES 2
WABZZEZ—F—-—HRBZEHOE
WHRZEZ=Z /Z=FHRFE R
SEENTEHIRIER 2 MEE -

— RTFBER(BNLE) - KizEBRH
MERERERNRENERRSRE
15 R 3 B i 0 PR ol 7 I — 4 o

LARA B A AR E 2 BIE IR & E 4 B AL ]
W @] 4 5849 4 214,000,000 78 TT (ZE T4 -
252,839,000 70 ) * KRR BIEIR S EE BN
FRRME - At - BUBERSEEBMRE
ET-—FARA=ZTHIEFERGDE -
ﬁ%& SEREREEEMDREBEREG
53 311#922,530,0008 7L (= = Z4F : 8,709,000
7570) } 2,831,000 70 (ZF = : 666,000
/EE)

HERSELEENZRERE

AR FE AR D SRS H 2EE » ieE AR
% > BB 48 BR T {8 /4 50,160,000 76 7T 2 — #H 3F
cmEE([ABReEEEMN]) BIERENR
R -BABEBELEAEM 2RO S HE
470000008 L h 2 E R EBITERRAE
M EREZEE(ERERERTAIE
Rig ABIK)  BATERLEKRAETE
WOBEAE =M AFEERR BE_T——
FRAZTHIEFE  pABRSEESBMN
Emzmi BB NEE AR ERAEEE

DRI 8 49 2,267,000 78 7T K2 897,000 TT

Annual Report % 2020/21 183



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR R 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021

BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IxEWE

Total
st
HK$'000
FH&T

FAIR VALUE A¥{E
At 1 July 2019 RZE—hNF+tA—H 1,510,000
Addition NE 33,967
Fair value loss NEEEE (262,125)
Exchange adjustment PE 5 5 26,158
At 30 June 2020 R-BE-_TFA=+H 1,308,000
Addition NE 4,183
Fair value loss N EEE (111,939)
Exchange adjustment PE % 30,756
At 30 June 2021 R=-B-—-%XA=+H 1,231,000

The above investment properties are located in the Philippines. The
Group's property interest held to earn rentals is measured using the
fair value model and is classified and accounted for as investment

property.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 30 June 2021
was approximately HK$1,231,000,000 (30 June 2020:
HK$1,308,000,000). The fair value has been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), independent professional valuer not
connected with the Group. JLL is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Investment properties are pledged to a bank to secure the loan and
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values were determined based on the income approach,
where capitalising the estimated net income derived from the
investment properties with reference to the Lease Agreement and
taking into account the future growth potential with reference to
historical income trend achieved in previous years and latest market
condition. The discount rate was determined by reference to
weighted average cost of capital of the listed companies with similar
business portfolio. There had been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior period. Key assumptions used in
calculating the recoverable amount are as follows:

Growth rate of revenue g A8 =&
Discount rate TE X
Capitalisation rate B b =

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

16. IREWME®)

“?@u&k%#i BER2ERER G
RIREMEMBETRAFEERNL - Wit
&ixfﬁgﬁ ER2EFFERBE
WABE KRR - FTERSEBFEE

¥BHEE 7 ET AR Z NEFIERKAE
i FTRGERITEBESMLED R - &5

HAIWEISEFAAF2/REZNT :
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B-—F RZTZTHF
ANA=1H NA=1+H
3.0% 3.0%
12.5% 11.5%
7.5% 7.5%

During the year, the casino operated by PAGCOR in the Group's
property leased was closed for several months and reopened but
limited to a maximum of 30% to 50% capacity since late August
2020. The rental income forecasts used in the income capitalisation
approach were probability weighted based on the following
scenarios to account for the impact of COVID-19 as discussed in
Note 4:

—  Base case (75% weighting): The casino operated by PAGCOR is
reopened but limited to a maximum of 40%-60% capacity for
rest of 2021 and gradually resume to ordinary level
comparable with 2019's forecast from early financial year of
2022/23.

—  Conservative case (25% weighting): The casino operated by
PAGCOR is reopened but limited to a maximum of 40%
capacity for rest of 2021 and gradually resume to ordinary
level comparable with 2019's forecast from early financial year
of 2023/24.

FN - PAGCORRAEBHEMHELE
LHEREA  YE—_E-_ZTENATAE
M ERNABTEIEIE30%Z50% WA
&AL RFT RS WA TR ARE TSR
ETBMENE UBENE4EEZ
COVID-19 Z 2

—  EARBR(75%LE) 1 PAGCORAE & HY
RSB T —FHR T HEH
B 5 A A A ST 1S B 18 40%-60% -
YE-ET - /—=BHEEIIRE
FE-_T-NFIEAEENERKE -

—  SHIRB I (25% L E ) © PAGCORAL & H)
IR ER T - —FH TEHE
mEﬁWWA%$EﬁL%%<iE
I = /TR REENRER
BT NFEBEERESKE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

)
16.

—E - —FNA=FHIFFE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In addition, as a result of the increased uncertainty, significant
judgement is required when evaluating the inputs used in the fair
value estimate. Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to
any of the relevant assumptions would have affected the fair value of
the investment property. The effect of COVID-19 pandemic would
mean that the range of reasonably possible changes as presented
below:

Discount rate increased by 1%
Rental growth rate decreased by 1%
Capitalisation rate increased by 1%

BREI1%
MEIB R TR 1%
BN L IR A%

16. IREWME®)

LA - AR REE L N - FHE A EAE
FrAS ABIRRT ZEHERAE - RERE
HE - EEBRENEEEESETE
REYERNFE - COVID-19Z BN ES
REAIEREEFMNEE - 2700 ¢

At 30 June
2021
R=-TB=-—F
NA=1+H
HK$’ 000
FHET

(70,000)
(64,000)
(37,000)

The fair value of the investment property at 30 June 2021 and 2020
were measured using valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during
the year.

A significant increase/decrease in the rental value in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
discount rate and capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties. Generally, a change in the assumption made for the
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
rent growth per annum.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. LOAN RECEIVABLE

As at 30 June 2021, the Group's loan receivable represents three

loans to associates as below:

(a)

On 3 August 2017, a loan advance with principal of Peso
338,000,000 (equivalent to HK$53,815,000) was granted to
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. ("HVPHI"), which is
an associate of the Company since 5 July 2019. The loan is
interest bearing at 3.5% per annum, repayable annually and
the whole principal amount is repayable on 3 August 2032.

The loan was secured by three parcel of land owned by HVPHI.
Management considered that the estimated fair value of these
collaterals was not less than the carrying amount of the
respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2021.

In 2019, the Company additionally granted Peso 92,000,000
(equivalent to HK$14,638,000) to HVPHI. The loan is interest
bearing at 3.5% per annum, repayable on demand and
unsecured. The Group does not intend to request for
repayment within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

On 1 July 2019, a loan advance with principal of Peso
55,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,750,000) was granted to Pacific
Bayview Properties, Inc. (“PBPI"), which is the wholly owned
subsidiary of Blue Marine Properties, Inc., and is an associate of
the Company since 5 July 2019. The loan is interest bearing at
3.5% per annum and repayable on demand. The Group does
not intend to request for repayment within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.

The loan was secured by condominium properties owned by
PBPI. Management considered that the estimated fair value of
these collaterals was not less than the carrying amount of the
respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2021.

17.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

R-_ZE=——%F;

=tH AEEZREE

7~ H
FIETHABMERNTIRME T =58

(a)

RZE—tFENA=H ' XAAM
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.
(THVPHI) - BT —AFLATAR
BERRZHBERR)REERESER
338,000,000%% 2= (#HE 7253,815,000/87T)
ZERER c ZEFIRFEFE35%5T
B ARFEERE BR2EAESEER
—E=_F/\A=RHEE-

ZERAHVPHI#E B 2 = 8 - b {E 3K
- ERERE  ZEHEBR AT
AREBERIR_ZBE-_—FEA=+H
HEERE R 2 BREE -

RZZF—NF » KA B[R HVPHI REIME
1 92,000,000 # & (18 & 7 14,638,000 7
TL) ° ZEFIRFENEIS0ETE « AR
EREEREER - AEEESNF
ESHREAR T A RNERER -

RZE—NREELHA—HB XAFAM
Pacific Bayview Properties, Inc. ([ PBPI ) #5%
AN & %8 5550000008 R(H & B
87500008 7)) 2 ERBK » ZRAR
Blue Marine Properties, Inc. Z 2 & {1 B A
A WEBEZZE-AFEtARBARAR
NAElZHERT] o R EFIRFENZE35%
TR ARERERE - AEEEERN
HMERTEE T ZEARNESIEN °

ZEFAPBPIER 2 A B YR -
EEERE  ZSEERZGETAF
BERIPR T -—FA=1+HIHEH
JEWE R Z BREE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 18. Rt ENTZIERR
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020

R=ZF——F RZZT-FTF
ANA=T1H NA=1H

HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
FTHET FAT
Share of net assets DILBEEFE 55,686 55,228
Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: AEB ZHENR ZFIBWT ¢
Place of
incorporation Percentage
Name of associates Principal activities and operations held by the Group
=R K REE R
NGy FEXEK AR i 2 Aotk
%
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc., ("HVPHI")  Property developer the Philippines 40
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc, (THVPHI]) #1223 E JERE
Blue Marine Properties, Inc., ("BMP") Investment holdings the Philippines 40
Blue Marine Properties, Inc., ([BMP ]) EER JFEEE
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. MEENTIZVELS (&)

(a)

Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc., (a)

Harbor View Properties and

Holdings, Inc.,

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F R-_ZT_ZTF
ANA=1+H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET TETT
Current assets REVEE 51,596 55,570
Non-current assets ERENEE 207,903 206,962
Current liabilities mEaE (95,572) (93,997)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (74,737) (78,615)
Net assets BEEFHE 89,190 89,920
Net assets attributable to owners of EZEEARMEESE
the equity 89,190 89,920
Group’s share of the net assets of AEBDEHE AT
the associate EBERE 35,676 35,969
Period from
Year ended 5July 2019 to
30 June 30 June
2021 2020
B2 B[H-—Z=T—hF
—E-—F +tARBE
ANA=1H —ETTF
IEFE NA=TH
HK$’000 HKS'000
THExT FETT
Revenue WA 1,462 1,278
Loss for the year/period ER BN EE (2,774) (11,577)
Total comprehensive income FHEW=BE (2,774) (11,577)

Dividends received from the associate
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

s —

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

FNA=THIFE

18. REHENTEIZHER (&)

Blue Marine Properties, Inc., (b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc.,
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=ZB-—F RZZT-TF
ANA=1+H NAZ=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHIT
Current assets TENEE 14,209 9,928
Non-current assets IERBEE 106,589 108,833
Current liabilities nRBEE (45,200) (45,240)
Non-current liabilities EREaE (25,574) (25,375)
Net assets EEFE 50,024 48,146
Net assets attributable to owners of ERBEEAELEETE
the equity 50,024 48,146
Group’s share of the net assets of AEEDEHE QT
the associate BEERE 20,010 19,259
Period from
Year ended 5July 2019 to
30 June 30 June
2021 2020
BE B_Z—h#F
—E-—F tARBE
AAZ=+H —EEF
LEE ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHIT
Revenue WA 6,566 5,077
Profit/(loss) for the year/period FEREHREF (EE) 801 (3,641)
Total comprehensive income ZHR B 801 (3.641)

Dividends received from the associate

RGN 35
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. MEHERFIZ &R ()
The summarised movements of interest in associates during the year FRRBE N R 2 EREETELNT
are as below:
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2021 2020
BZE HE
—E-—F —E-TF
AA=T1H NA=1H
IEFE WEFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THExT FETT
At beginning of the year REL] 55,228 -
Acquisition of associates Hﬂz i3] - 54,599
Share of loss of associates (note) DB S N R EE (AaF) (789) (126)
Exchange adjustments PE A% 1,247 755
At end of the year RER 55,686 55,228
Note: The share of loss of associates for the year ended 30 June 2020 included et BE—ZE_ZTFEANA=ZTHIEFEDEBER
the gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of the associates of AIEBREREHEARNEERE A
HK$5,961,000, net of the share of loss for the year of HK$6,087,000 since 5,961,000/87C @ WAL E B REEEHE T
completion of acquisition by the Group. A B A1 E5 18 6,087,000 B T ©
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For theyear ended 30 June 2021

BE—F—_—FNA=THIFE

19. LEASE

During the year, the Group leases various offices, leasehold land and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 2 to 36 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is

enforceable.

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net carrying amount of leased properties

recognised as right-of-use assets is as follows:

19. #&

FR - AEBHEZERAT  HAELTHE
ETEEHEECH HOKETEFH2E
36FETA o MAVGRUREREEETE - 25
— Z5 T RMERR A& - B A R E T
AREGHERENRE - AEERERAAHOZEE
WEE A AT ENITEIMAE o

EREEE

R AEREEE ARYLEMFEAT
o

Leasehold land Properties Total

HELH L/ES st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

FET FET FH&T

At 30 June 2019 R=B-NFXA=+H = = =
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at RZE—hF+H—H

1July 2019 BRERNB B BEmE

RIS 165% 42,547 23,115 65,662

Depreciation for the year FRIE (1,978) (3,467) (5,445)

Addition NE 26,959 - 26,959

Impairment loss HEEE - (666) (666)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 32) HEMRBAR (FE32) (51,460) = (51,460)

Exchange adjustments PE i #E (1,612) 349 (1,263)

At 30 June 2020 R-ZB-BFXA=+AH 14,456 19,331 33,787

Depreciation for the year FRITE (407) (4,975) (5,382)

Addition NE - 12,890 12,890

Impairment loss REEE (897) (2,831) (3,728)

Disposal BTk = (528) (528)

Exchange adjustments b 5 335 361 696

At 30 June 2021 R-ZEB-—FXA=1+H 13,487 24,248 37,735

During the year, provision of impairment loss of right-of-use
assets related to Hotel CGU of approximately HK$2,831,000 (2020:
HK$666,000) and related to Leasing CGU of approximately
HK$897,000 (2020: Nil) was recognised in profit or loss to write down
to its recoverable amount, detailed in Note 15.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

19. LEASE (Continued) 19. fHE &)
Lease liabilities HEaE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during FAHECEFEAAERESHNOT ¢

the year are as follows:

Leasehold land Properties Total

HELTH LY ES st

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FHT FATT FH&T

At 30 June 2019 R=Z—-h&EXSA=+H - = =

Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 RZE—-NFEH—H
at 1 July 2019 BN E B mE

RIS 165 42,547 23,115 65,662

Addition B 26,959 = 26,959
Lease payments iRy 4.272) (5,054) (9,326)
Interest expenses TR 3,170 2,384 5,554
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 32) HEWB AR (M 32) (52,020) - (52,020)
Exchange adjustments PE % 38 (1,624) 376 (1,248)
At 30 June 2020 R-ZE-ZEFXA=1H 14,760 20,821 35,581
Addition NE - 12,890 12,890
Lease payments Giskoyickn (1,116) (7,246) (8,362)
Interest expenses FEFHX 1,016 3,676 4,692
Disposal HE - (636) (636)
Exchange adjustments PE H 334 364 698
At 30 June 2021 R=-BE-—-&HxXA=1+H 14,994 29,869 44,863
At 30 June At 30 June

2021 2020

R=F|=-—F R-_ZT_FTF

~A=+H ANA=+A

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHTT

Current mE 2,469 2,774
Non-current JEmE 42,394 32,807

At 30 June 2021 R=-BE=—%XA=1H 44,863 35,581
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

19. LEASE (Continued)

19. & #)

Operating lease commitments — The Group as lessor

As announced by the Company on 18 December 2015, MSPI as
lessor, entered into the Lease Agreement with PAGCOR as lessee for
the renewal of the lease of certain premises of the Group for a term
commencing from 1 April 2016 and expiring on the earlier of 31
March 2031 or upon the total rent accruing against and/or payable
by PAGCOR to MSPI under the Lease Agreement reaching an
aggregate of Peso24.5 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,686,877,000). The monthly rental is based on a certain
percentage of net gaming revenue of the casino operated by
PAGCOR or a fixed amount of Peso100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HKS$15,000)),
whichever is higher. Rental income arising from such agreement
during the year end 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$30,638,000
(2020: HK$140,728,000), representing contingent rental income.

The total future minimum lease payment to be received are as
follow:

KREROEE —TEEEAEHBEA

BMARBTR -_E—RHE+-A+N\BFRD
5 + MSPI(1E & H 7 A ) B2 PAGCOR (1E A4
NEIEERZ  NEBAEBETWEZ
4 FHE T —R"FMA—B# TR
—FT=—F= A =+—HH PAGCORIRIET
BB BN RSB FTMPIZ R HEE 4
%8 & 3 3245000000008 =( & R 4
3,686,877,00078 70 ) Z B (ABRE & B2 ) B Hf -
B #5H PAGCOR A B IREEIB FT S M AF
BHETHDLLKETESEE 100000 R (B E
RH#160008TTL(R_E-_ZFFNA=1+H:
5008 TL)) 2 BREEET - BE_T=-—
FRAZTHIFE  s@BzEEZHS
W A 493063800078 T( = & = T F:
140,728,000/ 7T)  AEZE R KA S UA °

RRZIEBAOE S AFEWERAT :

At 30 June At 30 June

2021 2020

R=FB=—F RN_ZT_ZTF

NA=1H NA=1TH

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FETT

Within one year to fifth year inclusive —EZhFE(REERME) 962 917
Over five years BilEAF 962 1,101
1,924 2,018
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

20. BRAFESTABRBZERHEE

BAFEFABGSZEREERRNATS

following: 15 :

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=ZB=—F RZT_ZTHF
NA=1H NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&xT FHT

Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia High Yield mIRERRDWS MRS ESE
Bond Income Fund KEETESRER 717 711
Unlisted investment fund (note) FLETIREES (M) 51,856 92,730
52,573 93,441

Note:

The unlisted investment fund represented approximately 48% (2020: 50%)
interests in Hontai Capital Fund Il Limited Partnership (the "Hontai Fund”).

This Hontai Fund was established principally to achieve long-term capital
appreciation primarily through privately-negotiated investments in companies
and/or its affiliates which is/are engaged in the production and distribution of the
sports events and entertainment content and sports media rights market. The
Group is a limited partner in this Hontai Fund and does not have control nor
significant influence in the Hontai Fund’s operational and financing decisions.

The directors of the Company have determined the fair value of its interest held in
the Hontai Fund as at 30 June 2021 with reference to the valuation report issued
by JLL, an independent professional valuer who has professional qualifications and
relevant experience. The fair value of the Hontai Fund is determined by market
approach, with references to comparable companies benchmark multiples. During
the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group recognised a fair value loss of
HK$46,545,000 in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

it -

3k £ ™ & & & & 4§ M Hontai Capital Fund Il Limited
Partnership ([ Hontai Fund|) &) #948% ( = & = = 4F :
50%) #E % °

FX 3 Hontai Fund 2 EZ B ABER REAE AKLE -
FEEALTEERENREEUERDHER TS
IREND REE B EEEERE Y RE Rk, SHE
AF] o NEEE A Hontai Fund ZBRAEE A + ¥ Hontai
Fund 2 &8 MV ERR W EIEHINERTEN

AAREZEL2RAGEEXEERREBALCHR 2B IE
EGEMAPEHITHE ZEERS - BT E M Hontai
FundFB 2 EaRN S =—F ~A=THZATE -
Hontai Fund Z A EFAMHALRBRAI AL E AR Z
BEAEGHEE BE-T-—FA=THIEFE -
AEEBRGKAZAURERAERATEEIE
46,545,000 8 7T ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE-F-—FXA=1AILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. FEMRRIE

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F R_T_ZTF
ANA=T1H NAZ=+H

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FH&TT

Trade receivables FEWBR IR 4,737 8,199
Less: provision for expected credit losses B TEEEEEERE (390) (1,146)
4,347 7,053

UTARBRENEEERREZAH(ES
FAUAER B IR ) 251 2 FRUARIE (kR

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on invoice date which

approximate the respective revenue recognition date at the end of REREEE) 2 BRIR AT o
the reporting period.
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020

R=B-—F RZT-TF
ANA=1H ~NA=1+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FE T FATT

0-30 days 0230H 3,429 3,927
31-60 days 31260 H - 6
61-90 days 61E90H 50 6
Over 90 days tBiEoo A 868 3,114
4,347 7,053

The Group has a policy allowing its customers credit periods NEEBRZERELTFTEERE—HBNTF0EN
normally ranging from 0 to 90 days. The Group does not hold any BZEEH - KEBWESE T B IERHF
collateral as security. ZIRIE o

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting AE BRI FE3 0TI & 5 B ERFERRE
policy stated in Note 3.10. For detailed assessments, please refer to B8 - SHE 5 2B 400) ©
Note 40(a).
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BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HifEWFEIE, REKRFERTIE
PREPAYMENTS
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F R-_ZT_ZTF
NA=1+H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET TFET
Deposit He 8,331 9,055
Other receivables H b B WA 5,471 16,501
Prepayment TEfRTRIE 24,714 20,958
Interest receivables e R B, 8,912 6,046
47,428 52,560
Represented by: 5 :
Non-current portion IERENER D 16,995 14,329
Current portion mENEL 30,433 38,231
47,428 52,560
23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 23. EHNEEREHNERE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (a) BHEE
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020

R=B=—F RZE_ZTF
~A=T1H ~NA=1+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHERT FAT
Current contract assets relating to ERFRHH 5 RIS B RS 2
provision of hotel services MEERNEE 2,232 4128
In case of room revenue, the guest pays the room charge MEBBRAME @ B ALRR R
based on the payment schedule. If the services rendered by REMERWE - Wl 5Tt RE
the Hotel exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. ZRNR AIEREHNEE ° H B
If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract SZIRPTIRERTS - AIERaNEE

liability is recognised.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a) Contract assets (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses of the contract assets are based on those of the
trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade
receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision
rates of contract assets are based on days past due of trade
receivables appropriately grouped by similar loss pattern. The
calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome, the
time value of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecast of future economic

conditions.

After applying the expected credit loss rate to gross amount
of contract assets, the management considered that the
provision of impairment loss of contract assets is immaterial

and no expected credit loss has recognised.

(b) Contract liabilities

23. EHEEREHNEE®)

(a)

(b)

Contract liabilities relating to provision of B2 ERIEEE 2

hotel service AHaE

BREE®E)

K& S B HRAREREETRE
o U EEHREEER - SHES
MEBEEZTRBEEERMABRERT
YRR 2 BBEXERKRE - REAR
BRNEENREBYSRETIREEREP
B ONBEEZBRBRIENZES
BEEXEENRZERERE AN
B - AR E R XN
E¥RBEEENARRERS BHAERF
BRABESMN - BRI ERRE R
RRTER 2 BB RBBAIKZER

HeNEERERAAREEBEX
% EEERBAMNEEZRERER
BEBMIRERYERREHEE
B8 -

EHNERE
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
REZB-—F RZZT-THF
ANA=1+H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
19 972

As at 30 June 2021, contract liabilities mainly represents
receipts in advance from customers of the Hotel operation.
The balance of the contract liabilities are expected to be

utilised within a year.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 23. EHNEERSNEE®)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (Continued) (b) EHEEBE)
Movements in contract liabilities: AHBEZEEHOT
Hotel Matchday
service income Total
B 5 AR A% LLEH WA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAET TET FET
Balance as at 30 June 2019 R-ZE—AFRNA=1H
2 KRR 601 10,742 11,343
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 32) HENE AT (Kat32) = (24,958) (24,958)
Decrease in contract liabilitiesas RN AR AFEIE L)
a result of recognising revenue afEza=imal B
during the year that was BREERD
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (603) (10,646) (11,249)
Increase in contract liabilities FAEGLHEEBM
during the year 955 25,753 26,708
Exchange difference E H =58 19 (891) (872)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 RZZEZZFA=+H
2R 972 - 972
Decrease in contract liabilitiesas ~ FAREBERT AFIE L
a result of recognising revenue BEz2 WM B
during the year that was aHBERD
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (1,001) - (1,001)
Increase in contract liabilities FREHBEEM
during the year 19 - 19
Exchange difference b X =50 29 - 29
Balance as at 30 June 2021 RZE—_—FA=+H
2 AEER 19 - 19
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For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T _—F N A=1THIEFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24, FEfTBRIE, HMERIBNRIERE

ACCRUED CHARGES H
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges comprise JETERIE - EMERRIB R EAERAER
amounts outstanding for the purchase and ongoing costs. BRFENRN RN EHE o
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based LT ARSmEHRAEHRERRHZEY 2
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. JEFTBRIBERER D AT ©
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. HEELZEEEES AR -
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—%F R-ZT_TF
A~A=t+H NA=TH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
0-30 days 0&30H 1,587 2,606
31-60 days 31260 H 68 62
61-90 days 61 %290 H - 127
Over 90 days tBi@oo H 124 749
1,779 3,544
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BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25. REREA(R
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movement FANERAZELEHIEBBENARESFHEEY
during the year are listed as follow: RIOE
Fair value
adjustments Fair value Fairvalue  Withholding Unrealised
Accelerated  onProperty,  adjustments  adjustment taxon foreign
capital plantand oninvestment onintangible undistributed exchange
allowance equipment properties assets earnings gain Total
n% - BER
iz RENRC BVEEX AR AR
nEErEE  ATERE  ATERE  ATESE BRCEAM Bk @5t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TR Thr TiEn TR TR TR TR

At30 June 2019 RZE-AEXA=1H 39 25,092 126052 4n 14134 18997 184786
Credited to proft orloss for the year  EARMBZEF A = (444) (1,199 (300) - (843) (6783)
Disposal of subsitaries (note 32 (WERBAE (i 32) - (1533) = (164) - - (1697)
Exchange adjustments A% = 338 2879 ®) - 374 3583
At30 June 2020 RZZ-FF A=1H 39 19455 121733 - 14134 18528 179,889

(Credited)/charged toprofitorloss ~ ERRBH (GTA)/H1B

for the year - (11,802) (19,725) - - n7 (30,810)
Exchange adjustments [ ER - 526 2,238 - - 412 3,176
At30 June 2021 R_ZE-—-F~A=tH 39 8,179 110,246 = 14,134 19,657 152,255
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BE-_T-_—FNA=-1THAIFE
25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 25. BERIERGE (@)
At 30 June 2021, the Group had estimated unused tax losses of RZZBEZ—FA=1TH XEEEMHFR
approximately HK$145,252,000 (2020: HK$142,996,000) and E AR IEE B 491452520008 L (ZE = F
deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$3,432,000 F 1 142996,000/8 L) REAREBET % F
(2020: HK$3,672,000) arising from certain companies within the SREEBZET ARSI Bz Al HIEHEARKE
Group that are suffering from losses for years available for offset 2z AT 3056 B B = 55 4934320008 L (=&
against future profits. At 30 June 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax ZEF 136720008 L) RZEZ—F K
assets was recognised for such losses due to the unpredictability of ZEZFTFANA=TH - ARENTERAS
future profit streams from these companies within the Group. Tax EETZEREZARRBFAOR - b 3
losses amounting to approximately HK$62,573,000 (2020: ZEBREZAELHELEE - HREEEY
HK$61,100,000) may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining 62,573,000 7T (ZF ZZ 4 : 61,100,000/ 7T)
tax losses will be expired as follows: AR BAAE4E - TR IR AR KA T F 1
FI8 -
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R-E-—F —ETF
ANA=+H 7 \)EJ =+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FH&TT
Year 2020 —E-FTF - 12,749
Year 2021 —E-—4F 53,359 52,184
Year 2022 —EF- 11,276 11,028
Year 2023 —E-=F 6,069 5,935
Year 2024 —E_mEF 11,975 -
82,679 81,896
26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 26. BRIABFIAAE

The retirement benefit costs of the Group recognised in consolidated RERE 2SR R 2 AN & BERRAE T K
statement of comprehensive income are as follows: AT
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Bz S
—B-—F —ECTEF
NB=1+H ~NA=1H
LFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THBT
Hong Kong BB 198 189
The Philippines JERE 832 1,225
1,030 1414
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

Pursuant to Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485, Laws of Hong Kong), the Group participates in a defined
provident fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong.

Under the relevant law in the Philippines, it provides a benefit to
qualified employees but it does not require minimum funding of the
plan. In the absence of any pension plan in the entity, the relevant
law requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified employees.

Defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund retirement
benefit scheme in Hong Kong. The relevant scheme assets are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of the
trustee. Under that scheme, the Group is required to make
contributions pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485, Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group's contributions to the retirement benefit scheme in Hong
Kong charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2021 was approximately
HK$198,000 (Year ended 30 June 2020: HK$189,000).

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines

Net defined benefit obligations AERBMNEEFEE

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

6. RIKEFIRLA (&)

RIBCRFIE LB BRI (BEEHF
485%) ARENFEL2E-HARAERESR
BIRENETE

RIBIFFEEMBAD  MERAEREER
HErl - B EBRTEAE < RIEHER - HE
BHETARARESHE  HREMIRERS
BEREERERNKE -

EHEREMRGTE

AEERBFB2E-RRHIELTESRRE
Mtdl - BRI EEURTAENZES
A BAKEZEESREBRSE - RE
BRETE - AEEARBCRAFIERTES
BNRGI(EEEDIF485F ) 2 REMEH MR -

HE_BE-—FXA=1TRHILFEZHEESE
AW mEKNERE 2 AEEREBRIKEFEE
ZHERE B 198000 BT (BEZZ T F <
A=+HIEFE : 189000/87T) °

FREREBAGE
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R-ZB=—F RZZT_ZHF
NA=+1H ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&xT FHT
9299 4,661

The Group operates a funded defined benefit plan for the qualified
employees of its subsidiary in the Philippines.

AEBRHEFEREMNBLARZAERERR
B—RERE 2 RERAGEE -

Annual Report #£2020/21 203



BIFRIREER R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R

For the year ended 30 June 2021

B2 T —FNNA=FHIFE

26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 26. BIREFIRLA (&)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

The defined benefit plan is administrated by trustee appointed by
the respective subsidiary of the Company and is legally separated
from the subsidiary. Under the plan, the qualified employees are
entitled to retirement benefits equivalent to final plan salary for
every year of credit service at the normal retirement age. There are
no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement benefit
obligations expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company.
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement
benefit scheme and the retirement fund is not sufficient to settle the
obligation, the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be
due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of the Company to the
retirement fund.

(@  The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

FFRERERANTE (B

REBNTEHARAERBMBARMEE
XRARE  AAENERERZNBA
B HEE - RIBZATE BEREREL
BRAFERE  ARASECEREFEE
HERN &R EF & 2B IREF - BRIKE
NEELTESARBABERMERRAZT
SEREKER - A - HRERKENG
EREEMARMERESA T EANE
£ AZBRRABNES 285 # R 2
Hl - WEARARRBRMERRXN FRR

(@ AEEREAERMNAEZEMERE
EEREFREUBMNERZ BT ¢

At 30 June At 30 June

2021 2020

R=2B=—F R-ZT_FTF

~A=+H NA=TH

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Present value of defined benefit obligations Rt | & (IR (& 1,007 4,705
Fair value of plan assets rEEEATE (8) (44)

Net liability arising from defined benefit AEBINEFEELECBEFHE

obligations 999 4,661
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(b)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations for both the years ended 30 June 2021 and 30

June 2020 are as follows:

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

IRIREFIRA (&)
FERERERBAFE (2
(b) HE T -_—F~A= JFE&_Y_

TEXASTRLEMEEE  RERE
FIEERERBHIT :

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R-E-——F AZE—FE

~A=+H NA=t1H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

F#&xT FHIT

At beginning of the year REH] 4,705 6,332
Service costs PR 75 A A (3,091) 208
Interest cost VAlESND N 165 319
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE (S 179 (442)
Benefits paid EHZEE al (1,086) 2511)
Exchange realignment bE H A2 135 99
At end of the year PR 4R 1,007 4,705

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the
years ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 are as follows:

© #HEZE-_—FA=tBHEK=Z=
ZENAZTHLEREFE @ 58E
ERNFEZFHMT :

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F R_Z_ZTF
~NAE=1+H NA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FH&TT

At beginning of the year RE 44 50
Interest income MBI A 2 2
Actuarial losses SHEEE (2) (1)
Contributions by the employer EEHK 1,496 859
Contributions by plan participants sTEI2EEHER (1,534) (865)
Exchange realignment ME 5, o B 2 (M)
At end of the year RER 8 44

Annual Report #£2020/21 205



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ45 R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 26. BRIAEFIMA (&)
Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued) FERERAEENE (E)
(d) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of d) REgerEmbaREREBZEAT

comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit
plans are as follows:

BAE Bz BT

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
—B--F —EEF
~AE=1+H ~NA=1+H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FH&T
Service cost: ARFE R A -
Service costs AR 7 AR 2R (3,091) 908
Net interest expense FE X FEE 3,923 317
Components of defined benefit costs RIB=ER 2 A ERBF
recognised in profit or loss XA ER 5 832 1,225
Remeasurement on the net defined EFTtEREENBEFE
benefit liability:
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEB (W) 179 (442)

The defined benefit cost of HK$832,000 (2020: HK$1,225,000)
has been included in the administrative expenses. The
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included
in other comprehensive income.

The Group has also made provision for estimated liabilities for
retirement benefit obligations, in the absence of any pension
plan, covering the qualified employees of its another
subsidiary in the Philippines. There are no unusual or
significant risks to which the retirement benefit obligations
expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company. However in
the event a benefit claim arises, the obligations shall
immediately be due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of
the Company.
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations at 30 June
2021 were carried out by E.M. Zalamea Actuarial Services, Inc.
and Institutional Synergy, Inc. (2020: E.M. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. and Institutional Synergy, Inc.) (members of the
Actuarial Society of the Philippines), the independent
actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligations, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the
actuarial valuation were as follows:

8 &
BEHFEREE

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

BIARFIRLA (&)
FEERTCENTE (2)

(d)

(#&)
FEIEERIHBEMERRERT
EER_E-_—FXA=+tHZRE

M 98 3 48 & BTEM. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. &2 Institutional Synergy, Inc.

— £ = LT F : EM. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. & Institutional Synergy, Inc.)
( & Actuarial Society of the Philippines 2
BX8 )T -
RERMEEZREREHRE RS
PR K@ E ARG A A ThER AR TR 5T B AL
SPAVEEE o

EEREERAZEEZ/EMT ¢

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F RZZE-FTF
ANA=+H ~NA=+AH

4.67%-4.94%
4.00%-5.00%

3.51%-3.70%
4.00%-5.00%

The discount rate assumption is based on the spot yield curve
calculated from the market yields by striping the coupons
from government bonds to create theoretical zero-coupon
bonds as of the valuation date as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

The actuarial valuation showed that the fair values of the
above unit investment trust funds are determined based on
mark-to-market valuation.

The actual return on plan assets was a loss of approximately
HK$1,000 (2020: HKS$1,000).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligations is 18.8 years (2020: 16.1 years).

Based on the actuarial reports prepared by the independent
actuaries, the Group's expected contribution is to be made to
the defined benefit plan for the next financial year is nil (2020:
nil).

BRBRIDEN B TS WER ’;E?
HeREWamHAR - LB BN
——HER-F_FFRA= +EIE|H¥F
BEGERZBRFESF2EBNAEIE

BREREES -

BEHERR UWLBEUREREREE
T Z A FEDREBEZETEMEZGE
B -

eI EEER LR A BB 1,0008 T
—T T4 1,000/87T) °

AERMNEEIEFHE B 188F (=
T _TE 1 16145)
REBYIBEMERR CBERS - A
EEEHBEAT —URFERTRE
A BER R (ZE_EF : &) -
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)
27.

28.

—E_—FANH=T1THIFFE

SHARE CAPITAL 27. BX
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F R_T_ZTF
ANA=+H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each SFlEEE ST EER
Authorised: EIE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,000 % & 358 A% 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRHE
1,369,157,235 ordinary shares FUIRFR LB
at beginning and end of year 1,369,157,235 % 1,369,157 1,369,157

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

On 1 November 2017, the shareholders of the Company approved
and adopted a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group. In determining whether a person has contributed or
will contribute to the Group, the Group will take into account,
among other things, whether contribution has been made to or will
be made to the Group in terms of operation, financial performance,
prospects, growth, reputation and image of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors may, at their
discretion, invite any eligible participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company. The exercise price
for the share options shall be determined in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules.
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants and movements in the

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

28. LI pAERAR®)
% B AR R R G BRI ST BB T

number of share options under the Share Option Scheme during the RS EERNEFHOT
year were as follows:
Weighted
average
exercise price Number
In¥EF T EE ®A
‘000
1
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021 HR=-Z—NAFE+H—H -
RZZBEZTFA=1TAEK
—E-—FXA=1H 187 68,458

The weighted average exercise price of options outstanding for the
year ended is HK$1.87 (2020: HK$1.87) and their weighted average
remaining contractual life was 6.55 years (2020: 7.55 years).

Of the total number of options outstanding at the end of the year, all
were exercisable at the end of the year. All of the share options
outstanding were held by third party grantees, the directors and
employees of the Group did not hold any share options.

No share options were exercised during the year ended 30 June
2021 and 2020.

HEFREARITE ZBREZ MEFHITE
Ei/%mﬁ%ﬁ(_g_? P87 ) R E
MEFHRBRENFHRSF(ZEE
£ : 7554F) o

RBEEREHRTRZBREALKES 2
BRI R RITIE © FTA HARTTIE 2 BB A HE
VHE=TARARE MAKEEENE
B ERr A B -

BE_T_—HR_ZF_TFAA=THL
FE - EBBEETE -
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)
29.

—E - —FNA=THIEFE
PROMISSORY NOTE

The promissory note (the “2016 Promissory Note") was issued on 3
October 2016 by Fortune Growth Overseas Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the holder is an independent third
party (the “Holder”). The 2016 Promissory Note carries interest which
accrues on the outstanding principal amount of HK$350,000,000
from its issue date until repayment in full of the principal amount at
the fixed rate of 4% per annum. The promissory note shall become
due and payable in full on the business day immediately preceding
the fifth anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and
guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 March 2021, Fortune Growth Overseas Limited issued 6
promissory notes (the “New PNs") to the Holder in exchange for the
2016 Promissory Note. The New PNs in the principal amount of
HKS$64,150,685 each and totalling HK$384,904,110 represented the
principal amount and the accrued interest of the 2016 Promissory
Note. The New PNs carry interest which accrues on the outstanding
principal amount of HK$384,904,110 from its issue date until
repayment in full of the principal amount at the fixed rate of 4% per
annum. The New PNs shall become due and payable in full on the
business day immediately preceding the first anniversary of its issue
date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the Company. A
modification gain of approximately HK$1,945,000 was recognised in
profit or loss in relation to this non-substantial modification of
promissory note, which represented the amount by which the
aggregate of the carrying amount of the 2016 Promissory Note and
interest payable exceeded the amortised cost of the New PNs.

The promissory notes are denominated in HKS which is the foreign
currency of the relevant group entity (where functional currency is
Peso).
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29. ERERE

EAEERE(ZZ—AR"FALZERDER =T
—R"FT+HA=ZHBHARAZENEB QA
Fortune Growth Overseas Limited 2% 17+ 3% &
ANB—BBIE=F(HFBA] - ZT—K
R 5 B R (B2 2N & %8 350,000,000 7 7T
BEFTAPBRESASTHEREEER L
MIZEEFEFE4EREFE - AL EBK
REEEFTAERERRFA —EE%A
FHREZEEERE  BAEERTHART
BR -

RZZE-_—F=H=+—H ’ Fortune Growth
Overseas Limited A3 8 A Z17 /51075 2K
([FALER]) AR T —RNFERLE
B BHMEAHLEBRNARS 5 A64,150685 %8
JC v 48 FE B3849041107B T HER Z-E
—NFAREBENAS REFTFE o &3
HEERKEERNSTE3849041108TEH
BITHHREE A RERYEE MR
BEFHEAEREHE - FiEHLEBEHR
ERHBTHHARE —(EBRFIMNEEEE
HERAEZEST  BAEEBRIWHARQF]
R - KRR AXNFAH ZIHEHNIFEAIEF]
RI825 AR RE RIS 3T W25 491,945,000 8 7T » 48
ERZ T NFAEEENEEMNTEA
BREERL AL ZIRE R A2 S -

AR RBABTTEHE BT HBEEEER
(B EB RER) 25N -
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BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. R1TEE

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=FB=—F R_Z_ZTF
ANA=+H ~A=1H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Non-current FERE
Bank loans due for repayment more than —FREEERZIRITEE
one year 34,803 53,486
Current B
Bank loans due for repayment within one year —FRF|HIEE 2 RITEE 19,887 19,450
Note: Biet -
On 4 March 2019, a banking facility has been granted to a subsidiary of the Group RZZ—NF=AMAB ' XEEET—HIBARE
of Peso 1,500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$238,648,000), of which FERITELE 1,500,000,000 % 2= (46 & P £ 238,648,000 74
Peso 343,750,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,690,000) has been utilised as JT) » EH 343,750,000 # 2 (48 E M 47 54,690,000 7 7T )
at 30 June 2021. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 8.53% per annum in respect RZZEZ—FAA=THEEIHA - ZERTRHER
to this banking facility. EEFFESIEF R o
The bank loans are secured by the subsidiaries’ investment properties (note 16) RITIEE R EEFEA1,231,0000007% 7T 2 [ B A )
with net asset value of HK$1,231,000,000. ZIE % (T 16) fEHEHR o
At 30 June 2021, total non-current bank loans was scheduled to repay as follows: RZZBZ—FA=1TH  BERATNERERIER
BIRITEE LR -
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=-Z=—F N S
ANHA=+8 A~NB=1+8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHATT
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —FRBTHBAMF 19,887 19,450
More than two years, but not exceeding five years MEBRETBBAF 14,916 34,036
34,803 53,486
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)
31.

—E - —FNA=THIEFE
CONVERTIBLE BOND

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) for the
acquisition of 100% interest in Oriental-Invest Properties Limited
entered into by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Baltic
Success Limited (“BSL") on 5 July 2019, BSL issued a 5 years zero
coupon convertible bond with principal amount of HK$53,000,000
on 5 July 2019 (the “Bond"). The Bond entitled the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HKS$1.01 as set out in the Company's announcement dated 30 April
2019.

Based on the terms of the Agreement, the Bond contain two
components, (i) the host debt and (i) the conversion derivatives. The
Group recognised both components as liability as the conversion
derivatives of the bond did not meet the “fixed for fixed” test under
HKAS 32. At the issue date, the fair value of both components of the
Bond were determined based on a valuation report issued by JLL.
Subsequently, the host debt component is classified as “financial
liabilities at amortised cost” and measured at amortised cost, the
conversion derivatives is classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss” (“Financial liabilities at FVTPL") and measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of the host debt of the Bond upon issuance were
calculated at the present value of the estimated coupon interest
payments and principal amount. The discount rate used in the
calculation is 10.01%. The fair value of the conversion derivatives of
the Bond upon issuance and end of each reporting period is
determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The key inputs
used in the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Stock price (HK$) AR fE (BT)
Exercise price (HK$) TEE(EIT)
Expected life TEHASF HR
Expected volatility TE B IR
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B Mz
Risk free rate 42 [ B 7 2=

31.

B RR (B

RIEAX QA 22 & W B A 7l Baltic Success
Limited ([BSL) R =T — hE+ AR B FTET
3 % K U B8 Oriental-Invest Properties Limited
100% #E z 2 Rk s ([ &tk ) - BSLIA =
T—NF+ A LB #EITARS$ %R 53000000
BT AFEEBABRKRES ([EH]) o #
MARTBESHA-_Z-NFNA=TEZA
EHTE - BEE T EE ARMIRBRARE 1.0
B ESFER AR AB LB

REBZ M ER > EEEmERD ()
BEK: ROERITETA - XAEEERE
MOERREE REAREHFBBRITETA
PEEBERGHERFERRET [EEHRE
ELAH - RETAY EFMAEKI A
FEDREBMEBTELZEEREETE -
Hig TREHEDEAS [IHEHEKATE
ZEBAE ] MZEHEKATTE - MR
ATARESBER RAFEFABGZZE
BaEl (RAVFEFABENEREE])
M AT ERFE  MAFEZEHENER
R o

RETHESEBEH 2 A FERMGEFTRR
MENREASBE 2 RENE - sFHEAEA
FHEER1001% - RETHEEREHKRE
FEMITETAZ A HERA A S#EE
ERIEE - —RAMREERLMRAE
RRAZEMOT ¢

30 June 30 June
2021 2020
—B-—F —B_FF
ANA=T1H ~A=1H
0.42 0.66

1.01 1.01

3 years F 4 years F
75.09% 65.50%
0% 0%

0.31% 0.23%
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BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued) 31. AJHARRMESF (&)
The movement for the convertible bond during the year is as below: FRNARIRESREEWOT :
Financial Financial
liability at liability
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
248 6 R AN BAFE
STEZ SFABHEZ
sRaE sRaE et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TFET FET FET
At 5 July 2019 R-Z-hEtAEH 32,811 21,788 54,599
Amortised interest for the year FAEHETE 3,266 = 3,266
Fair value adjustments N EFE - (13,173) (13,173)
At 30 June 2020 R-B=-FBEXA=1+H 36,077 8,615 44,692
Amortised interest for the year FERNEEFE 3,293 - 3,293
Fair value adjustments NEFHE = (5,104) (5,104)
At 30 June 2021 NR-TB-_—FxA=1+H 39,370 3,511 42,881
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEHBLE

On 14 February 2020, the Company and the Purchaser entered into
the Sales and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued shares (the “Sales Shares”) of
Newworth. The total consideration for the Sale Shares was
GBP17,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$177,235,000) and
was paid by the Purchaser in cash. Upon completion of the Disposal,
the Group ceased to have any beneficial interest in the Disposal
Group, and all the companies in the Disposal Group ceased to be
subsidiaries/members of the Company. The financial results of the
Disposal Group was no longer consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

As the Company's director, Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, through Head
and Shoulders Direct Investment (Series C Class 1) Limited,
subscribed 51% of the limited partnership interests in the Purchaser
and acts as one of the limited partners of the Purchaser prior to the
Disposal, the transaction is classified as a related party transaction.

MN-ZE-_TF-A+MH  KAAREEFE]
VEBEWE Bt ARREKERENE
i & 7 A& 1§14 B 3 47 88 Newworth 2 8 B %
TRA(HEERD ] - HERBRARES
17,500,000 2% £% ( #H & 7 %9 177,235,000 7T )
WHEAURBLS SN - RHESEZEKE -
AEBTBREEEEHEE M E SR -
HEEBAEARTBEAARGKBA
AL/ B RAR - HEEBYPBEETHHA
RRARRE MISHRE -

R A A A E 25 B8 1§ 4 3 B Head and
Shoulders Direct Investment (Series C Class 1)
Limited B E T 51% AR A B ERINHE
SHAMEREFEP—ZERERA X5
WHRRABAERS -
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BT —FA=1THIFE
32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

All conditions in the Sales and Purchase Agreement have been
fulfilled and subsequently the transaction was completed on the
Disposal Date. The Disposal Group engaged in operation of football

32. HEMBLE (&)

EE 2 2 BEFDEER - XS AR
BB o O R BRI AL RIRIR
ST - MBS HEREEEFE

club in the UK. The net assets of the Disposal Group at the Disposal m

Date were as follows:

HK$'000
FH&TT
Consideration receivable: FEWARE :
Cash consideration HERE 177,235
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Vs - R RSt (Fat15) (302,179)
Right-of-use assets (note 19) EREEE (K7 19) (51,460)
Intangible assets — player registrations | A E — FRE i (72,214)
Inventories 78 (1,346)
Trade receivables FEUARTE (4,179
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HhEWEIE - ke RIEN A (3,577)
Bank balances and cash RITHEF LR (5,027)
Trade payables FETRRIE 12,964
Other payables and accrued charges HAb IR BT E A 90,173
Contract liabilities (note 23(b)) aRa’E R 230b) 24,958
Lease liabilities (note 19) HEaEMHFZE19) 52,020
Amount due to the Group AR EFRIA 456,632
Deferred tax liabilities (note 25) BIETRIEE & (A3 25) 1,697
Net liabilities disposed of before wavier of BReAREERICEEEFHE
intercompany balance 198,462
Less: Non-controlling interest disposed of W BE IR ER (14,965)
Wavier of intercompany balance (note) BN R HE&E R (M) (212,895)
Carrying amounts of net assets disposed of EEFEEREE (29,398)
Gain on disposal before exchange reserve released & HH IE H R AT B s 147,837
Exchange reserve released & HH IE A (19,875)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &K B A R 127,962
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRESMAFHE :
Cash consideration BeRE 177,235
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEER e RIRITET (5,027)
172,208
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note:

As at the Disposal Date, the Disposal Group had an amount due to the Company
which includes the amounts advanced by the Company to the Disposal Group, in
aggregate, amounted to approximately HK$456,632,000, out of which
approximately GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$243,737,000) was
identified as the “Pre Existing Loan”, which represents the injection of working
capital by the Company since the completion of the acquisition in 2018. Pursuant
to the Sales and Purchase Agreement, the Company and the Disposal Group
entered into a loan agreement with principal amount equals to the Pre Existing
Loan (the “Loan Agreement”). The terms of the Loan Agreement is repayable
within one year and bears an interest of 8% per annum. All Pre Existing Loan had
been repaid on 29 May 2020.

The remaining balance of amount due to the Company apart from the Pre Existing
Loan of approximately HK$212,895,000 was waived by the Company upon
completion of the Disposal.

COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet accounted for at the
end of the reporting period in the financial statements is as follows:

M -~ BB MR

Property, plant and equipment

32.

33.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

HEMB LT (@)

FifeE -
REEBRH  HEEBERNARRFRBEARR R

HESEZ R A H£44566320008 70 0 HAFE L
24,357,000 L85 (FEE 7 49243,737,0008 ) D48 5 [ R

ﬁ% I =t )\ﬁﬂ:hﬁzqﬁl@%$1§$ AUEA
BEE® REBEEWHR  AARREEERIVE
HipE  ABERREER([ /TATiz’mﬁJ) BERi%

BIFFAN—FREERRFMNEIEFTE - AR
BERERN-_Z-_TFRAA-_TNLBEEE-

BRERBEZIN - EERFEN AR A& EEAY 212,895,000 74
TREERETREEARARFE o

HIE

BRI
RIREHIRAE B BRI OB M AR ERE
ABRZEARRZOT :

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=ZB=—F R-IZT_ZTF
ANA=+H ~NA=+A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T

4,852 10,247
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34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these (a)

34. FEALTREER

R EMBERREMIEDATER S

financial statements, the Group entered into the following

S REBRFRFTZLATEARZE

material related party transactions during the year: ALERG :
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
—E-—F —ETE
~NA=1+H ~NA=+H
LEFE IEEFE
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
MfaE FET FH&T
Service fee income earned BEE AR RIS E
from associates WA (i = 720
Interest income from associates KRB B E R R Z A BHA (ii) 2,734 2,627
Lease payment to associates MEEE AR 2 HAES (iii) (7,817) (3,921)
Note: BfaE -
0} The service fee income were charged in accordance with the terms (i) PR 75 2 W A TH AR 3% 95 Bl B2 HVPHI f&2 BMP
and conditions of the administrative service agreements entered FRT T S AT IR AR 755 198 5k 2 1R 3R IR AR 1 UK
with HVPHI and BMP respectively. During the year, the Group has B FRA AEED K IEBEHVPH R
terminated the agreements with HVPHI and BMP. The Group no BMP 8 1733 © A5 [ B ittt N A UCER AR
longer received service fee income since then. BBUA o
(i) The interest income from associates represented the interest (i) REBE AR ZFBWALER B B
income from loan receivables with principle amount of Peso HVPHI % PBPIZN & %8 9 Bl /430,000,000
430,000,000 from HVPHI and Peso 55,000,000 from PBPI % R 155,000,000 8 R 2 B 2 8
respectively. A °
(i) Lease payment to associates represented the lease agreements (i) MEEE QR 2 LTSI EHVPH
entered with HVPHI and PBPI for the hotel complex, staff K PBPIRI M 2 HE W - AR AR
accommodation and parking lot situated in the Philippines. FRBEZBIEGRAER BIABRE
Bi5 o
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) BAREIEASFHM
The remuneration of the Directors and other members of key EERAEEETEEEEAMKE S
management of the Group are disclosed in note 10. The FHAABIZE 103 FR - EERAKEEE

remuneration of the Directors and key management personnel
of the Group is based on the performance and experience of
individuals and is determined with reference to the Group's
performance, the remuneration benchmark in the industry
and the prevailing market conditions.
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35. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

35. XIFHERER M
@ RERRSIENEE:

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F R-ZT_FF
NA=1+H ~NA=+A

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Cash available on demand AREKREZIRE 371,231 433,744
Short-term deposits (note) 52 EE R (M aE) 193,711 189,426
564,942 623,170

Note: Bzt -

The balance represents short-term bank deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less. The Group's bank balances deposited in the banks
in Hong Kong carry prevailing market interest rates of 0.001% to 0.55%
(2020: 0.001% to 0.95%) per annum. Moreover, the Group also has bank
balances deposited in the banks in the Philippines which carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from 0.050% to 2.15% (2020: 0.050% to 2.15%)
per annum.

EREHERTEHA A =AU ANZEH
RITHEHR - AEBTEREBRITZRITAFER
BITMSEERNE0 ERSS5E(ZT_FF -
0001 EZE095E )T 8 ° ol » AREBMEFERIE
BERITZBTEFRRITMBFENEN T
0050 B E215B(=ZZE-F % : 0050E E2.15
E)EtE o
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R T —FNA=1THIFE
35. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW 35. TFRERERZMEE &)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: b) RMEEDBAEEERZHE:
Lease Convertible Bank  Promissory
Interest liabilities bond Other  borrowings note
payable (note 19) (note31)  borrowings (note 30) (note 29)
HEBE WRRES RITEE  ARARE
ERRME  (WiE19)  (KE31) HitiEE  (Widse)  (KE29)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TBT TET TET T
At 1July 2019 R=B-h&EtA-A 10837 65,662 - - 76238 342,829
Proceed from new borrowings  #TiE & S FT{570A - - - 95,000 - -
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - - - (95,000) (4.862) -
Repayment of lease liabllities ~ BEFAEEE = (9326) = = - -
Interest paid BIHE (13,068) = = - - -
Total changes from financing ~ BAR & FRESEEE
cash flows (13,068) (9326) - - (4.862) -
Other changes: Hih g
Investment in associates E" HENRZRE - = 54,599 - - -
Interest expenses accrued eI FZ 22,824 5554 3,266 = = 3,086
Capitalised borrowing cost BEAMNMLEERR 4217 = = = = =
Addition of lease liabilities BEREEM - 26959 - - - -
Derecognised upon disposal  HEMBAAIEAIL
of subsidiaries fER - (52,020) - - - -
Change in fair value AFEED = = (13173) = = -
Exchange difference ERES 8 (1,248) - - 1,560 -
At 1July 2020 R-E-_ZEF+A—-H 24,818 35,581 44,692 - 72,936 345,915
Repayment of borrowings BREE - - - - (20,039) -
Repayment of lease liabilities ~ EBERERE - (8,362) - - - -
Interest paid BIHE (5,757) = = = - -
Total changes from financing  BEBR S REEHEE
cash flows (5,757) (8,362) - - (20,039) -
Other changes: Hipg
Interest expenses accrued [;E,]Jr FEHX 18,040 4,692 3,293 - - 3,322
Capitalised borrowing cost B BMLEERK A 1,959 - - - - -
Addition of lease liabilities BEREEN - 12,890 - - - -
Disposal of lease liabilities HEHEEE - (636) = = = -
Change in fair value ATERE - - (5,104) - = =
Modification of promissory note 1B &1 % 1% (34,904) - - - - 32,959
Exchange difference B =R - 698 - - 1,793 -
At 30 June 2021 R=B=-%
~A=tH 4,156 44,863 42,881 - 54,690 382,196
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. MIBLRIFFE
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2021 KRB —FNA=Z+HZARBEENB
were as follows: RNRIFFIBMAT ¢

Issued and fully

Place of paid share
Form of incorporationand  capital/ Percentage held by
Name of subsidiary business operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
AR R BRITRAR
WEARER £33 REw BA/ERRA ERAMFEDL TERH
Directly Indirectly
Ef# &
% %
Lucky Genius Limited Corporation BVI USs1 100 - Investment holding
Lucky Genius Limited pE] EBRRAREE 1ET BEER
Success Gold Holdings Limited ~ Corporation BVI Uss1 100 - Investment holding
Success Gold Holdings Limited % HBARREE  1ET B e
Fortune Growth Overseas Limited Corporation BVI Uss1 100 - Investment holding
Fortune Growth Overseas Limited %[ KBRBREE  1EL B
Maxprofit International Limited ~ Corporation BVI Us$100 - 100 Investment holding
("Maxprofit’)
Maxprofit International Limited & EBEAREE 100X REZR
([Maxprofit])
Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited Corporation BVI Uss1 - 100 Investment holding
Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited e EBERARHE 1= REER
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc.  Corporation Philippines Pes010,468,600 - 100 Investment holding
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc. % B FEE 10468600 R REER
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc.  Corporation Philippines Pes010,468,600 - 100 Investment holding
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc. %@ kRE 10468600 FHE BB
Marina Square Properties, Inc. Corporation Philippines Pes02,722,930,653 - 100 Property investment
("MSPI")
Marina Square Properties, Inc. S8 FEE 2722930653 =R MmERE
(TMspi])
New Coast Hotel, Inc. ('NCHI") Corporation Philippines Peso621,444,867 - 100 Hotel owner, operation
of hotel business
New Coast Hotel, Inc. (TNCHIJ) & FRE 621,444,867 BR BERAA &K%
BELH
Future Growth Limited Corporation Hong Kong HKS2 100 - General administration
for the Group
BRAERRA EE BB 2B TEE-RITHER
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36.

Issued and fully

MEB N EIEENE (&)

Percentage held by
the Company
ARRAFAEDL
Directly Indirectly
=83 B
% %
= 100
= 100
100 =
100 =
= 100
= 100

Principal activities

TEEHR

Investment holding

REER

Live Events

R5Eg

Investment holding
REEKR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

Place of paid share
Form of incorporationand  capital/
Name of subsidiary business operations registered capital
AL R ERTRAR
WEAREM E 57 BEHH R A
East Fortune Holdings Limited ~ Corporation Hong Kong HK$1
EEEEARAA =B Bk 18T
IEC Live Events Macau Limited Corporation Macau MOP25,000
IEC Live Events Macau Limited £ R 25,0002 7T
IEC Investment Limited Corporation BVI Class B: US$9,500
IEC Investment Limited ] EBEHARES B 9500ETL
Class A: US$500
ASE : S00ETT
Oriental-Invest Properties Limited - Corporation BVI Uss2
Oriental-Invest Properties Limited %@ REERRES 2%
Future Success International Corporation Samoa Uss1
Holding Limited*
Future Success International FE EED (E
Holding Limited*

Saved as disclosed in note 29 and note 31, none of the subsidiaries
had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

* The subsidiary was incorporated on 28 April 2021. On 28 May 2021,
Maxprofit International Limited sold and Future Success International
Holding Limited purchased the entire issued share capital of Starcharm
Limited, Flex-Deliver Holding Limited and Pride Ever Resources Limited.
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. KT ZHER AR E(iEES)
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EAATZHBRRE
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020

R=B=—F RK-T-Z
~NA=1H NA=1H

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FHET FHIT
Non-current assets EmEEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIE R A2 K& 417,293 361,998
Amount due from a subsidiary in R —REWNEB R RFIE
form of promissory note (AR EEFER) 540,414 759,857
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGIE 104,490 294,350
1,062,197 1,416,205
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, deposits and HEmEWEIE - He &
prepayments TEfTRIE 627 482
Bank balances RITHET 353,524 377,910
354,151 378,392
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accrued HEip I8 K R B
charges 3,534 5477
Non-current liabilities EmEBE
Convertible bond AR E S 42,881 44,692
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,369,933 1,744,428
Equity attributable to owners RAREE ABIERER
of the Company
Share capital A% A 27 1,369,157 1,369,157
Reserves e 37(b) 776 375,271
TOTAL EQUITY iR 1,369,933 1,744,428
The statement of financial position of the Company was RRARZHBRATRRZZE=Z—F 1
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 September 2021 A-+tmWREEE=ESH & Wh 3
and was signed on its behalf by: ATREZEZ
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley Mr. Ho Wong Meng
EHEE LT Ho Wong Meng 5t 4
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
S EFE
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. ARTEIZMBIR AR RGeS &)
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) EATZHEELE
Retained
Share-based profits/
Share Merger Exchange compensation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
URBREE RERN/
ROEE A6RE ELRE ZBERE  (RAER) #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHT FAT TAT TAT THT
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NF

~NA=ZTH 170,289 53,022 (206,449) 5433 365477 387,772
Exchange difference arisingon & B 25|l ELE 7
translation to presentation [ . =48

currency = = 22,198 = = 22,198
Total comprehensive loss FNEEBBEE
for the year - - - - (34,699) (34,699)
At 30 June 2020 RZZ_ZF
NAZTH 170,289 53,022 (184,251) 5433 330,778 375271

Exchange difference arisingon A& A2 5| EHEL 7
translation to presentation [ i, E%E

currency - - 80,208 - - 80,208
Total comprehensive loss FAZABBER
for the year - - - - (454,703) (454,703)
At 30 June 2021 A S—
~NA=TH 170,289 53,022 (104,043) 5,433 (123,925) 776
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

38. HAFBEI D ERNEEREMEE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY e
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities RREHEEERAcmEEREREERR
recognised at the end of reporting period were categorised as BEIRERE DT :
follows:
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—F RZE_FTF
NA=t+H ~NA=+AH
HK$’000 HKS'000
TET FHETT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVEFABRCERBEE 52,573 93,441
Financial assets at amortised costs IR ER AV E S REE 670,678 732,781
723,251 826,222
Financial liabilities SMEE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEAFEFABEZCREE 3,511 8615
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEEKAIEs eRAE 551,283 556,052
554,794 564,667
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

—  the fair value of investments held for trading with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market price; and

—  the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis, binomial
option pricing model or market comparable multiples as
appropriate.

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial instruments that are
measured at fair value by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. RERENZEMEERERMEE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY = (z)
(Continued)
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRIEBHEATEER EREDEATE
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: PRz R TEDHT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B B et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 30 June 2021 R=ZB=-§XA=1H
Financial assets at fairvalue ~ EAFEFTABZEZ
through profit or loss CREE
Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia 7= 8RR 5 DWS g )M & U 2%
High Yield Bond Income Fund BHFERREETES
Byl 717 - - 717
Unlisted investment fund (note) 3 E TR B E & (Afat) - - 51,856 51,856
717 - 51,856 52,573

Financial liabilities at fair value &2 Z{Eit A2

through profit or loss cRBEE
Conversion derivative EMITETA = = 3,511 3,511
At 30 June 2020 R-E-ZHXA=+AH
Financial assets at fairvalue XA FEH ABEZ

through profit or loss CREE

Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia {2 4R3% 88 DWS 28 M = i 26
High Yield Bond Income Fund BHEFREGTES

2558 711 = = 711
Unlisted investment fund (note) ~ 3E L TIREE S (Ff:F) - = 92,730 92,730
711 - 92,730 93,441

Financial liabilities at fair value 1272\ FEE A2

through profit or loss A= h=R
Conversion derivative ERTATA - - 8615 8615
Note: Bfat -
For the unlisted investment fund, the fair value is arrived at based on a valuation PIELTREESMS - AFEDNRBEEKREB &
carried out by JLL, an independent professional valuer not connected to the B BUBEGEMPEBRTETZMEEEE - 2
Group. The fair value was determined based on market approach, where fair value FEBIBEMIZERE  MATELEANEALRARZ
estimated with references to comparable companies’ benchmark multiples. BEREGEEITHE -
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. REBDZEMEEREMEHE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY HIEE (=)
(Continued)
Note:: (Continued) B - (&)
Significant unobservable inputs ERTAHEN A
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B=—F RZZE_TF
NA=tH NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET THT
Market multiples of comparable companies adopted FTif A Al ELL B A B 2 T B E &
— EV/EBITDA ratio —EBEHGRAE  HE HER
A AR = 7.23-7.76 822-9.66
Discount for lack of marketability BRZ iz i@z B 20.00% 21.22%
Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable companies adopted increased by 5%, it WM E LR A B 2 ¥ EBEHRAE - T8 -
would increase the fair value of the unlisted investment by approximately WEREHEAT AT L ERIEMN5% - BIEEMTEZR
HK$6,368,000. Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable companies adopted SE{EE 496,368,000 77T © HFTERA A B LLE A 2
decreased by 5%, it would decrease the fair value of the unlisted investment by TEEEHBRAE - BIE - T8 MBS AT B L R
approximately HK$6,368,000. 5%  BIFE EMRE 2 R FER 416,368,000/ 7T ©
The following table shows the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of TRETFELMREESCFE=RATEFE2HE

the unlisted investment fund:

At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B=-—F R-ZB_FF
NA=tH ~A=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
At beginning of the year REA 92,730 190,590
Disposal HeE - (126,979)
Change in fair value NEEES) (40,874) 29,119
Atend of the year RER 51,856 92,730
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial EEZRR  MBBRERNREBHEXAINEZ EREER
liabilities carried at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their eHEBECEREREAFERE -

fair values.
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39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. There
was no change in capital management policies and objectives from
prior periods.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position
and makes adjustment to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings representing outstanding promissory note, outstanding
bank borrowing and outstanding convertible bond as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position less cash and bank
balances. Total equity is calculated as equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, as appropriate.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group's strategy was to
maintain a zero or minimal gearing ratio.

The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

39.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

BXEREE

AR E IR B AR A RER AN SR G B N IS HEAT
Y T RBRER REA R & K E ] R F
5 AR REENRBIRERA - &
ANEBKE N B R TR AT -

AREBREGE R R EREEARRE - A
MRS B K R A R Y B A R ) ¥R £
TRl B AR R A 4F Be S ARFE ]2 F 1
I R e B IR BEE AN -

AEERBEERBLRERAEARE
HITEBH 5 - ZLERREBFRGEER

RERTE - A FEREERRAERL
EBUBPRKRATREEALZE  REER
RITEERAREE AT RRES) BIRE &R
TRFE *Eﬁﬁ%@%ﬂ%%éﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
R (ER) FHE

BE_Z-_—FA=THLFE &X&H

REDERTAREEERRLER -

RZEBEZ—FR_EBE_FTFA=ZTHZE
EABLRIOT :

At 30 June At 30 June

2021 2020

REZB-—F RZTZTHF

~NA=1+H NA=TH

HK$’000 HKS'000

TET FHETT

Total borrowings EEMAE 479,767 463,543
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTTEERIRS (564,942) (623,170)
Net debt BT 558 (85,175) (159,627)
Total equity KRR 1,591,609 1,788,480
Gearing ratio BEBELE N/A T iE A N/A 73
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o)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40.

—E - —FNA=FHIFFE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade receivables and contract assets,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from associates, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables, promissory note,
convertible bond, lease liabilities and bank borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risk associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(@) Creditrisk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances and cash, amounts due from associates and
loan receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables and contract assets, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customers operate. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. To measure ECLs, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped by
segments based on similar credit risk characteristics and
assessed on a collective basis. No individual ECLs assessment
for the debtors has performed. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the grouping for trade
receivables and contract assets for the assessment of ECLs is
by customer segments. For contract assets, management
applied the expected credit loss rates calculated using
provision matrix to different customer segments,
management considered the ECLs is immaterial and no
provision for lifetime ECLs has recognized.

For trade receivables, management has categorized debtors
into 5 customer groups for ECLs assessment with Group E
represents the customers with significant risk of default.

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 30
June 2021 and 2020:

At 30 June 2021 MRZB=-—HXA=1+H GroupA

aFCl
Expected credit loss rate i‘E ,Hﬂf*gléﬁé X 2.21%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) mEE(TEL) 3,335
Loss allowance (HK$'000) }Eﬁé!%f%ﬁ (FA&T) 74
At 30 June 2020 R-E-BFXA=TH GroupA

B8
Expected credit loss rate ?E ,Hﬂf*%lgﬂé = 2.93%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) mBE(FEL) 415
Loss allowance (HK$'000) J&ﬂaﬁéﬁ(?ﬁ%x} 12

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

MHEEREREBIRRER (@)

(a)

Group B

Group B

1.82%

FERRE)
BREERENEE

AEEZEERGFERRNZEREE
EBlECHEREREERANEENE
EIERE mMEEHAZEREEE
BLBEABRAREEENE - A2
BHEEEE BREBRANEE
E?ﬁETﬁBME’MGEHK YRR S D
B WIAERBEETG - WELERK
NETHEANEREEBETE - AR
$Elkﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmfﬂ%

ﬁ"*%ﬁﬁfﬂ&ﬁélﬁﬁmﬁéﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
URHSETEMEERER - RENEEM
5 EHERRABREREEAESD
MBREEEEXERARTRER S
WM EEERARMEERBRYIE
RN B EERAFTERNEHREES
1B -

SEMREMS - BEEESKERA
BEEAAREFPEHA  WEFRHAEE
BEFG EPRABEBEEREN
Rz &P -

T%%@’iuﬁﬁﬁ$% BR—_ZT-_—FR
—E_EENA=THAHEERR
B R EMRE . EREEBRZER

Group C
R4

Group D
T4

Group E

by | R4

3.75%  2.35%
12 - 208
= = 5

27.87%
1,182
311

Group C
BEE!

Group D
THA

Group E
248 K4
2.82% 4.5%
45 243

1 11

3.46%
3971
137

27.94%
3525
985
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BiiZEGEERENREE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERBE)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over FRHEEXIRIEBEIF 2 ERER
the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences KESY ZELHXRSIELRARNUR
between economic conditions during the year over which the Rk F A AR R B FTUN E R SR B 2
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the ZR - RN R AR K B S e WGRIE
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives TERREF BN BRI 2 BVE ©

of the receivables.

The below table reconciled the movement in the allowance TRAFANEWIRIERREGH 2 &
for doubtful debts of trade receivables for the year: HEE -
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020

REB-—F R-ZT-_FTF
NB=1H NA=1+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

At beginning of year REA] 1,146 310
(Reversal)/provision for expected TEEEEER (BE), BEFHE

credit losses, net (788) 1,640

Disposal of subsidiaries HEKE AR - (800)

Exchange adjustments HE 5, 38 B 32 4)

At end of year RER 390 1,146
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Deposits and other receivables

As at 30 June 2021, deposits and other receivables mainly
represent receivables from the hotel, leasing and live events
segment.

For hotel and leasing segment, it is considered low risk as the
debtors are considered, in the short term, to have a strong
capacity to meet its obligations, and therefore the impairment
provision is determined as 12 months expected credit losses.
As at 30 June 2021, management considered the ECLs is
immaterial and no provision of 12 months ECLs on deposits
and other receivables was recognised.

For live events segment, as at 30 June 2021, lifetime ECLs of
approximately HK$3,540,000 (2020: HKSNil) on deposits and
other receivables was recognised.

Bank balances and cash

Management considered the credit risk is limited as the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
reputation.

Loan receivable and amounts due from associates

Loan receivable and amounts due from associates represent
loans and funding to associates (note 17). Management
considered the amount due to be low credit risk of default as
the associates have strong capacity to meet the contractual
cash flow obligations, and therefore the impairment provision
is determined as 12 months expected credit losses. As at 30
June 2021, the management assess that the effect of applying
the expected credit risk model on loan receivables and
amounts due from associates was immaterial.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

40. MHBRAREZREBFREBER (@)

(a)

FERR (&)

e RAMEKE
R=ZF-_—F<XA=+H Eek&
fib FEM R IB £ BB SE - B RIRG
BB EFFEUIGRIA o

FOBEREBSH - BERERSR S
BEERERR  RERBEBERAHERASR
RHANEGBEEE I TRITERL
HE 2@ A 2B EEBIBE TR
EBEE R_E-_—FA=1+H"
EEERE  HHEEBBITERX -
B \EERE S & HE A E U FIERY 12
BAz EHEEBERERE -

MEBEHHAmME  R=_E=_—F
ANEZTH - ReREMERZIEY
FEEAN 2 B HE B B 18 493,540,000
BIL(ZEZF T ERER -

MITHBREZ

ERERS ARHFITHR/EER
HRThkEBEE REERRA
BR -

EREFRERBE L EHME

& M5 T e R M B I B) SRTR 4 ) B
ERREREREEES (HEE17) - i
REBERRRBEEENABITAR
ReRBZER EEERBEYK
BEABEEERORR - #utiZ121E
AEREEERETRERE - R =
T_—FXA=1TH ERENGERE
REREERRRESREERKE
WHE NRIRIA FEALTERX -
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HE—T—

—FNA=1THILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management of the Group to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group of remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and

40. HHBEREEERERER @)

(b)

EERBETRMRE  AREERY
HEBASEEEERRARAZIRER
ReZEYWKY  URAEEEER
HESLRERSREKSD ZHE -

TRFANAKESITESRAGB &
TEMHR - TRBRBEAKEAIHE
Kz &REH Z2BAGBZKR
FERERER/E - FTESBEE
ZEHMBEEREWME<EEAH - T
KBEEMERATHERE -

principal cash flows.

Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual Within  1yearbut  2yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted lyearor  lessthan Lessthan  More than
amount cashflow ondemand 2years 5years 5years
BORHE -FR% BE-FE HBBRFE
REE RERELE REX  LHWME  SREFE  BBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR TR TR TR TR
The Group YiN-
At 30 June 2021 RZB=-§5XA=+H
Non-derivatives: FEOTE -
Trade payables [EfTBRIE 1,779 1,779 1,779 - - -
Other payables and A ENRERETER
accrued charges 28,385 28,385 28,385 - - -
Promissory note EREE 382,196 396,462 396,462 - - -
Convertible bond R ES 39,370 53,000 - - 53,000 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 54,690 61,811 23,938 22,268 15,605 -
Lease labilities BERE 44,863 85,259 6,722 6,722 20,167 51,648
551,283 626,696 457,286 28,990 88,772 51,648
At 30 June 2020 R-B-EEXA=1H
Non-derivatives: T4
Trade payables ERERIE 3544 3544 3544 - - -
Other payables and HitENZEREAER
accrued charges 61,999 61,999 61,999 - - -
Promissory note EHEE 345915 378,000 14,000 364,000 = =
Convertible bond AR ES 36077 53,000 - - 53,000 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 72936 85,134 24,939 23312 36,883 -
Lease liabilities HEBR 35,581 72,160 5958 4638 13632 47932
556,052 653,837 110,440 391,950 103515 47932
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from its financial assets at
FVTPL (note 20) and variable-rate bank balances (note 35(a))
and promissory note (note 29), bank borrowings (note 30) and
convertible bond (note 31). Financial assets at FVTPL and
promissory note, bank borrowings and convertible bond at
fixed interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. Bank balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

The Group does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider appropriate hedging policy
when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances including bank balances
deposits in the banks in Hong Kong and the Philippines. The
sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate time deposits at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
these bank balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period are outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2020: 50 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in the
banks in the Philippines is used in estimating the potential
change in interest rate and represents the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates made by the
management of the Group. If interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$539,000 (2020: HK$449,000). A
30 basis points (2020: 30 basis points) in variable-rate time
deposits in the banks in Hong Kong is used in estimating the
potential change in interest rate and represents the
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates
made by the management of the Group. If the interest rates
had been 30 basis points higher/lower (2020: 30 basis points
higher/lower) and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$20,000 (2020: nil).

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

MHEEREREBIRRER (@)

(c)

FI == 2 B
AEBEZFERBRES EIEZATFE +
M@ s e EE(WiE20) RFEE
17817 (K sE3506 )&7%51%%);%(%.%
29) RITIEE (FsE30) K& AT AR (&5
(BF5E31) » AEE A RIZAFEFTA
BREREERARLERE - BT
BERABMBRESFSAEBAZAFE
FERR - FBRTETSAEEE
THEREFNRER

2N S [ 3 M R G R ER o AT 0 A
SEEREERMNXER XREH
2R EREEHPEEK -

HBEEDT

AEEFZBRITET (BRETHRE
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—T—

—FNA=1THILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its long-term bank borrowings. At 30 June 2021, it is
estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2020: 50 basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit
after income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$267,000 (2020: HK$358,000). Other components of equity
would not be changed.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 50 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Other price risk

At 30 June 2021, the Group is exposed to price risk through its
financial assets at FVTPL in respect of the investment in Hontai
Fund and Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia High Yield Bond
Income Fund. The management of the Group has performed
analysis of the nature of market risk associated with the
investments, including discussion with the investment
advisors, and concluded that the price risk is more prominent
in evaluating the market risk of this kind of investments. The
management of the Group monitors this exposure and will
consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis on financial assets at FVTPL

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined, based
on the investment in Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia High
Yield Bond Income Fund, price risk (including fair value interest
rate risk) arising from financial assets at FVTPL. If the prices of
respective financial instruments had been 10% (2020:10%)
higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$72,000 (2020:
HKS$71,000) as a result of the change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL at 30 June 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

MHEEREREBIRRER (@)

Currency risk (e) EMmEM
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through the AREBTFTEMEUUBREEBLEBR I
financial assets at FVTPL, other receivables, bank balances and BEE B INE B EZIRAFEET A
cash, other payables, promissory note and convertible bond TE Z(ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ& . ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬁilﬁ - iR
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional THEENRRS® ﬁﬂfﬁ < A
currency of the operations to which they relate. The currencies E=S YR fos %ﬁﬁF £E @H—L fa o
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars and F_’il_lkl:ﬂ B BB EZRETRAET °
Hong Kong dollar.
The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary ﬁéﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ&&fﬁgéﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant SR REEEEEE (EES
group entities whose functional currency is Peso at the end of MAEWR) 2IINEHEWT ¢
the reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
af& BE
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
R=B=_—F RN-_ZF_FTF RSB —F R-_FT_FTF
~NA=TH ~NA=1H ~NA=1H NA=1H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T
usD =TT - - 10,982 108,811
HKD BT 432,840 423,391 372,759 408,328
EUR BX T - = 47,138 94,259

REE B AT EINE EPER o
AEBEEEERSEBH DB El’?%%ﬁl\ﬁ%

The Group currently does not have foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors

foreign currency exposure for each business segment and ARtz E@rtEsREE WA
reviews the needs of individual geographical area, and will KE#%EME HHRBUR o

consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.
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A MR

For theyear ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. MR MEEEENREE &)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Currency risk (Continued) (e)
Sensitivity analysis
As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any
significant foreign currency exposure arising from the
fluctuation of the USD/HKS and HKS$/USD exchange rates. As a
result, the management of the Group considers that the
sensitivity of the Group's exposure towards the change in
foreign exchange rates between USD/HKS$ and HK$/USD is
minimal.

The currency risk is mainly arising from exchange rate of Peso
against USD and HKS.

The following table details the Group' sensitivity to a 10%
(2020: 10%) increase and decrease in Peso against USD and
HKS$10% (2020: 10%) represents the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates made
by the management of the Group. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items. The table below indicates the impact on
post-tax profit for the year where the Peso weaken 10% (2020:
10%) against foreign currencies, and vice versa. For a 10%
(2020: 10%) strengthening of Peso against foreign currencies,

L6 )

HBEDH

RRB T T - AR B TR
AI%TEE’L;‘%TE&?’%TE%%TEZE

KREMEEFERMERIIE RS
A $%IE£¥EM\%$’$I£%E
RABTRETLHRTT 2R Z N E =
PR BREBE -

EERBRETEREFRAETLEET
ZEE

TRFANAEBEHBERAETLRB T
BINEEAD10%(ZE=FF : 10%) 2
BREE - 10% (= =FF : 10%) JI7A
SEEREHINEERAEELIES

2 MEESMERTENAEE
ZONEGIEEIEE - TRERWE
RHIMNEEZE10% (Z B ZF4F : 10%)
HENRBREBANZTZE  RZIA -
R R INEFE10% (T T :
10%) + FRBREEEF G2 E S FEAE

there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax RIMMERER 2L -
profit for the year.
HKS$ impact USD impact
BLEE EY 32
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020 2021 2020

R=Z=—F R_T_TF R=B=-—F N_ZT_ZTF
~NE=1H NA=+H ~NA=1H NA=1H

HK$’000
FHET
(Decrease)/increase in FARTI AT
post-tax profit for the year ~ (&t 4>) /#8410 (6,024)

HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FE T
(1,650) 864 7,702
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’ sensitivity to a 10%
(2020: 10%) increase and decrease in EUR against HKS. 10%
represents the assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates made by the management of the
Group. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items. The table
below indicates the impact on post-tax profit for the year
where the EUR strengthen 10% (2020: 10%) against HKS. For a
10% (2020: 10%) weakening of EUR against HKS, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the
year.

Increase in post-tax profit for the year F

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE T —F N NA=1HIFE

MHEEREREBIRRER (@)

(e)

PIBR L 1% 28 7138 0

B ()

BBEDH(B)
TRFVAEEH BT L BTNk
WDI0%(ZTEZFF 1 10%) 2§
& o 10% 57N 5 B 5 12 1B 3 O S fE R
AR BB 2T E HRELIE
BREMREE ZINEDEEKIER -
TREREEITTHEBTAEI0%(ZF
ZTF 10%) HFEABRH B AT
2o WBUTEBTREIWR(ZEE

—_—= =

F:10%)  FA B%ﬁ?é:@ﬂﬂ%%ﬂé&
HHERMARER 2 &
EUR impact
B
At 30 June At 30 June
2021 2020
R=-B=—F N _FTF
~NA=1+H NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ExT T
4,689 9,273

41. MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which

the Company was a party and in which the directors of the Company
or an entity connected with the directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
financial year.

41. EERNXH. RGN ZEKXE

23

BERARRRI AR AESHRESRH
e ERERIMERETHRGEAER
ZIEMEARS « THREHORFERFEA
KM HRFREEATE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

BE—T-—F A=THIFE
42. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING

43.

PERIOD
The entering into the Cooperation Agreement

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 16 July 2021, MSPI,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the
Philippines, and PAGCOR intended to enter into the Cooperation
Agreement. Please refer to the Company’s circular dated 21 July
2021 for details.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 30 August 2021,
the Board was notified by MSPI that it received the signed
Cooperation Agreement dated 9 August 2021 from PAGCOR, the
cooperation among the Group and PAGCOR shall take effect until 31
March 2031 unless otherwise lawfully terminated in accordance with
the Cooperation Agreement. Based on preliminary assessment by
management, the Group intends to change the use of its properties
from leasing a property to held for own use under the Cooperation
Agreement, the investment properties will be reclassified as
properties held for own use with corresponding deferred tax
liabilities related to the investment properties will also be
derecognized at the date of change in use. After reclassifying to
properties held for own use, the properties will be depreciated
according to the accounting policy of the Group.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
September 2021.
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42,

43.

REHREERRER

VAN 3 E

BREARFTEHER-_ZT_—F+HA+RBZ
RE ARBRFRELHZREZENB AR
MSPI &2 PAGCORRRTSZ & 1E 1375 - BREFFIS -
B I?EJ$ AR T —F+tHA=-+—
Bzi@

BEAARBHA-Z-_—F\A=+HZ
NE EEgDTEMPIEM HEB#®
PAGCOR¥ZEHBH AT -_—F N \ANAZ

EEEGERZE  ASBEEPAGCORZ HAY
AEBAEREE —_E=—F=A=1+—H -
WRIBE S ERE AR XA EKIERIR
Hh o ARNERENYIZFMH - AEEDIRIE
GIEBBREMENACHEEMEET &
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Financial Summary

B 35 1 E

RESULTS ES
For the
fifteen
For the For the months For the For the
year ended year ended ended year ended year ended
31 March 31 March 30 June 30 June 30 June
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HE
HE BE —E-NF HE HE
T—+F =— \F ~NA=1H —E-EE —E-—fF
=A=+—H =A=+—H ETRfEA ~A=+H AB=1+H
HEE HEE HAfe] HEE LHEE
(Restated) (Re-presented)
(gE5) (=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET FET FET THET
Revenue A 290,714 296,380 375,982 226,965 64,900
Loss for the year/period F/HRERE (41,770) (67,278) (93,293) (305,332) (242,040)
Loss attributable to: AT ATELES
Owners of the Company ERRHEB A (31,486) (67,278) (77,527) (279,564) (242,040)
NET ASSETS SRS
As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 30 June 30 June 30 June
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—tF —N\F —NF —ZT_TF —B--f
=A=t—H =A=+—8H ANA=TH NA=TH ~A=T1H
(Restated)
(=5)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT FHT FHT FHAT THET
Total assets BEE 2,386,434 2,632,688 2,797,372 2,538,669 2,301,154
Total liabilities BaR (551,074) (550,293) (763,686) (750,189) (709,545)
1,835,360 2,082,395 2,033,686 1,788,480 1,591,609
Equity attributable to: AN AT
Owners of the Company KAREER A 1,835,279 2,082,395 2,023,267 1,788,480 1,591,609
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Particulars of Principal Properties

Location Existing use

3t 31k RERR

1588 M.H. Del Pilar Hotel operations and leasing of properties
cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila (equipped with entertainment equipment)

The Philippines

1588 MH. Del Pilar WS RAEDE GRARERE)
cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila
The Philippines
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Lease term

HEFH

Medium-term lease

AR
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